
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
Councillor Ron Hignett (Chairman) Labour 

Councillor Keith Morley (Vice-
Chairman) 

Labour 

Councillor Peter Blackmore Liberal Democrat 

Councillor John Bradshaw Conservative 

Councillor Ellen Cargill Labour 

Councillor Dave Leadbetter Labour 

Councillor Peter Murray Conservative 

Councillor Paul Nolan Labour 

Councillor Christopher Rowe Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Tim Sly Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Dave Thompson Labour 

 
 
 

Please contact Caroline Halpin on 0151 471 7394 or e-mail 
caroline.halpin@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the  Board is on Wednesday, 23 January 2008 
 

Urban Renewal Policy and Performance 
Board 
 
Wednesday, 21 November 2007 6.30 p.m. 
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS (INCLUDING PARTY WHIP 
DECLARATIONS)  

  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and (subject to certain exceptions in the Code of 
Conduct for Members) to leave the meeting prior to discussion 
and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

1 - 3 

4. EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES 
 

4 - 15 

5. PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 

 

 (A) QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORTS   16 - 171 

6. DEVELOPMENT OF POLICY ISSUES 
 

 

 (A) FIREWORKS FESTIVAL 2008   172 - 176 

 (B) MERSEYSIDE ACTION PLAN   177 - 181 

 (C) STRATEGIC JOINT NEEDS ASSESSMENT   182 - 190 

 (D) THE STRATEGIC PROGRESS OF THE COUNCIL'S 
CORPORATE PLAN   

191 - 193 

 (E) PETITION RELATING TO TRAFFIC CALMING 
STRATTON PARK, WIDNES   

194 - 198 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 
REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy & Performance Board 
   
DATE: 21 November 2007  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Corporate and Policy  
 
SUBJECT: Public Question Time 
 
WARD(s): Borough-wide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider any questions submitted by the Public in accordance with 

Standing Order 33(5).  
 
1.2 Details of any questions received will be circulated at the meeting. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That any questions received be dealt with. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Standing Order 34(11) states that Public Questions shall be dealt with 

as follows:- 
 

(i)  A total of 30 minutes will be allocated for members of the public 
who are residents of the Borough, to ask questions at meetings of 
the Policy and Performance Boards.  

(ii)  Members of the public can ask questions on any matter relating to 
the agenda. 

(iii)  Members of the public can ask questions. Written notice of 
questions must be submitted by 4.00 pm on the day prior to the 
meeting. At any meeting no person/organisation may submit more 
than one question. 

(iv)  One supplementary question (relating to the original question) may 
be asked by the questioner, which may or may not be answered at 
the meeting. 

(v) The Chair or proper officer may reject a question if it:- 

• Is not about a matter for which the local authority has a 
responsibility or which affects the Borough; 

• Is defamatory, frivolous, offensive, abusive or racist; 

• Is substantially the same as a question which has been put at 
a meeting of the Council in the past six months; or 

• Requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



(vi)  In the interests of natural justice, public questions cannot relate to 
a planning or licensing application or to any matter, which is not 
dealt with in the public part of a meeting. 

(vii) The Chairperson will ask for people to indicate that they wish to 
ask a question. 

(viii) PLEASE NOTE that the maximum amount of time each 
questioner will be allowed is 3 minutes. 

(ix) If you do not receive a response at the meeting, a Council Officer 
will ask for your name and address and make sure that you 
receive a written response. 

 
 Please bear in mind that public question time lasts for a maximum 

of 30 minutes. To help in making the most of this opportunity to 
speak:- 

 

• Please keep questions as concise as possible. 
 

• Please do not repeat or make statements on earlier questions as 
this reduces the time available for other issues to be raised.  

 

• Please note that public question time is not intended for debate – 
issues raised will be responded to either at the meeting or in 
writing at a later date. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None.  
 
6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1  Children and Young People in Halton 

 

 None  
 
6.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 

 
 None  

 
6.3  A Healthy Halton 

 

 None 
  

6.4  A Safer Halton 

Page 2



 

 None  
 

6.5  Halton’s Urban Renewal 
  
 None 
 

7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

7.1 None. 
 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
8.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 

 

Page 3



REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board 
   
DATE: 21 November 2007  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive  
 
SUBJECT: Executive Board Minutes 
 
WARD(s): Boroughwide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Minutes relating to the Urban Renewal Portfolio which have been 

considered by the Executive Board, Executive Board Sub and 3MG 
Executive Sub Board are attached at Appendix 1 for information. 

 
1.2 The Minutes are submitted to inform the Policy and Performance Board 

of decisions taken in their area. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Minutes be noted. 
 

3.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 None. 
 
4.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None.  
 
5.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
5.1  Children and Young People in Halton 

 

 None  
 
5.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 

 

 None  
 
5.3  A Healthy Halton 

 

 None 
  

5.4  A Safer Halton 
 

 None  
 

5.5  Halton’s Urban Renewal 
  

Agenda Item 4Page 4



 None 
 

6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

6.1 None. 
 

7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

7.1 None. 
 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
8.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 
 

Page 5



APPENDIX 1 
 

Extract of Executive Board, Executive Board Sub Committee 
and the 3MG Executive Sub Board Minutes Relevant to the 
Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board 
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2007 
 

 

 

39. Halton Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies  

 The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, 
Environment seeking the Board’s approval of the further ‘saving’ 
of policies from the Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) as 
part of the ‘Development Plan’.  

  With the adoption of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act in September 2004, the system of old style plans 
was abolished. The 2004 Regulations which accompanied this 
Act, allowed the adopted Halton UDP to be automatically saved 
for a period of three years from either the date of 
commencement of Section 28th September 2004 or the date the 
plan was adopted, whichever was the latter. The UDP was 
adopted on 7th April 2005, therefore ‘old’ policies were 
automatically saved until 6th April 2008. The Act required 
authorities to apply to the Secretary of State (via the 
Government Office) to issue a direction, if it became necessary 
to save specified policies beyond this three year period. This 
must be done six months prior to 6th April 2008 in Halton’s case 
i.e. by 6th October 2007.  

  It was noted that the Halton Local Development 
Framework (LDF) was intended to replace the UDP. However, 
given the time taken to produce the documents contained within 
the LDF it would be necessary to continue to save many of the 
‘old’ policies within the UDP for a number of years, whilst these 
LDF documents were being prepared. 

  This situation meant that the Council would have to make 
a request, to the Secretary of State, that a number of the ‘old’ 
adopted UDP policies were automatically saved beyond the 
automatic three years.  

  In addition it was noted that the Government would take 
compliance with a number of criteria, which were outlined within 
the report, into account when considering extensions to the 
UDP.  Officers had analysed all UDP policies against these 

Page 6



criteria and had produced two tables as a result detailing those 
policies that were intended to be requested as saved and those 
that were proposed not to be saved beyond the automatic three 
years.  

  RESOLVED: That  

  (1) Policies listed within Appendix 1 are submitted to the 
Government Office for the North West (acting on behalf of the 
Secretary of State) with a request that they are ‘saved’ as part of 
the ‘Development Plan’ for Halton beyond the expiry of the 
automatic three year period from adoption of the Halton UDP; 
  

          (2) Policies listed within Appendix 2 are submitted to the 
Government Office for the North West (acting on behalf of the 
Secretary of State) with a request that they are no longer 
maintained as part of the ‘Development Plan’ for Halton beyond 
the expiry of the automatic three year period from adoption of 
the Halton UDP; 
  

       (3) The Operational Director (Environmental & Regulatory 
Services) in consultation with the Executive Board Member for 
Planning, Transportation, Regeneration and Renewal be 
authorised to make any changes to this document as required 
by the Government Office for the North West; 
  

       (4) Further editorial and technical changes and/or correction of 
printing errors that do not affect the content be agreed by the 
Operational Director – Environmental & Regulatory Services 
before the document is published; and 

 
(5) The importance of replacing ‘saved policies’ with a new style 
Local Development Framework, starting with the progression of 
the Halton Core Strategy, is acknowledged. 

40. 
Business Improvement Districts Ballots  

 The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, 
Environment summarising the key elements of the Business 
Improvement Districts (BIDs) business plans for the Astmoor 
and Halebank industrial estates, the contents of which 
businesses, within the respective areas, would be balloted on 
during November/December 2007. The report also sought 
Executive Board approval to proceed with the ballot.  

 Members were advised that the Government legislated in 

Page 7



the Local Government Act 2003 to allow partnerships between 
local authorities to set up BIDS. BIDS provide a means for local 
areas to develop and finance projects and services that would 
benefit localities such as town centres and industrial estates. 
This allowed businesses in a given area to lead on and develop 
their own unique area improvement plans, in addition to those 
provided and were funded by a levy on businesses within the 
specified area. The levy would be ring fenced for the area to 
fund the extra services and improvements identified in the 
proposal. Each bid was operational for a maximum of five years 
before a new vote to support the development of BIDS and to 
facilitate their establishment.  

 In addition the achievements for Business Led Steering 
Groups in Halton, the mechanisms for delivering BIDS and the 
governance, management and delivery of the Business 
Improvement Districts in Halton were outlined for Members 
consideration.   

RESOLVED: That 
 
(1)        the Strategic Director - Environment, in consultation with 

the Executive Board Member for Planning, 
Transportation, Regeneration and Renewal, be 
authorised to approve the final BIDs business plans for 
Astmoor and Halebank industrial estates to be voted on 
in the ballots; 

(2)      the Strategic Director - Environment be authorised to take 
such other action as may be necessary to bring forward a 
BID at each of the two sites; and 

(3)       the Strategic Director - Environment be authorised to 
undertake the ballot in accordance with government 
regulations in relation to Business Improvement Districts. 

 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 18 OCTOBER 2007 

43. Approval of the Formal Adoption of the Provision of Open 
Space Supplementary Planning Document  

The Board considered a report of the Strategic  Director, 
Environment, which sought approval for the formal adoption of 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): Provision of Open 
Space as part of the Halton Local Development Framework. 

 It was noted that the Provision of Open Space SPD was 

Page 8



to complement the Halton Unitary Development Plan, other 
corporate policy documents and the wider aims and objectives of 
partner agencies in recognising the importance of public open 
space within the Borough. The document ensured that, where 
appropriate, new residential developments made a financial 
contribution towards the establishment and enhancement of 
different types of public open space in Halton. In addition, the 
SPD provided practice advice to developers and their agents 
about how best to design open space. This was for those 
circumstances when new public open space was required to be 
provided as part of the development. 

As required by statutory procedures, the SPD had been 
subject to a number of consultation stages, both with internal and 
external stakeholders and the public, as part of its production: 
Appendix B provided a record of the representations received 
and how they had been taken in to account. In addition, the 
report outlined actions taken in respect of a Sustainability 
Appraisal and Habitats Regulations Assessment. 

RESOLVED: That 

(1) the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): Provision of 
Open Space be formally adopted as a Supplementary 
Planning Document and part of the Halton Local 
Development Framework; 

(2) the responses to the representations received at the public 
participation stages, as set out in the statement of 
consultation, be agreed; and 

(3) further editorial and technical changes that do not affect the 
content or intended purpose of the SPD be agreed by the 
Operational Director – Environmental and Regulatory 
Services in consultation with the Executive Board Member 
for Planning, Transportation, Regeneration and Renewal, if 
necessary, before the document is published. 

 
EXECUTIVE BOARD SUB COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 20 
SEPTEMBER 2007 

26. Purchase of CCTV Surveillance Equipment  

 The Council’s main town centre security CCTV system was 
acquired over ten years ago, with the initial project being 
tendered in accordance with Standing Orders and won by 
Technology Solutions Limited of Rawtenstall. Having successfully 

Page 9



won the first contract for the installation of the CCTV security 
system and control room, Technology Solutions Limited had 
successfully bid to install equipment at extra locations throughout 
the Borough. In addition, in October 2005 Technology Solutions 
tendered for and won a term maintenance and repair contract for 
the CCTV system which would expire at the end of 2010. 

  It was also noted that in January 2007 the Executive Board 
Sub-Committee agreed to waive purchasing standing orders in 
relation to Technology Solutions Limited being awarded the work 
to install a wireless communications link from Widnes to the 
CCTV control room at Runcorn Town Hall in the value of 
£48,949. 

  Technology Solutions Limited were major contractors to 
several other authorities in the area and over the years the firm 
have been unstinting in the assistance and advice they have 
provided without charge in a very specialist, technically advanced 
and fast evolving area where rival firms tend to come and go 
regularly. 

  It was proposed that, given the extensive knowledge of and 
commitment to Halton, acquired by working in the area for many 
years and their complete understanding of the existing CCTV 
security system, Technology Solutions were in unique position to 
be able to supply and install new equipment at minimal cost. In 
addition, should maintenance issues arise, there were 
advantages of having one contractor working on such a 
technologically advanced system. 

  The report requested that standing orders be waived to 
allow a total work limit of £125,000 up to the end of 2010 to 
Technology Solutions Limited. 

  It was noted that the Legal Department were satisfied with 
the reasons for waiving Standing Orders on this occasion.  

  RESOLVED: That – 

 (1) Financial Standing Orders relating to the supply and 
installation of CCTV security equipment to a total value of 
£125,000 be suspended until the end of 2010 and the work be 
placed with Technology Solutions Limited of Rawtenstall at the 
discretion of the Operational Director – Highways Transportation 
and Logistics, though not on a guaranteed basis; and 

 (2) The option to use Financial Standing Orders be retained for 

Page 10



the supply and installation of CCTV security equipment, to be 
used at the discretion of the Operational Director (Highways, 
Transportation and Logistics) as the situation demands 

 
EXECUTIVE BOARD SUB COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 20 
SEPTEMBER 2007  

31. Castlefields Regeneration Programme  

 The Sub-Committee received a report which sought 
approval for the disposal of the Castlefields Community Centre 
to Partners 4 Lift and for the receipts to be used to contribute to 
the funding package required to build a new Community Centre 
as set out in the Castlefields Regeneration Master Plan. The 
report included pre-tender cost estimates for the new Community 
Centre, the District Valuer’s value of the land and details of the 
Capital Budget for the new Community Centre. In order to 
assemble the budget it was essential that the Capital Receipt for 
the land sale of the existing Community Centre, together with 
that of the old Youth Centre site were used to help fund the new 
Centre. 

  RESOLVED: That 

 (1) the Capital Receipts from the sale of the existing Community 
Centre be used to part fund the new Centre; and 

 (2) the Strategic Director Corporate and Policy in conjunction 
with the Executive Board Member Corporate Services be 
authorised to sell the existing Castlefields Community Centre 
owned by Halton Borough Council to Partners 4 Lift. 

  
EXECUTIVE BOARD SUB COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 18 
OCTOBER 2007  

 

37. 
Joint or Partnership Arrangement for the commissioning of 
a cross-boundary Employment Land and Premises Study 
with deferral to Sefton MBC's Standing Orders for the 
conduct of this commission  

 In order to provide a full and robust evidence-based 
support for the development of the Council’s Local Development 
Framework (LDF), including the core strategy, it was necessary 
to undertake an Employment Land and Property Review. 

  In line with Government Best Practice Guidance and in 

Page 11



response to the policy approach being taken in the emerging 
Regional Spatial Strategy, it was most prudent for this review to 
be undertaken at a Sub-Regional level. Unfortunately, due to 
timing and other issues it had not been possible to co-ordinate a 
single study for the full Merseyside Area, however Sefton MBC, 
Knowsley MBC and West Lancs District Council had invited 
Halton to participate in a jointly commissioned study. This 
approach should provide benefits to Halton both in terms of the 
overall cost of the study and the quality of the resultant output. 

  The estimated cost for the overall study (covering the four 
authorities) was up to £140,000 with the cost to Halton expected 
to be in the region of £30,000 up to £40,000. The cost had been 
budgeted for and would be met from existing resources. 

  In order to aid the efficient management of the study, it 
was intended that one authority would act as the lead or 
commissioning authority for the issue and receipt of tenders and 
the handling of payment of fees to the contracted consultant. 
The lead authority would invoice the other partner authorities for 
payment of agreed costs at the appropriate intervals. Sefton 
MBC had agreed to take on the role of lead commissioning 
authority for this study. As a result, the contract would be 
entered into solely by Sefton MBC on behalf of itself and its 
partner authorities. 

  The partner authorities (including Halton) would be fully 
represented on this Study Steering Group that would draft the 
study brief, select the winning consultants and manage the study 
through to completion. 

  RESOLVED: That 

 (1) the Planning and Policy Division be authorised to enter into 
a partnership arrangement with Sefton MBC, Knowsley MBC 
and West Lancs District Council to jointly commission a cross-
boundary Employment Land and Property Review; and 

 (2) approval be given for Sefton MBC to act as the 
commissioning authority and under the provisions of Section 
1.15c of Procurement Standing Orders, that the Standing Orders 
of the Authority (Sefton) shall apply to contracts entered into for 
the delivery of this Study. 

  
 

3MG EXECUTIVE SUB BOARD MEETING HELD ON 16 JULY 

Page 12



OCTOBER 2007 

2. MASTERPLAN BOUNDARY REVIEW - 3MG MERSEY 
MULTIMODAL GATEWAY  

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, 
Environment which described the opportunity to review the 
Masterplan and sought approval to make the changes outlined in the 
report.  

RESOLVED: That  

(1)        the Masterplan be reviewed to incorporate the entire site 
currently owned by Tessenderlo; 

(2)       the Masterplan be reviewed to incorporate the areas of land 
referred to in Plan 6 of the Masterplan as ‘Designated 
Landscape Corridor’ which are identified within 
Supplementary Planning Document for 3MG and currently lie 
outside the physical boundary of the freight park; and 

(3)    the revised Masterplan boundary be agreed as a basis for 
consultation. 

 

3. 3MG HIGHWAY WESTERN ACCESS 

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, 
Environment which outlined the progress to date in providing 
highway access to the HBC Fields site in connection with the 3MG 
project and sought approval to recommend the route.  

Arising from the discussion, the following points were noted:-  

•    the factors that may influence adherence to the project 
programme and consequently the project cost that lie outside 
of the control of the Authority were noted;  

•    the timetable for planning approval and technical approval by 
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council and Network Rail 
was noted; and 

•    the importance of gaining support from Knowsley and 
Network Rail was noted. 

RESOLVED: That  

Page 13



(1)       the preliminary design for highway access to ‘Halton Fields’ 
from the A562 Speke Road / A5300 Knowsley Expressway 
junction, as set out on Drawing No: 
5013684/HW/AA/GA/017A be approved and detailed design 
be progressed; and 

(2)   planning approval be sought for the development of the 
highway western access to 3MG as described above. 

 

4. SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
ACT 1985 

The Sub-Board considered:  

(1)   whether Members of the press and public should be excluded 
from the meeting of the Board during consideration of the 
following items of business in accordance with Sub-Section 4 
of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 because it 
was likely that, in view of the nature of the business to be 
considered, exempt information would be disclosed, being 
information defined in Section 100 (1) and paragraph 3 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972; 
and 

  
(2)   whether the disclosure of information was in the public 

interest, whether any relevant exemptions were applicable 
and whether, when applying the public interest test and 
exemptions, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighed that in disclosing the information.  

RESOLVED: That as, in all the circumstances of the case, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information, members of the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business in accordance with Sub-Section 4 of 
section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 because it is likely 
that, in view of the nature of the business, exempt information will be 
disclosed, being information defined in Section 100(1) and 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

Page 14



 

5. DELIVERY STRATEGY REVIEW - 3MG (MERSEY 
MULTIMODAL GATEWAY)  

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, 
Environment which gave Members an update on the Delivery 
Strategy from 2004 and sought approval to make the changes as 
outlined in the report. 

RESOLVED: That  

(1)        the Delivery Strategy be agreed on the basis of the up to date 
financial position of the programme; and 

 (2) the revised spending profile be recommended to Council for 
approval. 

 

6. ESTABLISHMENT OF A MANAGEMENT COMPANY FOR 3MG - 
MERSEY MULTIMODAL GATEWAY 

The Board considered a report of the Strategic Director, 
Environment which described the process and sought approval to 
establish a Company for the 3MG – Mersey Multimodal Gateway. 

RESOLVED: That 3MG Executive Sub-Board recommend to 
Executive Board the formation of the Company on the terms set out 
in the report. 

 

Page 15



 

REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board 
 
DATE: 21st November 2007     

 
REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive 
 
SUBJECT: Performance Management Reports to half-year 

30 September 2007 
  
WARDS: Boroughwide  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To consider and raise any questions or points of clarification in respect 

of the 2nd quarter performance management reports on progress 
against service plan objectives and performance targets, performance 
trends/comparisons, factors affecting the services etc. for: 
 

• Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

• Environmental & Regulatory Services 

• Health & Partnerships 

• Culture &Leisure 

• Economic Regeneration 

• Major Projects 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That the Policy and Performance Board 
 

1) Receive the 2nd quarter performance management reports;  
 
2) Consider the progress and performance information and raise 

any questions or points for clarification; and   
 

3) Highlight any areas of interest and/or concern where further 
information is to be reported at a future meeting of the Policy 
and Performance Board.  

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The departmental service plans provide a clear statement on what the 

services are planning to achieve and to show how they contribute to 
the Council’s strategic priorities. The service plans are central to the 
Council’s performance management arrangements and the Policy and 
Performance Board has a key role in monitoring performance and 
strengthening accountability.   

 
3.2 The quarterly reports are on the Information Bulletin to reduce the 

amount of paperwork sent out with the agendas and to allow Members 
access to the reports as soon as they have become available.  

Agenda Item 5aPage 16



 

It also provides Members with an opportunity to give advance notice of 
any questions, points or requests for further information that will be 
raised to ensure the appropriate Officers are available at the PPB 
meeting.  

 
4.0 POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no policy implications associated with this report.  
 
5.0       RISK ANALYSIS 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0      EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
6.1       Not applicable. 
 
7.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTIONS 100D OF 

THE   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
7.1 There are no background documents under the meaning of this Act. 

Page 17



Highways, Transportation & Logistics 1 

QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  MMOONNIITTOORRIINNGG  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

DIRECTORATE: Environment 
 
SERVICE: Highways, Transportation & Logistics 
 
PERIOD:   Quarter 2 half-year to period-end 30 September 2007. 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Highways, Transportation & 
Logistics Department second quarter period up to 30 September 2007. It 
describes key developments and progress against all objectives and 
performance indicators for the service. 
 
The way in which traffic light symbols have been used to reflect progress 
to date is explained in Appendix 6. 
 
It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of Policy and 
Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators that are not 
directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey. 

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Mersey Gateway 
Public stakeholder Consultation has now been concluded with a large 
amount of press and stakeholder interest.  This stakeholder engagement 
will prepare the ground for the planning and orders applications in early 
2008, including the Environmental Statement.  
 
Halton Lea North Bus Station 
The refurbishment of Halton Lea North bus station is now complete and 
the facility was re-opened on 21st September as a high-quality, state-of-
the-art bus station providing better weather protection, comfort and 
safety for passengers. 
 
Quality Corridor 
Work commenced in August on the Birchfield Road section of the quality 
transport corridor.  The scheme will provide improvements to walking, 
cycling and public transport.  Further works are planned to improve 
access and parking at Widnes Station. 
 
Regeneration 
The Department’s involvement in the Widnes Waterfront EDZ and 3MG 
major projects continues.  The first phase of the waterfront boulevard, 
Carterhouse Way, was completed in August providing access to new 
development sites.  Design work for the western highway access 
connecting the 3MG development to Speke Road / Knowsley 

Page 18



Highways, Transportation & Logistics 2 

Expressway is ongoing.  
 

 

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES 

 

Beacon Bid – Improving Accessibility 
Halton along with its 5 Merseyside district partners and Merseytravel 
have submitted a Beacon Status Bid under the theme of Improving 
Accessibility. An announcement is expected In October on whether the 
Bid is to be short listed for the next and more detailed stage. This would 
involve a visit to the area by the Assessment Panel. 
 
Street Lighting 
The structural testing programme for street lighting columns has begun 
and this highlighted a number of columns requiring immediate removal 
due to being unsafe.  As further work is carried out it is likely more 
columns will need removing.  The DfT has recently amended the funding 
criteria for street lighting to be based on the number of columns over 40 
years old instead of 30 years old, and ironically the columns that have 
failed are about 30 years old. 
 
Emergency Planning 
An order has been placed for an Anemometer (wind monitor) to be 
installed on the Runcorn Approach to the Silver Jubilee Bridge. It is 
intended to have it operational by the end of the year.  The next stage 
will be to link it automatically to the Variable Message Signs (VMS) to 
close the bridge to high sided vehicles when the wind reaches a certain 
threshold, initially this will be done manually via the Network 
Management Section or the Contact Centre outside office hours. 
 
Traffic Management Act (TMA) 
Further sections of the TMA are due to come into force from the 1 April 
2008, the biggest impact will be the requirement for internal sections to 
issue notices for their works as the Statutory Undertakers already do.  In 
addition, the Council is required to inspect all works (including our own) 
to the same standard, therefore we will be required carry out more 
inspections.  A number of other authorities are employing additional 
inspectors due to the large increase in work.  The DfT and NJUG 
(National Joint Utilities Group) will be monitoring to check we are treating 
everyone working on the Network equally. 
 
School Travel Pathfinder Bid 
The Council is intending to submit a bid to Government to improve 
access for children and young people, in particular from low-income 
households, to a wider range of education, training and work based 
learning facilities within the Borough. 
 

Sustainable Transport Strategy 
 A 10 year strategy is being developed to encourage the use of 

Page 19



Highways, Transportation & Logistics 3 

sustainable modes of travel within the Borough to complement the work 
proposed in the Mersey Gateway project. 
 

Consultations  
The Council has responded to consultations on: 
 

• Options for the Local Government Formula Grant Distribution.  
Changes to the formula used to calculate highway maintenance 
may result in a significant decrease in funding through the 
settlement. 

• The Local Transport Bill 

• Strengthening Local Delivery – Modernising the Traffic 
Commissioner System  

• Local Transport Planning – The Next Steps 

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 

 
Total 

 
4 

 

 
2 

 

 
1 

 

 
1 

 

Please refer to Appendix 1 for further details. 
 

 
 
4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 
 
 

 
Total 

 
1 

 

 
1 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

Please refer to Appendix 2 for further details. 

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW 

 

There have been no service reviews this quarter. 
 

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Total 

 
2 

 

 
1 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

Data in respect of BVPI 215a (Average number of days taken to repair 
street lighting fault - Non DNO) is not currently available and has not 
been assigned a traffic light. For details of 215b please refer to Appendix 
3. 

Page 20



Highways, Transportation & Logistics 4 

 
 

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 
Total 

 
22 

 

 
20 

 

 
2 

 

 
0 

 

18 of the 22 “Other” indicators will only be reported at year end, but at 
the half year stage none are expected not to meet target. Details of the 
remaining indicators can be found in Appendix 4. 
 

 
7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
 

There are no current LPSA targets for this service. 
 

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
 

During the production of the 2007-08 Service Plan, the service was 
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.  
 
Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have 
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment 
measures is monitored, and reported in Appendix 5. 

 

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
 

During 2006/07 the service was required to undertake an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that 
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in Appendix 
6. 

 

10.0 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 2- Progress against Other Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 3- Progress against Key Performance Indicators  
Appendix 4- Progress against Other Performance Indicators 
Appendix 5- Progress against Risk Treatment Measures 
Appendix 6- Progress against High Priority Equality Actions 
Appendix 7- Financial Statement 
Appendix 8- Explanation of traffic light symbols  

 

 

 

 

Page 21



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

5 

 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

HT 01 Mersey Gateway – to complete the procedural 
process to achieve all necessary orders for 
the construction of Mersey Gateway.   

Publish orders and 
applications by January 
2008.  

Public consultation now complete. 
Complications and subsequent delay 
in completing the Traffic model mean 
that the Orders and Planning 
Application will now be submitted in 
March 2008. 

HT 04 Local Transport Plan 2 – to deliver the 
implementation programme of LTP2, submit 
Progress Reports as required by DfT and 
monitor progress against the Council’s 
transport objectives. 

APR 2006/07-07/08 in 
preparation.   
Requirements yet to be 
confirmed by DfT. 

 

Mid Term Review required in July 
2008. Review of Financial and 
Mandatory indicators submitted to 
Department for Transport in July 2007  

HT 05 Silver Jubilee Bridge Maintenance Major 
Scheme – to secure funding, complete 
procurement and deliver works. 

Funding secured (£47m 
through MSB or £14.4m 
through PRN), 
procurement means 
established, delivery 
programme initiated by 
31.05.08 
 

 

Detailed response to Major Scheme 
Bid still awaited from DfT. Will 
inevitably require further work by HBC 
before programme entry awarded, 
though details of this yet to be 
outlined by DfT. 
PRN bid for 3 year maintenance 
programme submitted to DfT. 
Response expected Dec. 2007. 

HT 06 Vehicle Fleet Replacement Programme – 
Implement and complete tendering process. 

Tenders advertised. 
Contracts awarded by 
31.03.08  

Report going to Exec Board Sub on 
18/10/07   detailing the outcome of a 
financial options appraisal on the most   
advantageous financial funding 
method for the Fleet Replacement 
Programme. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

2



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

6 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

HT 07 Improving the quality and accessibility of 
public transport services within Halton 

Introduce 24/7 booking 
service via Contact 
Centre and website by 31 
March 2008 

 

Software purchased and installed. 
System being trialled on HBC fleet 
vehicles in Quarter 3. 

 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

3



 APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
      Highways, Transportation & Logistics   

7 

 

 

Target

Data not available for Q2.

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

215a Average days to repair street light faults: non DNO
Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

No data for 

same Qtr 

last year

0

5

10

15

20

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

The DNO has improved their standard of service recently (This may not be maintained through the rest of the year, which is 

dependent upon weather and workload)

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

215b Average days to repair street light faults: DNO
Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 24



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

8 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

                 Service Delivery Indicators. 

BVPI 
99a (i) 
 
 

No. of people killed or seriously 
injured (KSI) in road traffic collisions.  

 
77 

 
71 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

BVPI 
99b (i) 
 
 

No. of children (<16) killed or 
seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic 
collisions.  

 
13 

 
13 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

BVPI 
99c (i) 
 
 

No. of people slightly injured in road 
traffic collisions.  

 
514 

 
544 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

BVPI 
223 
 

Percentage of principal road network 
where structural maintenance should 
be considered  

 
1.7% 

 
2.0% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

BVPI 
224a 
 

Condition of Non-Principal classified 
Roads 
(% non-principal classified road 
network where structural 
maintenance should be considered) 

 
6.1% 

 
6.0% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

BVPI 
224b 
 

Condition of Unclassified Roads 
(% unclassified road network where 
structural maintenance should be 
considered) 

 
8% 

 
9% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

BVPI 
187 
 

% of footways not in good condition 
(across categories 1 & 2) 
 

 
24.6% 

 
24% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI  
01 
 

Damage to roads and pavements (% 
dangerous damage repaired within 
24 hours) 

 
99.71% 

 
98% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

5



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

9 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

BVPI 
102 
 

Local bus service (passenger 
journeys per year) 

 
6.07m 

 
6.44m 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI  
02 
 

(a) No of sites with new bus shelters. 
 
 
 
(b) No of sites with replacement  

bus shelters. 

35 
 
 
 
40 

22 
 
 
 
48 

Annual 
figure 

 
 
Annual 
figure 

 

 

 

HT LI  
03  
 

Percentage of schools with School 
Travel Plans in place. 
 

 
53% 

 
70% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI  
04 
 

Percentage of employers (> 100 
employees) with Green Travel Plans 
in place 

 
36% 

 
21% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI 
05  
 

Proportion of LGV’s that pass the 
annual MOT test first time 

 
84% 

 
 90% 

 
100% 

 

 
Target exceeded 

HT LI 
06 
 

Proportion of workshop jobs 
attributed to non-scheduled 
maintenance 

 
17% 

 
25% 

 
26.5% 

 

 

The level of unscheduled maintenance 
has risen due to an ageing fleet and the 
associated levels of increased 
maintenance required. 

                 Fair Access Indicators.   

BVPI 
165 
 
 

% of pedestrian crossings with 
facilities for disabled people.  
 
 

 
87.8% 

 

 
100% 

 
67.3 

 

 

We are carrying out work to improve the 
pedestrian crossings, however the 
indicator is due to be revised again and 
we are awaiting new guidance, which 
could have a cost implication. 

BVPI 
100 

No. of temporary traffic control days 
caused by roadworks per km 

 
0.3 days 

 
0.5 days 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

6



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

10 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

BVPI 
178 
 

% of footpaths and ROWs that are 
easy to use. 
 

94.2%  
96% 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI 07 
 

No. of passengers on community 
based accessible transport. 

 
121465 

 
155,000 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI 08  
 

% of bus stops with Quality Corridor 
accessibility features. (No. of stops – 
603)  

 
31.7% 

 
27% 
(162) 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

                 Cost & Efficiency Indicators. 

HT LI  
09 
 

Number of third party compensation 
claims received due to alleged 
highway / footway defects 

 
121 

 
105 

Annual 
figure 

 

 

HT LI 
10  
 

Increase MOT test facility turnover by 
5% per annum 

 
£144624 

 
+ 5% 
 

 
£41304 
(Q2 only)  

 
Second quarter target exceeded 

 
 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

7



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

11 

 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 
Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

HT05 Risk Identified: 
Absence of Major Maintenance funding due 
to lack of positive DfT response to Major 
Scheme Bid 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
Continue to make case to DfT regarding 
consequences of continued underfunding; 
progress 3-year parallel bid through the 
PRN Major Maintenance route; early 
investigation of options for delivery through 
Public Private Partnership 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
N/a 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DfT response to 3 year parallel bid expected Dec. 2007. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

8



APPENDIX SIX – PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

12 

HIGH Priority Actions 
(Responsible Officer) 

Target  
 

Progress 
(Traffic 
lights)* 

 

Commentary 

Transport Co-ordination (David Hall) 
 
Collect more evidence 
 
 
 
 
Ensure robust monitoring arrangements 
 
 
 
 
Publish more comprehensive assessment results 
 

 
 

Mar 2008 
 
 
 
 

Mar 2009 
 
 
 
 

Mar 2009 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
Work is progressing on initiatives undertaken by Mobility 
Management Team. Work is underway to implement a more 
robust monitoring framework through the use of focus groups 
and establishment of a Transport Board.   
 
As above. 
 
 
 
 
As above. 

Transport Policy and Planning (Jonathan Farmer) 
 
Make monitoring arrangements 
 
 
 
 
Publish assessment results 
 
 

 
 

Mar 2009 
 
 
 
 

Mar 2009 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
Monitoring arrangements in place for the three groups 
identified (disabled, gender and age). 
 
 
 
Results on course to be published on website. 

 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

9



APPENDIX SEVEN – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

13 

HIGHWAYS , TRANSPORTATION & LOGISTICS 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

 

Expenditure 

     

Employees 3,300 1,631 1,461 170 1,461 
Premises Support 260 0 0 0 0 
Other Premises 152 71 59 12 61 
Hired & Contracted 
Services 

246 123 100 23 166 

Supplies & Services 358 144 131 13 201 
Highways Insurance 639 0 0 0 0 
Street Lighting 1,694 540 531 9 679 
Highways 
Maintenance 

2,199 475 462 13 604 

Bridges 113 27 26 1 26 
Eastern Relief Road 
(met by grant) 

205 111 111 0 138 

Other Transport 248 126 116 10 136 
Central Support 
Services 

540 0 0 0 0 

Departmental 
Support Services 

284 0 0 0 0 

NRA Levy 55 28 28 0 28 
Subsidised Bus 
Routes 

654 327 307 20 656 

Out of Zone 
Transport 

144 30 27 3 45 

Grants to Voluntary 
Organisations 

114 57 57 0 114 

Asset Charges 4,988 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditure 16,193 3,690 3,416 274 4,315 

      
Income      

Sales -43 -29 -37 8 -37 
Out of Zone 
Transport 

-144 -72 -67 (5) -67 

Other Fees & 
Charges 

-108 -33 -40 7 -40 

Support Service 
Recharges 

-979 0 0 0 0 

Grants & 
Reimbursements 

-406 -333 -337 4 -337 

Recharge to Capital -638 -16 -21 5 -21 

Total Income -2,318 -483 -502 19 -502 

      

Net Expenditure 13,876 3,207 2,914 293 3,813 

      

Page 30



APPENDIX SEVEN – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

14 

Comments on the above figures: 
 
In overall terms revenue spending at the end of quarter 2 is below budget.  This is mainly due to a 
number of expenditure budget areas which are underspent at this stage.  
 
Staffing is underspent mainly in the Highways Engineers section as a result of staff turnover and 
vacancies for professional staff being slow to fill. In addition, there are also a number of vacancies 
within Transportation, resulting from staff leaving and secondments to other sections. The pay 
increase is still to be agreed for the year 07.08 which will also account for the variance.   
 
With regards to underspends to date on the works budgets – Street Lighting, and Highways 
Maintenance, these budgets usually incur expenditure towards the end of the financial year due to 
the nature of the work undertaken.  As a result the budgets will be spent by the financial year-end.  
 
Hired and Contracted Services is underspent to date due in part to the fact that there is no 
requirement to produce an annual LTP progress report this financial year. However, this budget 
has been committed elsewhere and will be spent by the financial year-end.  
 
Subsidised Bus Routes is underspent due to quarterly charges not yet received from other 
authorities and Merseytravel.  This budget will be fully spent at the financial year-end, as indicated 
by the actual including commitment figure. 
 
At this stage it is anticipated that overall spend will be in line with the Departmental budget by the 
financial year-end. 
 
 
Capital Projects as at 30th September 2007 
 

      Actual  
        To 
   30th Sep 
     £’000 

    07-08 
   Capital 
Allocation 
    £’000 

    08-09 
   Capital 
 Allocation 
    £’000 

     09-10 
     Capital 
   Allocation 
       £’000 

Local Transport Plan     
     
Bridges & Highway Maintenance     
Bridge Strengthening - Calvers 0 150           0              0 
A533 Desoto Road Railway Bridge 119 120           0              0 
A533 Widnes Pedestrian Subway 4 30           0              0 
A533 Widnes Approach Viaduct 308 284           0              0 
A533 Brook Place Bridge 0 67           0              0 
SJB Complex & Associated Structures 11 68           0              0 
Other Bridges 2 60           0              0 
HBC Bridges LTP Staff Costs 0 147           0              0 
Seconded Staff Waterman 73 72           0              0 
Retentions on Contracts from 04.05 1 20           0              0 
Carriageway Reconstruction Major – 
PRN Minor 

108 250           0              0 

Carriageway Reconstruction MLI 4 150 0 0 
Footway Reconstruction PRN 10 80 0 0 
Independent Footpath Network (205k) 0 75 0 0 
Footway Reconstruction MLI 0 100 0 0 
Carriageway Reconstruction Other 
Roads 

73 110 0 0 

Footway Reconstruction Other Roads 0 51 0 0 
Carriageway Major Drainage 15 45 0 0 

Page 31



APPENDIX SEVEN – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

15 

Cycleways 34 34 0 0 
HBC Highways LTP Staff costs 0 90 0 0 
Seconded Staff Waterman 0 39 0 0 
Lighting 4 150 0 0 
    0 

Total Bridges & Highway 
Maintenance 

766 2,192              0              0 

     
Capital     
LSS – PR Safety Schemes Barriers 0 17 0 0 
Local safety schemes – Watkinson 
Way 

22 89 0 0 

Walking (Quality Corridor) 10 158 0 0 
Walking (Outside Corridor) 4 33 0 0 
Cycling (Quality Corridor) 0 161 0 0 
Cycling (Outside Corridor) 0 49 0 0 
Bus Route – Quality Corridor 1 170 0 0 
Direct Contribution to Regeneration 0 40 0 0 
A56/Eastern Expressway 
Improvements 

0 130 0 0 

Upton Lane Distributor Match Funding 6 60 0 0 
Seconded Staff Waterman 38 75 0 0 
Minor Works Staff Costs 0 199 0 0 

Total Capital 81 1,181           0              0 

     
Lighting     
Variable Message Signing 67 167           0              0 
Traffic Signal Upgrades 10 27           0              0 
Minor Works Staff Costs 0 18           0              0 
     

Total Lighting 77 212 0 0 

     
Transport     
LSS – Minor Works 9 65           0              0 
School Travel Plan Support 1 19            0               0 
Bus Shelter Improvements 0 33            0               0 
Intergrated Transport Improvements 37 80            0               0 
Accessibility Buses 0 145            0               0 
Access Improvements 9 33            0               0 
PRW 2 63            0               0 
Greenways 0 40            0               0 
Transportation LTP Staff Costs 2 87            0               0 
     

Total Transportation 60 565            0               0 

     

Total Local Transport Plan 984     4,150            0               0 

     
Halton Borough Council     
Mersey Gateway 2,666 3,750     2,500 1,550 
Flood Defence 0 50 50 50 
Street lighting 0 200 200 200 
Peelhouse Lane Link Compensation 0 160 0 0 

Page 32



APPENDIX SEVEN – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

16 

Total Halton Borough Council 2,666 4,160     2,750 1,800 

 
 
0 
4 
1 
0 

 
 

          18 
        180 

743 
39        
 

 
 

           0 
           0 
           0 
          0 

 
 

              0  
              0 
              0        
              0 

 

5 980 0 0 

    

 
Section 106 Schemes 
Royal Avenue Car Parking 
Widnes Station Access/Car Park 
Upton Rocks Distributor Road 
B & Q Site Public Transport 

 
Total Section 106 Schemes 

 
Section 278 Schemes 
Keckwick Lane 
 
 

 
0 

 
14 

 
0 

 
0 

 
 

Comments on the above figures 

 

It is anticipated that the overall capital spending will be in line with the capital allocations by the 
financial year-end. 

 
 
LSP, External or Grant Funded Items as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

 
Accessible Transport 
Links to Work 
Neighbourhood Travel 
Team 

 
24 
20 
60 

 
     12 
     10 
     30 

 
    12 
      4 
    27 

 
       0 
       6 
       3 

 
     12 
       4 
     27 

Total Local Strategic 
Partnerships Funding 

104 52 43 9 43 

      
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



APPENDIX SEVEN – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

17 

 

Operational Services Division 2007/2008.      

      

Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007.     

      

            

  Annual Budget  Actual Variance Actual 

  Budget To Date To Date To Date Including 

        (overspend) Committed 

          Items 

           

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

           

Expenditure          

Employees 1,140 555 523 32 523 

Building Maintenance 51 0 0 0 0 

Operational Building 125 38 38 0 38 

Other Premises Costs 164 93 90 3 90 

Supplies & Services 107 43 48 (5) 48 

Hired & Contracted Services 95 48 50 (2) 50 

Transport Recharges 197 100 98 2 98 

Transport - Insurance Recharge 304 153 153 0 153 

Transport - Contract Hire 1,497 749 744 5 744 

Transport - Road Fund Licence 8 4 1 3 1 

Transport - Fuel 420 210 202 8 202 

Transport - Tyres 70 35 43 (8) 43 

Transport - Casual Hire 20 10 36 (26) 36 

Transport - Vehicle Parts 321 163 185 (22) 185 

Transport - Sub-Contractors 38 20 19 1 19 

Transport - Garage Equipment & Consumables 35 18 23 (5) 23 

Central Support Costs 237 0 0 0 0 

Internal Support Costs 262 98 98 0 98 

Asset Charges 213 88 88 0 88 

           

Total Expenditure 5,304 2,425 2,439 (14) 2,439 

           

Income          

           

Miscellaneous Sales 0 0 -5 5 -5 

Fees & Charges -138 -76 -90 14 -90 

Rents -103 -52 -47 (5) -47 

Support Service Income -943 -136 -136 0 -136 

Reimbursement & Other Grants -307 -154 -143 (11) -143 

Transport - Contract Hire -2,377 -1,192 -1,211 19 -1,211 

Transport - Fuel -444 -222 -223 1 -223 

Transport - Tyres -84 -42 -50 8 -50 

Page 34



APPENDIX SEVEN – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

18 

Transport - Casual Hire -31 -16 -47 31 -47 

Transport - Vehicle & Plant Repairs -354 -166 -172 6 -172 

Community Meals -114 -58 -46 (12) -46 

Client Transport -413 -184 -191 7 -191 

            

           

Total Income -5,308 -2,298 -2,361 63 -2,361 

           

Net Expenditure -4 127 78 49 78 

            

      

Comments      

      

1. Overall the division is operating as anticipated     

2. The underspend on labour is a result of a vacant post     

3. The demand for casual hire vehicles has been higher than anticipated.   

4. The overspend on vehicle parts is a result of delays in the procurement of the new refuse fleet. 

      

      

Page 35



APPENDIX EIGHT – EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS 
Highways, Transportation & Logistics 

19 

 
 

 
The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner: 
 
  Objective Performance Indicator 
    

Green Indicates that the objective 
is on course to be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe. 
 

Indicates that the target is 
on course to be achieved.   

Amber Indicates that it is unclear 
at this stage, due to a lack 
of information or a key 
milestone date being 
missed, whether the 
objective will be achieved 
within the appropriate 
timeframe. 
 

Indicates that it is either 
unclear at this stage or 
too early to state whether 
the target is on course to 
be achieved. 
 

Red 

 

Indicates that it is highly 
likely or certain that the 
objective will not be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe.  
 

Indicates that the target 
will not be achieved 
unless there is an 
intervention or remedial 
action taken. 
 

 

 

Page 36



Environment & Regulatory Services 1 

QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  MMOONNIITTOORRIINNGG  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

DIRECTORATE: Environment 
 
SERVICE: Environment & Regulatory Services 
 
PERIOD:   Quarter 2 half-year to period-end 30 September 2007. 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Environment & Regulatory 
Services Department second quarter period up to 30 September 2007. It 
describes key developments and progress against all objectives and 
performance indicators for the service. 
 
The way in which traffic light symbols have been used to reflect progress 
to date is explained in Appendix 7. 
 
It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of Policy and 
Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators that are not 
directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey. 

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Environmental Health, Enforcement and Building Control Division 
Nothing to report. 
 
Planning and Policy Division 
In July the Planning Delivery Grant sums were announced, Halton was 
awarded £223,719. This sum rewards performance in the following 
areas Development Control, High Housing Demand/Growth Areas and 
Growth Points, Plan Making and E-Planning. 
 
The key developments in the production of the LDF (Local Development 
Framework) over the second quarter are: the Provision of Open Space 
SPD is to be adopted imminently; the Planning for Risk and Southern 
Widnes Regeneration Area SPDs have commenced preparation with 
consultation on SA Scoping having been completed; and the Preferred 
options stage of both the Core Strategy and the Waste DPD 
(Development Plan Document) will be delayed until next year. 
 
Summary of major applications on-hand or decided over quarter: 
These applications are those that result in the biggest changes to the 
built infrastructure of the Borough. More information on any application 
can be found on the online planning system 
http://www.halton.gov.uk/planningapps. 
 

• 06/00972/FUL Application for 40. no dwellings on Heath Road 

Page 37



Environment & Regulatory Services 2 

Fire Station site. Informal hearing held, awaiting decision. 

• 07/00555/FUL Application for 16 houses no. courtyard houses, 
Dawsons Dance Centre, Lunts Heath Road, Widnes referred to 
Secretary of State, awaiting decision. 

• 07/00363/FUL Proposed construction 4. no railway sidings, 
temporary access road for construction traffic from Halebank 
Road. Been referred to Secretary of State, who is not calling it in. 

• 07/00435/OUT Outline application (with all matters reserved) for 
residential development of up to 38 no two storey houses on land 
off Hallwood Link Road, Runcorn. 

• 07/00550/FUL Proposed two storey residential care home for 
elderly, Coronation Drive, Widnes 

• 07/00611/FUL Proposed leisure facility consisting of cinema, 
bowling alley, ice rink and laser zone and ancillary A1/A3 uses. 
Venture Fields in Widnes. 

• 07/00615/FUL Proposed demolition of existing shopping centre 
and community centre and construction of new community centre 
and new village square with retail and commercial units and 39 
no. residential apartments. Castlefields Shopping Parade and 
Land adjacent, Runcorn. CDS Housing Association. 

• 07/00605/REM Reserved matters application (relating to 
05/00910/OUT) for proposed residential development consisting 
of 8 no townhouses and 6 no.apartments on land off Percival 
Lane, Runcorn. 

• 07/00624/FUL Proposed variation to planning consent 
05/00804/FUL with amended dimensions for blower building and 
revised landscape scheme together with the provision of an 
additional control kiosk for sludge mixing by United Utilities at 
Mersey Valley Processing Centre, Bennetts Lane, Widnes. 

• 07/00649/FUL Proposed residential development comprising 24 
no. two storey houses and flats. Land at Princes Close, 
Castlefields, Runcorn by LHT Housing Association. 

• 07/00598/ADJWST Adjoining authority consultation by Cheshire 
County Council for development of a resource recovery park on 
land adjacent to the Manchester Ship Canal at Ince Marshes. 

• 07/00716/FUL Proposed four storey mixed use development 
comprising 24 no. two bed apartments and 4 no. retail units at 
88A-92 Albert Road, Widnes. 

• 07/00726/FUL Proposed construction of 24 no.dwellings on Land 
at Brookvale Avenue North, Runcorn. 

• 07/00600/REM Proposed B1 Office Park with car parking/lighting 
and ancillary developments at Daresbury Park Development Ltd, 
Runcorn. 

• 07/00681/OUT Outline application (with all matters reserved) for 
development of Sandymoor Local Centre including dwellings and 
3,000 sqm of commercial, retail, health, recreation and leisure 
floorspace on land off Pitts Heath Lane, Runcorn. 

• 07/00684/FUL Proposed erection of 5 no B1/B2/B8 commercial 
units with associated access on land adjacent to Heron Business 

Page 38



Environment & Regulatory Services 3 

Park, Tanhouse Lane, Widnes (phase 2 of Heron Business Park). 

• 07/00692/FUL Proposed demolition/rebuilding of existing canteen, 
revised entrance foyer and car parking, DHL Excel Supply Chain, 
Aston Lane North, Runcorn. 

• 07/00714/FUL Proposed erection of three storey block comprising 
20 no two bed apartments at Runcorn Service Station, Bridge 
Street, Runcorn. 

• 07/00739/FUL Proposed demolition of existing buildings and 
erection of 3 no. five storey buildings with basement parking 
comprising 108 no. one and two bedroom apartments at former 
Cemex Building, St Mary’s Road, Widnes. 

• 07/00734/ADJ Consultation by St Helens Council for erection of 
new rugby league stadium (D2 and ancillary uses), superstore 
(A1) including filling station, demolition of buildings, remediation of 
site and construction of access roads including new roundabout 
and junction onto St Helens Linkway, Former UGB Site Peasley 
Cross, Lane Street, St Helens. 

 
Landscape Services 
Progress is being made on a restructure of the Landscape Services 
Division.  A draft structure has been drawn up and job descriptions have 
been written for the new posts and will shortly be evaluated.  
 
Waste Management Division 
Kerbside Recycling Pilot Scheme 
 
At it’s meeting of the 19th July 2007, the Executive Board approved the 
principles of the Council’s Waste Action Plan and the delivery of a pilot 
kerbside recycling study contained within it. The Waste Management 
Division have put into place plans for the delivery of the pilot scheme 
that will see the kerbside collection of plastics, cans, paper, card and 
glass from approximately 6,000 households in the borough. The pilot 
scheme will commence on 22nd October 2007 and the results will be 
used to inform future decisions on the extension of the service to other 
areas of the borough.   
 
Waste Contract Procurement 
 
During this quarter, tenders were invited by the Waste Management 
Division for both Halton’s Landfill Services Contract and a short term 
Recycling and Household Waste Centres (RHHWC) Contract.  An 
evaluation of submissions received for both contracts will be carried out 
in October 2007, with both contracts commencing on 1st February 2008. 
 
Waste Prevention and Enforcement 
 
Car Clear Amnesty - In July the Division ran a ‘Car Clear Amnesty’, 
whereby owners of old /unwanted cars could contact the Councils who 
would arrange for a licensed contractor to take away unwanted vehicles 
for safe and final disposal in accordance with the End of Vehicles 

Page 39



Environment & Regulatory Services 4 

regulations.  The Amnesty was aimed at clearing the boroughs streets 
and neighbourhoods of old and unwanted cars in a safe manner with 
environmental controls and will be repeated again in October 2007. 
 
The Waste Carriers Roadshow – In September a scheme aimed at 
increasing traders’ awareness of their responsibilities with regards to 
carrying waste, the disposal of waste and Duty of Care legislation was 
carried out jointly with the Environment Agency. 

  
Operation Marble – For a 3 week period in July, daily checks were 
carried out on Widnes scrap yards after increasing reports of stolen 
scrap being transported to yards/dealers. This scheme was carried out 
with the Environment Agency and Cheshire Police. 
 
Up to the end of this quarter, the Division has undertaken 36 detailed 
investigations into environmental offences. There have also been 15 
businesses or individuals cautioned and interviewed, resulting in 4 
prosecution cases being taken forward for prosecution.  A further 3 
statutory notices, 30 warning letters and 254 advisory letters have been 
issued to businesses and individuals regarding environmental practices, 
procedures and advice.   
 

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES 

 

Environmental Health, Enforcement and Building Control Division 
Nothing to report. 
 
Planning and Policy Division 
The Halton Core Strategy Preferred Options stage was anticipated to 
take place during autumn 2007, however this is likely to be put back until 
summer 2008. The Joint Merseyside Waste DPD (a document carried 
out in partnership with all the Merseyside authorities) was due for public 
consultation in early 2008, however this is also likely to be delayed. 
 
Proposed Changes to Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) will be published 
in November 2007 and it is then expected to move to adoption in early 
2008. RSS will be an important consideration in the formulation of the 
Halton Core Strategy, particularly in relation to matters of employment 
land and housing. 
 
Staffing of the Spatial Planning has emerged as a problem with 
departures reducing the team to 3. At the start of the LDF process there 
were 6 posts. This is of importance because award of Government grant 
is to move from Development Control performance to an emphasis upon 
plan making. 
 
The Planning White Paper 2007 proposes further reforms to the planning 
system. This includes the replacement of PPS11 and 12, the introduction 
of an additional stage of public consultation prior to submission of DPDs 

Page 40



Environment & Regulatory Services 5 

and the publication of national infrastructure policy statements, such as 
for airports. The PPS on climate change is to be finalised. The Housing 
Green Paper is also of importance and has main objectives to provide: 
1) more homes 2) sustainable, well designed and greener homes 3) 
more affordable homes. As part of this process, authorities can bid for 
funding to become housing Growth Points or develop eco-towns. 
 
Landscape Services 
It has now become apparent that the September 2005 locally negotiated 
pay scales for front line staff who had formerly been paid a ‘Best Value 
Supplement’ is no longer defensible in terms of equal pay claims. 
Therefore front line staff within the Landscape Services and Waste 
Management Divisions will have to go through Job Evaluation. A full staff 
meeting was held on the 7th September 2007 and letters have been sent 
out from the SD Environment to all affected employees. 
 
Waste Management Division 
The Division is currently considering a Government consultation entitled 
Recycle on the Go.  The consultation seeks views on measures to help 
stimulate recycling in public places. The proposals in the consultation 
are voluntary and principally concern how litter is collected for disposal 
or recycling in places that the public has access.  It contains a proposed 
voluntary code of practice and an associated good practice guide.  The 
consultation applies to England and the closing date for responses is 2nd 
November 2007. 

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 

 
Total 

 
27 

 

 
13 

 

 
10 

 

 
4 

 

Most objectives and milestones are on track to be achieved, although 
there are delays affecting progress of some, in particular ER04 (the 
preparation and adoption of the local development plan). Further details 
can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

 
 
4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 
 
 

 
Total 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

There are no “Other” objectives for this service. 

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW 

Page 41



Environment & Regulatory Services 6 

 

Environmental Health, Enforcement and Building Control Division 
Nothing to report. 
 
Planning and Policy Division 
Nothing to report. 
 
Landscape Services 
Nothing to report. 
 
Waste Management Division 
Nothing to report 

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Total 

 
15 

 

 
9 

 

 
5 

 

 
1 

 

Progress towards targets is generally good although some concern is 
expressed in respect of some areas of performance in Planning and 
abandoned vehicles. Details can be found in Appendix 2. 
 

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 
Total 

 
19 

 

 
13 

 

 
3 

 

 
3 

 

Most “Other” performance indicators are on track to meet their targets. 
Please refer to Appendix 3 for further details. 
 

 
7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
 

Progress against the 2 LPSA targets for this service can be found in 
Appendix 4. 

 

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
 

During the production of the 2007-08 Service Plan, the service was 
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.  
 
Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have 
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment 
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring 
report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
For details please refer to Appendix 5. 

Page 42



Environment & Regulatory Services 7 

 

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
 

During 2006/07 the service was required to undertake an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that 
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the 
quarterly monitoring report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
There are no High priority actions for this service, therefore, there is no 
progress to report. 

 

10.0 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators  
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators 
Appendix 4- Progress against LPSA targets 
Appendix 5- Progress against Risk Treatment Measures 
Appendix 6- Financial Statement 
Appendix 7- Explanation of traffic light symbols  

 

 

 

 

Page 43



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

8 

 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

ER 01 To maintain a co-ordinated and robust 
regulatory/enforcement regime operable and 
that authorised development is implemented 
in accordance with approved documents and 
that inappropriate unauthorised activity is 
quickly addressed. 

To produce and have 
adopted a revised cross-
cutting Enforcement 
Policy, January 2008 

 

The structure and internal lines of 
communication have been developed 
and are in place. Progress is being 
made in reviewing key working 
practices to ensure that regulatory 
enforcement is carried out in a 
coordinated manner. 

ER 02 Continue Borough-wide Playground 
Refurbishment Project to ensure compliance 
with national standard 

Establish funding and 
agree 2 playground 
refurbishments, June 
2007 
 
Monitor and report the 
success of playground 
refurbishment March 
2008 

 
 
 

 

The two playgrounds are King George 
V in Widnes and Town Park in 
Runcorn. 
 
 
The refurbishment of the next 
playgrounds is being planned. A 
report will be submitted in 2008. 
 

ER 03 Natural Assets Strategy - Publish the 
reviewed and revised Strategy and 
commence implementation of the relevant 
aspects of the new 5 year Action Plan. 

Open Wigg Island Visitor 
Centre, May 2007 
 
 
 
 
 
Secure funding, from 
National Lottery Fund, for 
Hale Park restoration 
plan, July 2007 
 
 
Hale Park restoration 
complete, March 2008 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Due to problems getting an Electricity 
Utility Company to connect the 
building to an electricity supply the 
May target was missed. The Visitor 
Centre is now scheduled to open on 
the 31st October 2007.  
 
Funding was secured to enable a full 
restoration plan to be drawn up and a 
submission made to NLF for full 
implementation funding. 
 
   
It is anticipated that the bid for stage 2 
(implementation) funding will be ready 
for the deadline date in March 2008. 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

9 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

 
Secure 7 Green Flag 
Awards, August 2007 
(An additional site, 
Victoria Park, in for the 
award) 

 

 

 
Only six Green Flag Awards were 
secured in August 2007. Runcorn 
Town Hall and Victoria Promenade 
failed to get the award. 
 
Victoria Park did succeed in gaining a 
Green Flag Award for the first time. 
 

ER 04 To prepare and adopt a local development 
framework (LDF) and to review the LDF on a 
regular basis ensuring that an up to date 
development plan is available (statutory 
requirement). To achieve this by producing 
the following targets:- 

Halton Core Strategy 
Preferred Options stage 
July/ August 2007 
 
Adoption of the Halton 
Lea Town Centre 
Strategy SPD, 
September 2007 
 
Adoption of Runcorn Old 
Town SPD Town Centre 
Strategy, September 
2007 
 
Adoption of the Provision 
of Open Space SPD 
June 2007 
 
Adoption of the Halebank 
SPD March 2008 
 
 
Adoption of the Ditton 
Rail Freight SPD March 
2008 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

After a period of success, there have 
now been several delays in the 
production of documents that form 
part of the Halton Local Development 
Framework. There are a variety of 
reasons for this as follows. 
 
1) Under staffing.  
The loss of 2 members of staff and 
the deletion of an additional post from 
the Spatial Planning team structure is 
partly responsible for delays to the 
Halton Core Strategy DPD and 
predominantly responsible for delays 
in the adoption of the Halton Lea, 
Runcorn Old Town, Open Space and 
Design of New Residential 
Development SPDs. The quantity of 
documents in the LDS and timescales 
for their production was already 
subject to very ambitious targets for a 
fully staffed team. 
 
2) Delays in the provision of specialist 
technical advice. 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

10 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

 
Adoption of the 
Sandymoor SPD, 
August 2008 
 
Adoption of the Design of 
New Residential 
Development SPD, 
November 2007 
 
Adoption of the Planning 
for Risk SPD, April 2008 
 
Adoption of the Southern 
Widnes Regeneration 
Area SPD November 
2008 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

The Sandymoor SPD has been 
delayed by the amount of time need to 
carry out a detailed flood risk 
assessment of the area. This has 
been paid for by English Partnerships. 
 
3) A combination of the above 
All of the above have contributed 
towards delays in the production of 
the Core Strategy Preferred Options 
stage. 

ER 05 To develop and implement a strategy for the 
three town centres in order to maximise the 
social, economic and cultural well-being of the 
local population 

Produce strategy 
document and submit to 
Exec. Board for approval. 
December 2007. 

 

The issues raised in the commentary 
to ER04, above, are also applicable 
here. The most relevant is the staffing 
issue. 

ER 06 Review and publish an updated Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy and commence 
implementation of the relevant objectives 
contained within the strategy, so as to secure 
compatibility with wider Merseyside strategy. 

Exercise to Update 
Waste Management 
Strategy, April 2007 
 
 
Consultation on draft 
Updated Strategy, 
Autumn 2007 
 
Adoption of Updated 
Strategy, December 
2007 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Work to update the Council’s Waste 
Management Strategy commenced as 
planned. 
 
 
Consultation on the draft updated 
strategy is on target to take place as 
planned 
 
Although work is continuing on 
updating the Strategy, the timetable 
for the adoption may slip slightly. 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

6



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

11 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

Approval of Waste Action 
Plan, July 2007 
 
Pilot scheme to deliver 
kerbside multi-material 
recycling services 
(subject to the approval 
of the Waste Action 
Plan), October 2007 

 
 

 

See Key Developments 
 
 
See Key Developments 

ER 07 To procure an integrated waste management 
infrastructure/partnership to meet the 
requirements of the Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy 

Halton agreed Contract 
Procurement Strategy 
with Merseyside Waste 
Disposal Authority, 
March 2007 
 
Approval of Inter 
Authority Agreement 
(IAA) to formalise 
partnership arrangement 
with MWDA for the 
procurement of facilities 
and services, July 2007 

 
 
 
 

 

The Strategy was agreed in March 
2007. Progress on the implementation 
of this strategy continues to be made 
on contract procurement with the 
MWDA. 
 
Negotiations are continuing with the 
MWDA, though the timetable for the 
approval of a formal IAA may slip 
slightly. 

ER 08 Develop policy and practice regarding the 
introduction of legislation to ban smoking in 
public places introduce and continue to 
undertake effective balanced enforcement 
and review impact after 12 months and 24 
months with the objective of ensuring 
appropriate smoke free environments. 

Establish Smoking, 
Education & Enforcement 
Team by May 2007. 
 
Complete programme of 
education for all premises 
by July 2007. 

 
 

 

Team established. 
 
 
 
Education programme completed and 
more planned in coming year. 
Policies & practice established and 
reviewed. Compliance high (99%) 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

12 

 

 

Target

Delivery of this function has been and will continue to be interrupted by key members of staff taking maternity leave. 

Alternative staff are being trained to undertake this function but it is likely that this annual target will not be met by the end of 

Q4.

May hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

217
% of pollution control improvements to existing 

installations completed on time Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

There were a large number of major applications that involved entering into complicated legal agreements under Section 

106 of the Town & Country Planning Act, which could not all be resolved within the 13 week timescale. Application 

07/00011/OUT Venture Fields involved several months of negotiation with the Environment Agency before they would 

withdraw their objection. There were 14 applications determined within this quarter of which 8 were determined within 13 

weeks.

May hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

109a
Percentage of major planning applications 

determined within 13 weeks Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 48



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

13 

 

 

Target

There were 55 applications determined within this quarter of which 46 were determined within 8 weeks.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

109b
Percentage of minor planning applications 

determined within 8 weeks Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

There were 159 applications determined in this quarter of which 146 were determined within 8 weeks.

May hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

109c
Percentage of other planning applications 

determined within 8 weeks Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 49



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

14 

 

 

Target

All points on the checklist are now met. Planning have entered into an agreement with Landscape Architects in Landscape 

Services for the provision of design advice on a permanent and continued basis.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

205 Quality of service checklist (%)
Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

The first conservation area appraisal of Halton Village conservation area is expected to be completed this year. This will 

make the 10% target. There are 10 conservation areas in Halton.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

219b
% of conservation areas in the LA with an up to 

date character appraisal Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Same as 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 50



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

15 

 

 

Target

The first conservation area appraisal of Halton Village conservation area is expected to be completed this year. This 

document will have management proposals included. This will make the 10% target. There are 10 conservation areas in 

Halton.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

219c
% of conservation areas with published 

management proposals Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Same as 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

There have been three appeals decided in this period. Two have been allowed:M

06/00758/REM M

06/00651/FULM

and one appeal was dismissed:M

06/00666/FULM

The calculation is therefore (2 / 3) x 100 = 66.6

May hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

204
The % of appeals allowed against the authorities 

decision to refuse planning applications Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 51



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

16 

 

 

Target

This indicator is an estimate only. However, indications are that as Q2 performance is higher than the corresponding period 

last year, the Authority is on track to hit the end of year target.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

82ai % of household waste recycled
Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

This indicator is an estimate only.  The production of garden waste is subject to seasonal variation and as such 

performance is effected by the amount of garden waste produced.  As Q2 performance is higher than the corresponding 

period last year, the Authority is on track to hit the end of year target.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

82bi % of household waste composted
Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

5

10

15

20

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 52



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

17 

 

 

Target

This indicator is an estimate only, and is subject to seasonal variation.  However, indications are that as Q2 performance is 

higher that the corresponding period last year, the Authority is on track to hit the end of year target. 

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

82di % of household waste landfilled
Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

There has been no extension to the number of properties served by a kerbside collection of two recyclables in this Quarter.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

91b
Percentage of residents served by kerbside 

recycling of at least 2 recyclables Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 53



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

18 

 

 

Target

The response times to investigating reports of abandoned vehicles continues to increase. However, due to the 

administrative system used to record incidents, a number of requests were not processed within required timescales, and 

this annual target will not be met.  The administrative systems used to process requests has now been reviewed and it is 

anticipated that all future requests will be investigated within the target timescale. 

Unlikely to 

hit target 

for the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

218a
% of new reports of abandoned vehicles 

investigated within 24 hours Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Red

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

The Council removes all vehicles within 24 hours from the point that it is entitled to.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

218b % of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hours
Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Same as 

this time last 

year

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 54



 APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
     Environment & Regulatory Services 

19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The following indicators will be reported on an annual basis in Q4, 
 
BVPI 106 
BVPI 199a 
BVPI 199b 
BVPI 199c 
BVPI 199d 
BVPI 86 
BVPI 87 
 
 
 

Target

This indicator is an estimate only, and is subject to seasonal variation.  It is unclear at this stage if the Authority is on track 

to hit the end of year target.

May hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

84a
Number of kilograms household waste collected 

per head Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 55



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

20 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

                 Service Delivery Indicators. 

BV 216 
 
 

Identifying Contaminated Land 
(a) Sites of potential concern with 

land contamination 
(b) % of sites with information to 

decide if remediation is 
necessary  

 
258 

 
 

9% 

 
1393 

 
 

1% 

 
N/a 

 
 

N/a 

 

This is a target calculated on an annual 
basis, which will be reported in Q4.  A 
strategy is in place to both identify sites of 
potential concern and work on the 
strategy continues alongside other key 
contaminated land work associated with 
planning and regeneration. 

ENV R 
LI 1 
 

% of playgrounds that conform to 
national standards for locally 
equipped areas 

66% 
(24 sites) 

77.7% 
(28 sites) 

77.7% 
(28 Sites) 

 

 

BV 82a 
(ii) 

Total tonnage of household waste 
arisings sent for recycling.   

9684 10067 5290 
 

This indicator is an estimate only and is 
subject to seasonal variation. However 
the Authority is on track to hit the end of 
year target.    

BV 82b 
(ii) 
 

Tonnage of household waste arisings 
composted or sent for treatment by 
anaerobic digestion. 

6930 7383 5249 
 

This indicator is an estimate only and is 
subject to seasonal variation. However 
the Authority is on track to hit the end of 
year target.    

BV 82c 
(i) 
 

Percentage of household waste 
arisings used to recover heat, power 
& other energy sources. 

0% 0% 0% 

 

- 

BV 82c 
(ii) 
 

Total tonnage household waste 
arisings used to recover heat, power 
& other energy sources. 

0 0 0 

 

- 

BV 82d 
(ii) 

Total tonnage of household waste 
arisings landfilled. 

49837.4 49667 

 
 

25877  

This indicator is an estimate only and is 
subject to seasonal variation. However, it 
is unclear at this stage if the Authority is 
on track to hit the end of year target.    

BV 84b Percentage change on previous year 
in Kg of household waste collected 
per head. 

1.8 1 

 
2.5% 

 

This indicator is an estimate only and is 
subject to seasonal variation. However, it 
is unclear at this stage if the Authority is 
on track to hit the end of year target.    

P
a

g
e
 5

6



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

21 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

BV 91a 
CPA  

% of households served by a 
kerbside collection - 1 recyclable.  100% 100% 

 
100% 

 

The Council provides a kerbside paper 
collection service to all properties in the 
borough. 

ENV R 
LI 5 
 

% of incidents of offensive graffiti 
responded to within 24 hours of 
notification 

 
82.35% 

 
100% 

 
85% 

 

The response times to clearing offensive 
graffiti continues to increase. However, 
due to the administrative system used to 
record incidents, a number of requests 
were not processed within required 
timescales, and this annual target will not 
be met.  Improvements have been made 
to ensure increased response times are 
maintained. 

ENV R 
LI 6 

% of incidents of fly-tipping 
responded to within 48 hours  

 
96.41% 

 
100% 

 
95.71% 

 

Due to a number of factors it has not been 
possible on some occasions to respond to 
fly-tipping with 48 hours, and as this is an 
annual target, it will not be met.   

                 Quality of Service Indicators. 

BV 166 
(b) 
 

Score against a checklist of 
enforcement best practice for 
Environmental Health 

90% 100% 100% 

 

This is an annual target and at quarter 2 
we are on target to achieve the annual 
target 

P
a
g
e
 5

7



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

22 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

ENV R 
LI 2 

Survey satisfaction with the level of 
cleanliness in parks.” 

77% 84% 92.42% 

 

As reported in Q1 Halton has signed up to 
the Greenstadt System, which is a 
national database that allows the public to 
comment on their local parks. It also 
allows for surveys to be undertaken face 
to face and then entered onto the system.  
The system is now up and running and 
surveys are being completed. From this 
point forward accurate reports can now be 
generated for ENV R L12 for each 
quarter. The Greenstadt System asks 
members of the public to rate cleanliness 
in parks as Very Good, Good, Fair, Poor 
or Very Poor. For the purposes of ENV R 
L12 a combined score from Very Good, 
Good and Fair has been taken as a 
measure of being satisfied. 
  

P
a

g
e
 5

8



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

23 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

ENV R 
LI 3 

Number of Green Flag Awards 
achieved for Halton 

6 8 6 

 

Unfortunately Victoria Promenade failed 
to gain an award after holding Green Flag 
Status for two years. Initial study of the 
report from Civic Trust shows that this site 
was a marginal failure and that points 
were lost due to an error being made in 
the application. Unfortunately a draft copy 
of the site management plan was 
submitted instead of the completed full 
management plan. 
 
Managers disagree with the fail given to 
Runcorn Town Hall. A letter will be sent to 
the Civic Trust challenging their decision. 
It is unlikely that the decision will be 
overturned but it is important that the 
Council’s dissatisfaction is registered.  
 
Victoria Park did succeed in gaining a 
Green Flag Award for the first time. 
 
Previous award holders Hough Green 
Park, Pickerings Pasture LNR, Rock Park 
and Runcorn Hill Park & LNR all secured 
Green Flag Awards. 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

24 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

BV 200 Plan-Making 
(a) current development plan? 
 
 
(b) proposals on deposit? 
 
 
(c) annual monitoring report? 

 
Yes 

 
 

Yes 
 
 

Yes 

 
Yes 

 
 

Yes 
 
 

Yes 

 

 
 

 

 

Policies within the Halton Unitary 
Development Plan are automatically 
saved for a period of three years from 
adoption (i.e. until 6 April 2008). The 
Council was required to submit a list of 
policies (with reasons) that it proposes to 
save beyond this date to the Secretary of 
State 6 months prior to this date. This 
deadline has been successfully achieved 
and a response from the Secretary of 
State is awaited by April. 

ENV R 
LI 7 
 

% of residents satisfaction with the 
cleansing standards in Halton 
(Annual PI). 

68.8% 
 

72% 
 

 

Survey results are published in Q3. 

                 Fair Access Indicators.   

BV 86 
 

Cost of waste collection per 
household. £27.44 £29.39 - 

 

This is an annual PI and will be reported 
at the year end. 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

0



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

25 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

6 
 
 

Reducing vehicle arson: 
 
The number of incidents of arson 
occurring to non derelict vehicles (during 
the year 1 April to 31 March) 

 
 

200 
(Jan – Dec 

2005) 

 
 

140 
(Apr 07 – 
Mar 08) 

 
 

143 

 
 

66 

 
 

 

 
 
Performance in this second quarter 
indicates that the year end target is 
anticipated to be met. 

7 Improving health and well-being: 
 
The number of people reporting to the 
NHS stop smoking services who had set a 
quit date and who are still not smoking at 
the four weeks review (during the year 1 
April to 31 March) 
 

 
 

850 
(2005/6) 

 
 

2000 
(2008/9) 

 
 

1049 

 
 

N/a 

 
 

N/a 

 
 
*PCT state results not available until 
November 07 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

26 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

ER04 Risk Identified: 
Failure to comply with statutory duty – 
leading to detrimental consequences to the 
Authority. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Continual monitoring to ensure compliance 
with statutory duties. 
 

Risk Identified: 
Absence of a Local Development 
Framework – leading to difficulties in 
deciding planning applications and borough 
development. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
To ensure that the LDF is delivered on time 
in consultation with all relevant officers. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Production of unsound plans resulting in 
abortive costs and repetition of work. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Consultation with relevant internal officers 
and external experts to ensure proper 
evaluation of requirements to pass tests of 
soundness 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular review of best practice and information 
exchange with other authorities to ensure consistency in 
interpretation of legislation. Opinion of barristers’ sought 
when appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Production of detailed project plan and work scheduling 
to allow swift corrective action where necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular review of best practice and information 
exchange with other authorities to ensure consistency in 
interpretation of legislation.  
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

2



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

27 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

Risk Identified: 
Unwillingness of public to participate will 
result in targets not met. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Sufficient resources in place to deliver a 
continual and comprehensive promotional 
and educational campaign. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Risk in underestimating need, type and 
level of resources to deliver our services. 
 

Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Consultation with relevant internal officers 
and external experts to ensure proper 
evaluation of resource requirements 
 

Risk Identified: 
Risk in underestimating level of finance 
required to deliver. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Consultation with internal and external 
financial experts to ensure proper financial 
analysis. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Risk of changes to central/regional & Local 
Authority Governed Policy affecting the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Costed project plan. Retention of Planning Delivery 
Grant funds for use by Planning for production of the 
Local Development Framework and contingency fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular review of best practice and information 
exchange with other authorities to ensure consistency in 
interpretation of legislation. Comparison will detailed 
project plan to allow resource gaps to be addressed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Costed project plan. Retention of Planning Delivery 
Grant funds for use by Planning for production of the 
Local Development Framework and contingency fund. 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

28 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

agreed strategy. 
 

Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Final strategies should be flexible to 
account for such changes and continual 
monitoring of policy should be maintained 
to keep abreast of any potential changes 
 

Risk Identified: 
Failure to produce strategy could jeopardise 
future government funding e.g. planning 
delivery grant. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Ensure delivery of strategies in line with 
government requirements. 

 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Regular review of best practice and information 
exchange with other authorities to ensure consistency in 
interpretation of legislation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Production of detailed project plan and work scheduling 
to allow swift corrective action where necessary. 
 

ER06 TO PRODUCE A WASTE 
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 
HALTON   
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to comply with statutory duty – 
leading to detrimental consequences to the 
Authority. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Continual monitoring to ensure compliance 
with statutory duties. Engagement of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Service Plan Reference ER05 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

4



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

29 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

external consultants to provide expert 
advice and guidance. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Absence of a W M Strategy – leading to 
difficulties in planning future WM Services. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
To ensure that the WM strategy is delivered 
on time in consultation with all relevant 
officers. 
 
Risk Identified: 
 
Unwillingness of public to participate will 
result in targets not met. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Sufficient resources in place to deliver a 
continual and comprehensive, consultation, 
promotional and educational campaign. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Risk in underestimating need, type and 
level of resources to deliver our services. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Consultation with relevant internal officers 
and external experts to ensure proper 
evaluation of resource requirements  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Service Plan Reference ER05 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An evaluation of future resource requirements is 
currently being undertaken by the Head of Waste 
Management Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As above 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

5



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

30 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

 
Risk Identified: 
Risk in underestimating level of finance 
required to deliver. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Consultation with internal and external 
financial experts to ensure proper financial 
analysis. 
 
 
Risk Identified: 
Risk to targets not being met – financial and 
repute. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Continual monitoring to ensure targets are 
met. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Risk to not developing suitable partnerships 
would lead to strategies not being delivered 
and not being targets met. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Proper consideration of options and 
negotiations with potential partners to 
ensure that partnership arrangements are 
delivered that reflect the best interests of 
the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Councils has commissioned external consultants to 
carry out a detailed analysis of anticipated future costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Monitoring of performance against targets is carried out 
on a quarterly basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Council considered its Waste management 
partnership options in June 2006, which led to a 
partnership being developed with the Merseyside 
Authorities. 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

6



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

31 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

 
Risk Identified: 
Risk to the authority not procuring 
appropriate and successful waste treatment 
infrastructure 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
To consider only established private sector 
companies, with proven track records to 
deliver proven waste treatment 
technologies  
 
Risk Identified: 
 
Risk of changes to central/regional & Local 
Authority Governed Policy affecting the 
agreed strategy. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Final strategies should be flexible to 
account for such changes and continual 
monitoring of policy should be maintained 
to keep abreast of any potential changes  
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to produce strategy could jeopardise 
future government funding. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proper evaluation of participants for inclusion in the 
procurement process will be carried out 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Council is currently updating it’s Waste Management 
Strategy and will ensure flexibility is included to allow for 
future legislative and policy requirements to be met.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

32 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Ensure delivery of strategies in line with 
government requirements. 

 

 
 
On-going 
 

 
 

 

 
 
As above  
 

ER07 PROCUREMENT OF AN 
INTEGRATED WASTE 
MANAGEMENT INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to meet the requirements of the 
European Landfill Directive – leading to 
penalties both financial and legal. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Proper procurement process to ensure 
waste management infrastructure in place 
and continual monitoring of performance 
against targets  
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to have adequate services and 
facilities in place by 2008. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Proper management and procurement 
procedures to ensure timescales are met. 
Negotiate interim arrangements as 
necessary. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feb 2008 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Service Plan Reference ER06 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Key Developments 
 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

8



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

33 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

Risk Identified: 
Failure to follow correct European 
Procurement Procedures – leading to legal 
challenges, invalid tendering process and 
government intervention. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Procurement process conducted with 
advice from Council Legal Services and 
external consultant / experts.  
Set up an internal Waste Management 
Procurement Group. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to meet statutory targets for waste 
reduction and recycling – financial and 
legal. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Proper procurement process to ensure 
waste management infrastructure in place 
and continual monitoring of performance 
against targets  
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to provide best value – financial 
consequences for the council and 
unnecessary burden on the taxpayer. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Councils has commissioned external consultants to 
support the work of the Legal Services Section in the 
procurement process and an internal Waste 
Management Procurement Group was established. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Service Plan Reference ER06 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

34 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 

Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Proper procurement process and cost / 
benefit analysis of options will ensure best 
value. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Failure to identify potential partnerships – 
leading to inadequate funding, missed 
opportunities and loss of potential 
economies of scale. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Proper consideration of options and 
negotiations with potential partners to 
ensure that partnership arrangements are 
delivered that reflect the best interests of 
the Council. 
 
Risk Identified: 
Overall failure to meet the commitments of 
the Waste Management Strategy. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
To ensure that the WM strategy is delivered 
on time in consultation with all relevant 
officers. 
 
Monitoring and control measures in place to 
ensure that targets and pledges are met. 

 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On-going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2008 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
The Council considered its Waste management 
partnership options in June 2006, which led to a 
partnership being developed with the Merseyside 
Authorities.  This will provide economies of scale for the 
authority and deliver the best value solution for the 
authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Service Plan Reference ER05. 
 
 

 

P
a

g
e
 7

0



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

35 

Financial Statements 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & BUILDING CONTROL DIVISION 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 

Committed 
Items 
£’000 

 

Expenditure 

     

Employees 1,590 785 715 70 715 
Premises Support     79 0 0 0 0 
Other Premises       8 7 5 2 5 
Supplies & Services   183 93 98 (5) 145 
Transport     66 33 33 0 33 
Central Support 
Services 

324 0 0 0 0 

Departmental Support 
Services 

  321 0 0 0 0 

Agency Related     14 14 17 (3) 17 
Asset Charges       2 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditure      2,587 932 868 64 915 

      
Income      

Sales     -50 -47 -37 (10) -37 
Building Control Fees   -370 -185 -156 (29) -156 
Pest Control     -64 -32 -51 19 -51 
Other Fees & 
Charges 

      -5 -3 -2 (1) -2 

Grant Funding -24 0 0 0 0 
Reimbursements      -7 0 0 0 0 

Total Income        -520 -267 -246 (21) -246 

      

Net Expenditure 2,067 665 622 43 669 

      

 
Comments on the above figures: 
 
In overall terms, revenue net expenditure at the end of quarter 2 is below budget.  
  
With regards to expenditure, staffing is underspent at the end of quarter 2. This is a combination 
of vacancies within the Enforcement Co-ordination, Building Control, Food Health & Safety and 
Environmental Protection Teams.  
 
With regards to income, Building Control fees are less than budget to date as a result of increased 
competition from the private sector. Although it can be anticipated that the deficit will be closed in 
the second half of the financial year, it is unlikely that the annual target will be achieved.  
 
At this stage it appears the only significant issue is the low Building Control income.   

Page 71



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

36 

 
PLANNING DIVISION 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 

Committed 
Items 
£’000 

 

Expenditure 

     

Employees 993 490 446 44 448 
Premises Support 68 0 0 0 0 
Hired & Contracted Svcs 72 36 26 10 28 
Unitary Development 
Plan 

25 12 0 12 2 

Supplies & Services 138 67 30 37 181 
Transport 16 8 9 (1) 9 
Central Support 
Services 

229 0 0 0 0 

Departmental Support 
Services 

255 0 0 0 0 

Agency 3 1 0 1 0 

Total Expenditure 1,799 614 511 103 668 

      
Income      

Planning Fees -782 -313 -312 (1) -312 
Support Services -400 0 0 0 0 
Planning Delivery Grant -250 -77 -77 0 -77 

Total Income -1,432 -390 -389 (1) -389 

      

Net Expenditure 367 224 122 102 279 

      

 
Comments on the above figures: 
 
In overall terms revenue spending at the end of quarter 2 is below budget.  
 
With regards to expenditure, employees is under spent to date due to staff vacancies within the 
department.  The underspend in supplies and services and hired and contracted services is 
mainly due to spend within the Spatial Planning section, however, it is anticipated that the full 
budget will be spent by the financial year end.  The large commitment in this area includes £134k 
of Mersey Gateway related expenditure for policy work.  
 
In terms of income, an estimated budget of £250k has been identified against the Planning 
Delivery grant.  In fact, the actual allocation for grant has been confirmed at £300,000 all of which 
has been committed. The first tranche of £77k has been received to date.   
 
At this stage it is anticipated that overall spend will be in line with the Departmental budget by the 
financial year-end. 

 
 

Page 72



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

37 

 
 

Environmental & Regulatory Services.      

  Landscape Services Division 2007/2008.       

  Waste Management Services Division  2007/2008.      

       

Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007.      

        

  Annual Budget  Actual Variance Actual  

  Budget To Date To Date To Date Including  

        (overspend) Committed  

          Items  

             

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  

             

Expenditure            

Employees 6,591 3,315 3,170 145 3,170  

Building Maintenance 27 0 0 0 0  

Operational Buildings 108 0 0 0 0  

Landscape Maintenance 271 138 135 3 158  

Office Accommodation 59 0 0 0 0  

Other Premises Costs 131 65 51 14 51  

Supplies and Services 405 201 194 7 198  

Recycling Plan/Strategy 133 0 0 0 0  

Hired & Contracted Services 304 173 179 (6) 188  

Tipping 212 107 81 26 81  

Transport 1,958 988 1,074 (86) 1,080  

Grants To Voluntary Organisations 18 12 9 3 9  

Agency Services 128 64 43 21 43  

Waste Disposal - Fridges 60 30 28 2 28  

Waste Disposal - Green Waste 128 94 91 3 91  

Waste Disposal - Other 254 118 69 49 69  

Waste Disposal - HWC's 1,029 626 651 (25) 651  

Waste Disposal - Domestic Refuse 615 314 300 14 300  

Waste Disposal - Landfill Tax 1,138 566 552 14 552  

Internal Support Costs 618 0 0 0 0  

Central Support Costs 437 0 0 0 0  

Capital Financing 81 49 49 0 49  

Asset Charges 202 0 0 0 0  

             

Total Expenditure 14,907 6,860 6,676 184 6,718  

             

Income            

Sales -138 -60 -62 2 -71  

Fees & Charges - Trade Waste -625 -313 -237 -76 -237  

Fees & Charges - Bulky Waste -213 -106 -18 -88 -18  

Page 73



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

38 

Fees & Charges - Other -67 -40 -7 -33 -7  

Rents -15 -8 -6 -2 -6  

Grounds Maintenance Recharge -3,112 -52 -91 39 -91  

Support Service Income -233 0 0 0 0  

Government Grants -120 0 0 0 0  

Reimbursements & Other Grants -491 -238 -247 9 -247  

School's SLA -152 -76 -49 -27 -49  

Building Cleaning Recharges -777 -389 -375 -14 -375  

School Cleansing Recharges -635 -317 -289 -28 -289  

Miscellaneous St. Cleansing Recharges -159 -80 -51 -29 -51  

Non - Revenue -110 -55 -55 0 -55  

             

Total Income -6,847 -1,734 -1,487 (247) (1,496)  

             

Net Expenditure 8,060 5,126 5,189 (63) 5,222  

 
Comments on the above figures: 
 
1. The underspend on labour is a result of delay a in advertising and filling vacant posts. 
2. Delays in procurement of the new refuse fleet have resulted in the transport overspend. 
3. A continued reduction in the number of trade waste customers and fewer than anticipated 
requests for the bulky item and fridge collection service are the main contributors to the shortfall in 
income.

Page 74



APPENDIX SEVEN – EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS 
Environment & Regulatory Services 

39 

 
 

 
The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner: 
 
  Objective Performance Indicator 
    

Green Indicates that the objective 
is on course to be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe. 
 

Indicates that the target is 
on course to be achieved.   

Amber Indicates that it is unclear 
at this stage, due to a lack 
of information or a key 
milestone date being 
missed, whether the 
objective will be achieved 
within the appropriate 
timeframe. 
 

Indicates that it is either 
unclear at this stage or 
too early to state whether 
the target is on course to 
be achieved. 
 

Red 

 

Indicates that it is highly 
likely or certain that the 
objective will not be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe.  
 

Indicates that the target 
will not be achieved 
unless there is an 
intervention or remedial 
action taken. 
 

 

 

Page 75



Health & Partnerships 1 

QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  MMOONNIITTOORRIINNGG  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

DIRECTORATE: Health & Community 
 
SERVICE: Health & Partnerships 
 
PERIOD:   Quarter 2 half-year to period-end 30 September 2007.   
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Health & Partnerships 
Department second quarter period up to half year 30 September 2007. It 
describes key developments and progress against all objectives and 
performance indicators for the service. 
 
The way in which traffic lights symbols have been used to reflect 
progress to date is explained within Appendix 7 
 
It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of 
Policy and Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators 
that are not directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey. 
 

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Housing   
Government has launched a new housing green paper “Homes for the 
future: more affordable, more sustainable” with proposals to increase the 
housing supply nationally to meet growing demand, and to increase the 
proportion of affordable housing. Proposals include – 
 

• £8billion investment in affordable housing over next 3 years, 
with £6.5b of that for social housing. 

• Planning Delivery Grant is to be refocused on delivery of land 
supply and housing completions. 

• 5 new eco towns are proposed, and further “growth points”. 

• All new homes to be zero carbon by 2016. 

• Targets for affordable housing in rural areas. 

• Options for LAs to participate more in the delivery of new 
housing. 

• More help for first time buyers. 

• A continued focus on brown field development. 
 

Responses are due by the 15th October. 
 
Following consideration of the issues surrounding the development of a 
permanent transit site by Urban Renewal PPB, the issue is to be re-
considered by Executive Board on 1 November 2007. 
 

Page 76



Health & Partnerships 2 

Consumer Protection 
The final phase of grading and drainage work to prepare the Widnes 
cemetery western strip as a burial section should be completed before 
Christmas. 
 
During Quarter 3, officers of the Consumer Protection team will be 
heavily involved in the joint Halton/Warrington project aimed at 
developing a single Trading Standards Service to serve both Boroughs 
 
Direct Payments & Appointee & Receiverships 
The number of service users in receipt of Direct Payments continues to 
increase and in total has exceeded this year’s target. At 30th September, 
there are 185 service users and 193 carers receiving their services via a 
Direct Payment.  
 
The new Mental Capacity Act 2005 is now in force from 1st October 
2007 for the appointee and receivership service, with the role of the 
Local Authority now changed to Court Appointed Deputies. Key 
appointments have now been made following restructuring of these two 
teams to meet demand, ensure compliance, and progress the 
individualised budget pilot  
 
Contracts and Supporting People 
A number of new short-term services have been developed including a 
floating support service for domestic violence, a sanctuary scheme to 
support victims of domestic violence and a service to support older 
people with alcohol misuse issues. 
 
Senior Management Team have approved a new monitoring framework 
for voluntary sector contracts. 
 
Commissioning 
 
Commissioners within HBC have contributed to a review of Partnership 
Working carried out by Halton and St Helens PCT from June to Sept 07- 
initial findings of the review are expected in Oct 07. 
 

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES 

 

Information Technology 
Corporate ICT are investigating Liquid Logic’s EasyCare Solution to 
SAP. This will allow for a standardised Single Assessment System 
across several sites, issues relating to internally or externally hosting the 
product.   
 
A LIVE implementation date for CareFirst 6 has been agreed for Oct 
2008, Corporate ICT are currently in the process of drawing together a 
Project Group to identify resources required for implementation. 
 

Page 77



Health & Partnerships 3 

Corporate ICT have agreed to carry out a Business Process Re-
engineering exercise focusing on the objectives that need to be 
delivered by Social Care IT. The exercise is to commence Dec 2007, it 
was highlighted that a plan of this size would take considerable time. 
 
Corporate ICT have reported that a complete feasibility study regarding 
a move away from Citrix will not be completed until all infrastructure 
changes relating to the Schools network traffic is complete, this work is 
due for completion Apr 2008. 
 

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 

 
Total 

 
15 

 

 
11 

 

 
3 

 

 
1 

 

Of the 15 milestones for the service, 11 are progressing satisfactorily at 
the half-year point.  One of the milestones has been assigned a red light 
as a result of some slippage in timescales. Three milestones have been 
assigned an amber light due to some uncertainty around the milestone 
being achieved within set timescales. For further details, please refer to 
Appendix 1 
 

 
4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 
 

There are no other objectives for the service.  Nine milestones within the 
key objectives are designated ‘non-key’. Those milestones are reported 
in Appendix 1 and are designated by the use of italic text. 
 

Page 78



Health & Partnerships 4 

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW 

 

Consumer Protection 
As a result of the new Scheme for Registration in Halton, which came 
into effect on 4th July 2007, the Deputy Chief Inspector of Registration 
carried out a review of the first two months to ascertain that Halton was 
meeting all the necessary standards.  He was very satisfied with the 
measures that had been put into place and would not require any further 
feedback until the Annual Stewardship Report to the Registrar General 
to be prepared at the end of March 2008. 
 
Review of Grant funded Posts 
Given the uncertainties over the continuation of grant funding, of which 
£1.735 million relates to grant funding for Adult Social Care, exit 
strategies for funding core front line services in the Directorate are being 
reviewed to take account of the possibility that some funding could 
cease in March 2008. Priorities and the impact on services are being 
reconfirmed, should reductions be actioned in preparation for 
announcements of the CSR  on the 9th October 2007 and  further 
detailed information,  which becomes available  in late November 2007. 
 
Contracts and Supporting People. 
Internal audit completed a review of contract monitoring and 
procurement processes within Health and Partnerships between June-
Sept 07. Recommendations for improvement following the review are 
expected in Oct 07.  
 

 

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Total 

 
6 

 

 
6 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

At the half-year stage, all of the six key performance indicators for the 
service are making satisfactory progress.  For further details, please 
refer to Appendix 2. 
 

 

 

Page 79



Health & Partnerships 5 

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 
Total 

 
22 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

Of the twenty other indicators for the service, eleven are progressing 
satisfactorily. Progress against eight of the indicators at the half-year 
stage shows some uncertainty around the target being achieved. Two   
indicators cannot be reported at the current time due to information not 
yet being available. (BVPI 213 and HP LPI 13). One indicator has been 
assigned a red light (HP LPI 15). For further details please refer to 
Appendix 3.   

 
7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
 

There are no LPSA targets for this service.   
 

 

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
 

During the production of the 2007-08 Service Plan, the service was 
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.  
 
Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have 
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment 
measures is monitored and reported. 
 
The service is monitoring a number of risk treatment measures, linked to 
two objectives. For further details, refer to Appendix 4 
 

 

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
 

During 2006/07 the service was required to undertake an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that 
assessment, with associated High priority is reported in Appendix 5 
 

 
10.0 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators  
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators 
Appendix 4- Progress against Risk Control measures (Q2 & 4) 
Appendix 5- Progress against high priority equality actions (Q2 & 4) 
Appendix 6- Financial Statement 
Appendix 7- Explanation of traffic light symbols  

 

Page 80



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Health & Partnerships 

6 

 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 
Italic = Q2 & Q4 only 

Progress 
to date* 

Commentary 

Develop and implement Joint 
Commissioning Strategies to ensure that 
we identify our commissioning intentions 
linked to financial planning by September 
2007 

 

New Joint Commissioning Strategy 
(CS) for People with Physical and 
Sensory disabilities complete  
Joint CS for Mental health reviewed 
and updated. 
3yr Directorate Financial Plan 
developed that links to identified 
commissioning priorities. 

HP1 Ensure that high level strategies 
are in place, and working to 
deliver service improvements, and 
support frontline services to 
deliver improved outcomes to the 
residents of Halton 

Develop robust contract management 
and monitoring arrangements across all 
service areas by March 2008  

On target –progress to date includes: 

• Development of service risk 
matrix which targets contract 
monitoring resources to 
services in need of 
improvement 

• Introduction of generic contract 
monitoring documentation 
across Supporting People, 
Social Care Contracts and 
Direct Payment teams. 

• SMT approval of a new 
monitoring framework for 
voluntary sector contracts 

P
a

g
e
 8

1



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Health & Partnerships 

7 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 
Italic = Q2 & Q4 only 

Progress 
to date* 

Commentary 

Update the Housing and Homelessness 
Strategy’s to reflect findings of 2006 
needs assessment and revised strategy 
and action plan by March 2008 

 

Work to review and update the 
housing strategy has begun, as have 
discussions with the Planning 
Department on the development of an 
affordable housing policy. A scoping 
exercise has been completed to 
identify the requirements needed to 
undertake the review of the 
homelessness strategy. Drafts of both 
documents should be produced by the 
end of March. 
 

Review  5 year Supporting People 
Strategy to ensure diverse and flexible 
housing support services are in place to 
support people to live at home by July 
2007 

 

Targets met-New agreements 
reached for the following services: 

• Home improvement agency 

• Floating support services to 
support people with Mental 
Health, Substance mis-use 
and anti-social behaviour 
issues.  

Develop a Training Plan to deliver 
effective and efficient learning 
interventions, to ensure staff are 
equipped with the appropriate skills and 
knowledge by October 2007 

 

Training & Development Plan 2007/8 
produced. Update on 6 month 
progress towards IT implementation 
scheduled for SMT in October 2007 

Embed the guidance from the 2 White 
papers ‘Our Health Our Care Our Say’ 
(OHOCOS) and ‘Strong and Prosperous 
Communities’ in delivering the Health 
Strategy for Halton to improve 
partnership working and outcome 
measures by September 2007 

 

The OHOCOS Outcomes Meeting has 
and continues to monitor actions 
arising from the White Paper.  These 
actions have not been incorporated in 
to the Health Strategy as this is 
serving a different purpose. 

P
a
g
e
 8

2



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Health & Partnerships 

8 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 
Italic = Q2 & Q4 only 

Progress 
to date* 

Commentary 

Develop a performance monitoring 
framework to meet the requirements of 
changing National priorities including 
outcomes and non care managed 
services by June 2007 

 

The outcomes framework is currently 
in early development.  Acton Shapiro 
consultants have been appointed to 
provide a series of workshops based 
on Outcomes into Practice 
development work, which will 
commence in December and be 
completed by 31st March 08. 

Establish an IT strategy in conjunction 
with Corporate IT so that Carefirst6, 
Carestore and CareAssess are 
implemented in accordance with agreed 
timescales so that Carefirst users have 
access to more effective data input 
systems – October 2007 

 

Agreed that CareFirst 6 would be fully 
implemented into a LIVE environment 
by Oct 2008, Corporate ICT are 
currently in the process of drawing 
together a Project Group to identify 
required resources for roll out, it has 
been agreed that CF6 will be rolled 
out on a like-for-like basis in terms of 
Business Processes. Implementation 
of CareStore is still on-hold. C&YP are 
still looking to use CareAssess as a 
long-term ICS solution 

HP2 Work with operational managers 
to design a performance 
management framework that will 
provide high quality performance 
monitoring and management 
information, to help improve 
service delivery and assist 
services to continuously improve 

Implement an electronic performance 
framework that is accessible to 
managers via the intranet to facilitate the 
availability of real time information to 
support decision making – May 2007 

 

Health & Community Dashboard has 
been created and is available to the 
Directorate via the internal intranet. 
Dashboard is automatically updated 
monthly to allow for real time data. A 
number of demonstrations have been 
set up and attended. 

HP3 To deliver high quality 
Bereavement, Consumer and 
Registration Services, that are fit-
for-purpose and meet the needs, 
dignity and safety of the Halton 
community 

Ensure that sufficient longer-term 
cemetery provision exists to meet the 
needs of the Halton people, by initially 
completing an options appraisal and 
securing member decision by 31 March 
2008 

 

The completed options appraisal has 
been considered by the Safer Halton 
P & P Board and the Chief Officer’s 
Management Team.   Further cost 
benefit analysis work is underway to 
inform the final member decision. 

P
a

g
e
 8

3



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Health & Partnerships 

9 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 
Italic = Q2 & Q4 only 

Progress 
to date* 

Commentary 

Research and develop an action plan by 
31 December 2007, for the 
implementation of an intelligence-led 
approach to delivering Consumer 
Protection services 

 

The action plan is scheduled to be 
finalised during Q3. 

Progress the modernisation of the 
Registration Service by securing the 
installation of a new Registration 
Scheme by 30 September 2007 

 

The new scheme came into effect on 
4th July 2007.  Three of the five 
statutory members of staff were 
transferred to local government 
employment status on that date 

Develop, by April 2007, a 3-year financial 
strategy, to ensure that funding is 
matched to changing service 
requirements 

 

Completed. Details of the 
Governments Comprehensive 
Spending Review and further 
information awaited 9th October and    
late November to align /prioritise 
funding to future strategies and 
assess the impact of potential grant 
loss for staff both temporary and 
permanent in grant funded posts. 

HP4 Ensure that effective financial 
strategies and services are in 
place to enable the directorate to 
procure and deliver high quality 
value for money services that 
meet people’s needs 

Develop, by October 2007, financial 
products that support the modernisation 
of inclusive services 

 

Alternative funding options are 
currently being explored as part of the 
exit strategies for grant-funded posts 
and to support the voluntary sector.  

P
a
g
e
 8

4



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Health & Partnerships 

10 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 
Italic = Q2 & Q4 only 

Progress 
to date* 

Commentary 

Review, by October 2007, the Fairer 
Charging Policy to ensure that charges 
meet strategic objectives 

 

 

Significant progress has been made 
on quantifying potential increases in 
charges across a range of areas. 
However, staffing vacancies have 
lead to delays in reviewing / 
comparing our policies with 
neighbouring local authorities and 
consulting service users. Feedback 
will also be obtained from the North 
West Support Services Group. This 
objective still on track for review by 
Exec Board Sub in line with Corporate 
budget timescales. 

 

P
a

g
e
 8

5



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS     Health & Partnerships 

11 

 

 

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

Green

Likely to hit PAF target

Current

Better

X

3 25

X

BVPI

201
Number of adults and older people receiving 

direct payments Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

14

2006/7

2007/8

Target

The number of adults and older people in receipt of direct payments per 100,000 population is 201.72.  This indicator is in 

relation to client users only.  Direct payments used to benefit the carer (I.e respite or carers break) is reported in a separate 

performance indicator to measure carers services.  Current performance would be awarded a PAF Band 5.  Target 

exceeded.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

225

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Same as 

this time last 

year

###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Better

### ######

HPLI 4
Percentage of schools (incl. Yr 11 and Sixth 

pupils) offered a Validate card. Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

2006/7

2007/8

Target

There is no activity relating to this indicator in Quarters 1 or 2.  This is an annual project that does not commence prior to 

the start of the new school year in September.  It is expected that this work will be completed between October and March, 

and the target for the year will be achieved.

Should hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 86



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS     Health & Partnerships 

12 

 

 

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Same as 

this time last 

year

###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Better

### ######

HPLI 9

% of times service has offered 2 burial 

appointments within 9 working days (Dec to Feb 

inclusive) or within 7 working days at other times Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

2006/7

2007/8

Target

This performance relates to 145 burials in the Council’s cemeteries during the first two quarters of the year.

Should hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Same as 

this time last 

year

###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Better

### ######

HPLI 12
Percentage of clients attended to within 10 

minutes of their appointment time. Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

2006/7

2007/8

Target

This statistic relates to 1823 service users who had made appointments to use the Service in the first half of the year.

Should hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 87



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS     Health & Partnerships 

13 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

Green

Likely to hit PAF target

Current

Better

X

3 25

X

HPPAF 59
No. of assessed social work practice learning 

days per whole time equivalent social worker Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

14

2006/7

2007/8

Target

This PI is calculated by dividing the number of placement days; directly provided by HBC and placements provided in the 

voluntary sector, by the no of WTE social workers. N

Last year we were awarded 1080 vols placement days and we can confidently anticipate at least this number in future years 

because the total no of students has increased.N

1080 divided by WTE 97.7=11.05. I expect at least an additional 960 placement days, within HBC to be provided in Sept 07 

to give a total of 2040, divided by WTE 97.7= 20.88. With a further intake in Jan 08. Based on these forecasts, the target 

will be met.  

Should hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Better

### ######

HPLI 16

% of SSD gross current expenditure on staffing 

which was spent on training the Council’s directly 

employed staff during the financial year Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

2006/7

2007/8

Target

Calculated using cummulative training budget spend up to end of 2nd quarter, against cost centers 6060, 6000, 6200 & 

6220, divided by the social care staffing cost up to end of 2nd quarter, not including Children Services. N

T&D Spend £157,917 divided by £7,067,623 multiplied by 100. (Staff costs provided by finance). To ensure the target is 

achieved monthly budget monitoring will take place, along with bi-monthly monitoring through the Adult Training Group.

Should hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

0

1

2

3

4

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 88



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

14 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

                 Service Delivery Indicators. 

BVPI 
166b 
 
 
 

Score against a checklist of 
enforcement best practice for 
Trading Standards 

 
100% 

 
100% 

 
100% 

 

This ‘year end’ best value performance 
indicator provides an indication of the 
performance of Halton’s Consumer 
Protection Service when measured 
against a checklist of enforcement best 
practice. The checklist has regard to 
written enforcement policies, risk based 
inspection programmes and sampling and 
surveillance regimes, educational and 
information programmes, customer 
complaint/enquiry processes, 
benchmarking and consultation 
arrangements and performance reporting 
mechanisms. 
 

BVPI 64 
 

Number of private sector dwellings 
returned into occupation or 
demolished as a direct result of 
action by the local authority. 

 
2 

 
2 

 
1 

 

Outputs against this BVPI have always 
been reliant on Council grants for 
Landlords to refurbish and let out 
previously empty dwellings that they 
acquired. Under current grants policy only 
accredited landlords can access 
assistance, and no such applications are 
in the pipeline. There is therefore a risk of 
not meeting even the low target that has 
been set. 

P
a

g
e
 8

9



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

15 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

BVPI 
183a 

The average length of stay in B&B 
accommodation of homeless 
households that are unintentionally 
homeless and in priority need 
(weeks) 

 
5.33 

 
3.0 

 
4.8 

 

Figures are based on April to August.  
The average period has started to reduce 
from the 5.33 weeks reported for 2006/07 
and should continue to decline as the 
year progresses, as fewer households are 
placed in B&B for shorter periods due to 
homelessness prevention initiatives. 

BVPI 
183b 
 

The average length of stay in hostel 
accommodation of homeless 
households that are unintentionally 
homeless and in priority need1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 

As Grangeway Court fails to meet the 
definition of a hostel, and domestic 
violence refuges are excluded from the 
calculation, this BVPI will always be 
reported as 0. 

BVPI 
202 
 

Number of Rough Sleepers  
0 

 
0 

 
N/A 

 

A formal rough sleepers count is planned 
for Spring 08 to inform the year-end BVPI 

BBPI 
203 

The % change in the average 
number of families placed in 
temporary accomodation 

 
18.75% 

 
-15% 

 
-2.6% 

 

This BVPI is calculated by averaging the 
numbers in temporary accommodation 
(B&B and Grangeway Court) at the end of 
each quarter in 2007/08, and then 
comparing that figure with the same 
calculation for the previous year. A 
complete picture will not therefore be 
available until year-end but a snap shot 
comparison of Q1 this year to Q1 last 
year shows a 2.6% decrease, which is a 
move in the right direction compared to 
the +18.75% in 2006/07. 

                                                 
1
 Halton does not have any accommodation that falls within the definition of a hostel as stated in the guidance for this indicator. 

P
a
g
e
 9

0



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

16 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

BVPI 
213 
 
 
 

The number of households who 
considered themselves as homeless, 
who approached the LA housing 
advice service, and for whom 
housing advice casework 
intervention resolved their situation 
(expressed as the number divided by 
the number of thousand households 
in the Borough) 

 
0.42 

 
1.42 

 
N /A 

 
N/A 

With the recent introduction of a 
Homeless Prevention Team, a new 
Performance Management Framework is 
being established, it will therefore only be 
possible to report performance against 
this BVPI in Quarter 3. 

BVPI 
214  
 
 

The proportion of households 
accepted as statutorily homeless 
who were accepted as statutorily 
homeless by the same LA within the 
last 2 years 

 
1.24% 

 
1.20% 

 
0 

 

Figures are based on April to August. No 
repeat homelessness cases have been 
recorded so far this year. 

HP LPI   
18 

Has there been a reduction in cases 
accepted as homeless due to 
domestic violence that has previously 
been re-housed in the last 2 years by 
that LA as a result of domestic 
violence (BVPI 225, part 8) 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 

No repeat cases of homelessness 
attributed to domestic violence have been 
recorded so far this year. 

HP/ 
LPI 2 
 
 

Percentage of Social Services 
working days/shifts lost to sickness 
absence during the financial year. 

 
9.21% 

 
8% 

 
8.22% 

 

Reducing the sickness rate within the 
Health and Community Directorate is a 
management priority. Supplementary 
Guidance for managers around the issue 
of absence management is currently 
being consulted on with the unions and 
with Corporate HR. In addition, once 
approval is obtained from the unions, a 
new sickness recording and monitoring 
procedure will be implemented across the 
Directorate, which will ensure accurate 
and timely information on sickness levels. 
 

P
a

g
e
 9

1



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

17 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

HP/ 
LPI 1 
 
 
 

Percentage of SSD directly 
employed staff that left during the 
year. 

 
7.69% 

 
8% 

 
9.98% 

 

Leavers figures taken from 1st October 
2006 to August 2007.  Figure used for 
September 2007 was an estimate as this 
information is not yet available.  The 
baseline staffing figure is from 2006.  An 
updated figure will be supplied in Q3. 
 
We monitor and analyse all exit interview 
questionnaires every six months to 
continually improve our systems and 
processes to further aid retention, as well 
as regularly reviewing policies and 
procedures in relation to retention, such 
as Exit Interview Policy, Procedure and 
Practice, Recruitment and Retention 
Strategy, etc. 
 

HP/ 
LPI 3 
 
 

% of Halton pupils completing a 
survey on the supply of age 
restricted products 

 
70% 

 
60% 
of 

appropriate 
school 
year 

 
0% 

 

The survey is on schedule to be 
completed by year 10s during Quarter 3. 
 

HP/ 
LPI 11 
 
 
 

Applications for current certificates 
processed on the day of receipt. 

 
99.7% 

 
99% 

 
98.6% 

 

The temporary relocation of the Register 
Office to the Civic Building of Runcorn 
Town Hall caused some problems in the 
same-day delivery of current certificates.  
It is hoped that there will be no further 
disruption caused by the building work.  
Out of a total of 571 applications for 
current certificates, some 563 benefited 
from same-day turn-around. 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

2



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

18 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

HP/ 
LPI 17 
(Based 
on BVPI 
8) 
 

The percentage of undisputed 
invoices which were paid in 30 days 
(BVPI 8) 

 
96% 

 
96% 

 
 

97%  

Target achieved due to improved 
monitoring and weekly chasing by the 
Financial Services team to ensure prompt 
payment. 

                 Quality of Service Indicators. 

HP/ 
LPI 7 
 
 
 

Percentage of consumer service 
users satisfied with the Trading 
Standards Service, when last 
surveyed 

 
80% 

 
89% 

 
80% 

 

Only 10 responses were received for the 
last consumer survey and whilst 8 
respondents were either satisfied or very 
satisfied with the service, two users felt 
fairly dissatisfied.  It should be noted that 
service users can feel dissatisfied if the 
advice they are given isn’t the advice they 
want to hear. 
 

HP/ 
LPI 8 
 
 
 

Percentage of Business service 
users satisfied with the Trading 
Standards Service, when last 
surveyed 

 
100% 

 
89% 

 
100% 

 

Business users continue to be satisfied 
with the Trading Standards services they 
receive 

HP/ 
LPI 10 
 
 
 

Percentage of Bereavement Service 
users who rated the staff 
courteousness / helpfulness as 
reasonable / good / excellent when 
last surveyed 

 
100% 

 
92% 

 
100% 

 

Some 81% of respondents provided a 
rating of the staff’s courteousness / 
helpfulness and the year to date figure is 
based on the rating provided by these 
81% of respondents. 

P
a

g
e
 9

3



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

19 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

HP/LPI 
13 
 
 

Percentage of couples who felt that 
they received an excellent or good 
service from staff on the day of their 
marriage / partnership, when last 
surveyed. 

 
100% 

 
90% 

 
N/A 

 
Refer to 
comment 

This data for this performance indicator is 
collected on a sampling basis.  Couples 
who married in September, or who formed 
a civil partnership during the period April 
to September 2007, will receive survey 
forms during October.  Responses will be 
analysed by 31 December 2007 and will 
be available for the Q3 Monitoring Report. 
 

HP/LPI 
14 
 
 
 

Percentage of other Registration 
Service users who rated the staff’s 
helpfulness / efficiency as excellent 
or good, when last surveyed.  
 

 
100% 

 
92% 

 
100% 

 

45 customers who visited the office during 
w/c 29.2.07 were surveyed in March.  The 
analysis was completed at the end of July 
and 100% rated our helpfulness and 
efficiency as Excellent or Good (96% said 
excellent).  The previous year, there were 
65 respondents, and of these 94% rated 
us Very Good, and 6% Good (there was 
no option of excellent then) 
Typical comments this year: 
"You provided a quick, efficient and 
friendly service, thank you." 
"Excellent treatment and very courteous 
and friendly" 
"Excellent service.  All staff - job well 
done, would recommend" 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

4



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Health & Partnerships 

20 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress* 
 

Commentary 

                 Fair Access Indicators. 

HP/ 
LPI 5 
 
 

No. of initiatives undertaken to raise 
the profile of the Service in the 5 
most deprived wards 
 

 
13 

 
4 

 
5 

 

Two sessions have been held at a 
doctor’s surgery in Castlefields and two 
radio programmes on consumer issues 
were broadcast at Halton Hospital.  An 
email scam alert system has been 
introduced between Castlefields 
Community Forum and the Service’s 
Doorstep Crime lead officer. 
 

                 Cost & Efficiency Indicators. 

HP/ 
LPI 15 
 
 

% of SSD directly employed posts 
vacant on 30 September 

 
11.78% 

 
9.5% 

 
14.89 

 

The above % figure includes vacancies 
within the following services, Adults of 
Working Age, Older People, and Health & 
Partnership and is based on the number 
of posts within all the service areas.  All 
the vacancies are in the process of being 
advertised. 
 

HP/LPI 6 % of HR Development Strategy   
Grant spent on Council staff 
 

 
73% 

 
73% 

 
26% 

 

Due to the revised allocation of the HRD 
Strategy Grant on the independent sector 
(£35k), the spend on Council staff is on 
track for 64.5% by 31st March 2008. 
 

 

P
a

g
e
 9

5



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Health & Partnerships 

21 

Key 
Objective 
(Service 
Plan Ref. 

Only) 

 
 

Risk Control Measures 
 

 
 

Target / 
Deadline 

 
 

Progress 
 

 
 

Commentary 

HP2 
 
 

Risk Identified: 
Failure to provide IT systems that record activity and 
care services provided places both the organisation 
and service users/carers at risk 
 
Risk Treatment Measures 
Data quality checking mechanisms to reconcile data 
to care arranged and payments made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Managerial control of data inputters to ensure data is 
loaded accurately in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly performance monitoring reports to SMT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
A report timetable has been drawn up to clearly 
identify all Data Quality Checks currently taking 
place within the IT Systems & Performance 
Monitoring Team. Where appropriate all reports 
are sent out to Data in-putters and a response 
monitored. 
 
 
The temporary extended responsibilities for the 
Data Quality Project Co-ordinator post, 
concerning supervisory management of data 
inputting staff have now been confirmed as 
critical for the success of the post. The current 
post holder will continue to undertake these 
extended responsibilities under the revised scope 
of the post. 
 
 
Quarterly Monitoring reports are used to 
communicate to Senior Management team on a 
regular and timely basis of any issues regarding 
IT systems and data processing of operational 
data. 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

6



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Health & Partnerships 

22 

Key 
Objective 
(Service 
Plan Ref. 

Only) 

 
 

Risk Control Measures 
 

 
 

Target / 
Deadline 

 
 

Progress 
 

 
 

Commentary 

HP1 Risk Identified: 
Review of 5 year Supporting People Strategy does 
not take place, adversely affecting future service 
delivery. 
 
Risk Treatment Measures 
1. a) Develop local eligibility criteria in line with revise 
ODPM grant conditions and apply during SP review 
to evaluate strategic relevance and cost 
effectiveness of existing services 
b) carry out full financial risk assessment 
 
2. a) Evaluate grounds for legal challenge and 
establish legal defence 
b) Work collectively with neighbouring ‘high cost’ 
authorities to secure services of barrister. 
c) Work to reach agreement with key partners to 
secure alternative sources of funding for existing 
services 
d) Consult with service recipients, carers and their 
families to resolve to their satisfaction any 
disruption/disturbance incurred as a result of funding 
changes to their service. 
 
 
 
3. a)Agree alternative sources of funding for existing 
services prior to review 
b) Consult with providers over the new SP eligibility 
criteria 
c) Agree action plans with providers to achieve 
required ‘savings’ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1. a) completed 
b) completed 
Both to be reviewed following announcement of 
long term funding arrangements for SP 
anticipated in Oct 07 
 
2. a) and b) most authorities established an 
appeal process. Halton’s process aligns with that 
adopted in Knowsley, Warrington and Sefton.  
HBC and Warrington have included a reciprocal 
arrangement to hear appeals on each other’s 
behalf. Arrangements to secure services of a 
barrister to be arranged by legal as and when 
required. 
c) and d) for ALD clients-Retraction Plan 
approved and submitted to DCLG. Project team 
est. in Sept 06-good progress to date. 
d) SP reviews now complete. Negotiations with 
providers/Service completed. 
 
3. a) Retraction Plan approved and submitted to 
DCLG. Project team est. in Sept 06-good 
progress to date. Negotiations with Health 
ongoing re alternative funding for former health 
services. 
b) Eligibility criteria widely disseminated and 

P
a

g
e
 9

7



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Health & Partnerships 

23 

Key 
Objective 
(Service 
Plan Ref. 

Only) 

 
 

Risk Control Measures 
 

 
 

Target / 
Deadline 

 
 

Progress 
 

 
 

Commentary 

 
 
 
 
4. a) Develop 10 year financial plan which takes 
account of the need for an expansion of services, the 
cost effectiveness of current services and the 
anticipated reduction in grant allocation 
b) Conduct full financial risk assessment 
 
5. a) Work to reach agreement with key partners to 
secure alternative sources of funding for existing 
services  
b) Develop 10 year financial plan which takes 
account of the need for an expansion of services, the 
cost effectiveness of current services and the 
anticipated reduction in grant allocation 
c) Work with key partners to investigate alternative 
funding sources for new services 
 
 
6. a) Work to reach agreement with key partners to 
secure alternative sources of funding for existing 
services  
b) Develop 10 year financial plan which takes 
account of the need for an expansion of services, the 
cost effectiveness of current services and the 
anticipated reduction in grant allocation 
c) Work with key partners to investigate alternative 
funding sources for new services 
 
 

 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

communicated to providers 
c) SP reviews now complete. Negotiations with 
providers/Service completed. 
 
4. a) five year projections produced including 
projected savings and growth 
b) full financial risk assessment to be carried out 
when DCLG announce long term funding 
arrangements for SP grant – Oct 07 
 
5. a) five year projections produced including 
projected savings and growth 
b) full financial risk assessment to be carried out 
when DCLG announce long term funding 
arrangements for SP grant –Oct 07 
c) key areas for expansion agreed within 5yr 
strategy. Five-year projections take potential 
growth into account. To be revisited following 
announcement of long term funding 
arrangements. 
 
6. a) key areas for expansion agreed within 5yr 
strategy. Five-year projections take potential 
growth into account. To be revisited following 
announcement of long term funding 
arrangements. 
b) good progress on negotiations with providers 
c) good progress with delivery of SP retraction 
plan for ALD services 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

8



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Health & Partnerships 

24 

Key 
Objective 
(Service 
Plan Ref. 

Only) 

 
 

Risk Control Measures 
 

 
 

Target / 
Deadline 

 
 

Progress 
 

 
 

Commentary 

 
7. a) Work to reach agreement with key partners to 
secure alternative sources of funding for existing 
services 
b) Work with key partners to investigate alternative 
funding sources for new services 
c) Consult with service recipients, carers and their 
families to resolve to their satisfaction any 
disruption/disturbance incurred as a result of funding 
changes to their service. 
 
8. a) Establish open lines of communication with key 
partners 
b) Ensure that any financial planning is carried out in 
partnership 
c) Identify potential risks to all parties resulting from 
withdrawal from partnership arrangements 
d) Develop contingency plan to sustain partnership 
arrangements 
 
 
 
 
9. a) Develop 5 year financial plan which takes 
account of the need for an expansion of services, the 
cost effectiveness of current services and the 
anticipated reduction in grant allocation 
b) Conduct a Council wide financial risk assessment 
c) Prioritise all areas of growth and identify savings 
against low priority growth areas as potential 
contingency fund 
 

 
March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. a) key areas for expansion agreed within 5yr 
strategy. Five-year projections take potential 
growth into account. To be revisited following 
announcement of long term funding 
arrangements. 
b) good progress with delivery of SP retraction 
plan for ALD services 
c) good progress on negotiations with providers 
 
 
8. a) good communication established with 
partners 
b) Joint CM fully informed of implications. 
Looking to develop financial strategy for ALD 
services 
c) report on financial implications from SP 
reviews presented to ALD partnership board in 
Feb 06 
d) Retraction Plan approved by all partners- good 
progress made to date. Negotiations ongoing re 
alternative funding for former health services. 
 
9. a) good communication 
established with partners  
b) Joint CM fully informed of implications. 
Looking to develop financial strategy for ALD 
services 
c) report on financial implications from SP 
reviews presented to ALD partnership board in 
Feb 06 
d) Retraction Plan approved by all partners- good 

P
a

g
e
 9

9



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Health & Partnerships 

25 

Key 
Objective 
(Service 
Plan Ref. 

Only) 

 
 

Risk Control Measures 
 

 
 

Target / 
Deadline 

 
 

Progress 
 

 
 

Commentary 

 
 
 
10. a) Secure additional support for team via 
‘specialist’ teams in Social Services and Health. 
b) Identify resources required 
c) Audit of capacity/ benchmarking of staff 
d) Secure additional staffing resources 
e) Commission Training programme developments 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

March 
2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

progress made to date. Negotiations ongoing re 
alternative funding for former health services. 
 
10. a) Project team established drawing 
resources from specialist ALD team. 
b) SP reviews complete-provider negotiations 
completed 
c,d and e) –not applicable now programme of 
reviews complete. 
SMT have approved merger of H&C contracts 
and SP teams to maximise staff resources and 
mainstream the SP service. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
0



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
Health & Partnerships 

26 

 
 

HIGH Priority Actions 
 

Target  
 

(Resp. 
Officer) 
 

Progress 
(Traffic 
lights)* 
 

Commentary 

Undertake a mapping exercise of informal and formal 
networks for BME groups  
 

Sept 2007 
 

(Sue 
Rothwell) 

 

 

Secured funding through supporting people for a post that will 
form part of the Community Bridge Building Team to work on 
this action and wider issues/needs for BME groups. 
The post should be appointed to by the end of Sept 2007 and 
is funded until March 2008. 
 

Improve Corporate website to ensure basic 
information/welcome in the four main languages in 
Halton, highlighting language and sources of 
information 

Nov 2007 
 

(John 
Gibbon) 

 

 

In Progress. Within target timescale Communications and 
Marketing Team aim to have in place a welcome button on the 
front page of the website in 5 main languages (now including 
Polish) that will link to the attached 

 
Revisit original DDA audit of buildings to assess 
current situation and develop costed, prioritised 
programme of improvements 

Mar 2008 
 

(Janet 
Wood) 

 

 

Two principal managers and one service user completed an 
audit of nine buildings in January 2007.  Information is awaited 
from Property Services in relation to costings.. 

Please note that these actions apply to all three adult social care services (Adults of Working Age, Older People’s Services and Health & Partnerships), and  
are detailed in each of the three plans and monitoring reports. 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
1



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Health & Partnerships 

27 

 
HEALTH & COMMUNITY - HEALTH AND PARTNERSHIPS 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 

To Date 

(overspend) 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

 

Expenditure 

     

      
Employees 3,146 1,545 1,404 141 1,404 
Premises Support 164 0 0 0 0 
Other Premises 77 35 27 8 27 
Supplies & Services         529 249 255 (6) 255 
Training  166 16 14 2 14 
Transport  24 12 11 1 11 
Departmental Support Services 132 0 0 0 0 
Central Support Services 1,052 0 0 0 0 
Agency Related 117 59 68 (9) 68 
Supporting People Payments to 
Providers 

9,234 3,750 3,739 11 3,739 

Specific Grants 129 0 0 0 0 
Asset Charges 905 0 0 0 0 
      

Total Expenditure 15,675 5,666 5,518 148 5,518 

      
Income      
Sales -13 -6 -6 0 (6) 
Receivership -18 -9 -28 19 (28) 
Rents -64 -59 -115 56 (115) 
HR Development Grant -99 -98 -99 1 (99) 
National Training Strategy Grant -159 -159 -159 0 (159) 
Information Management Grant -103 -10 -8 (2) (8) 
Supporting People Main Grant -9,233 -5,330 -5,332 2 (5,332) 
Supporting People Grant -132 -67 -68 1 (68) 
Disabled Facilities Grant -40 -20 -19 (1) (19) 
Departmental Support Services  -3,990 0 0 0 0 
Other Grants -77 -30 -64 34 (164) 
Re-imbursements -91 -91 -147 56 (147) 
Other Income -84 0 0 0 0 

Total Income -14,103 -5,879 -6,045 166 (6,045) 

      

Net Expenditure 1,572 -213 (527) 314 (627) 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Health & Partnerships 

28 

Comments on the above figures: 
 
In overall terms the revenue spending (including commitments) at the end of quarter 2 is below 
budget by £314k. This, in the main, is due to the overachievement of income and also to an 
under-spend on the salary budget.  
 
The under-spend on salary costs of £141k is due to a number of posts being vacant at the start of 
this financial year. However many of these posts are currently being advertised with a view to 
recruit therefore the budget is not expected to be significantly under-spent at year end. The pay 
award for 2007/8 has still not yet been agreed and this will significantly reduce the  under spend. 
 
Receivership Income has increased following a review of the service users needs, changing their 
status from appointee to a receivership service in line with the Mental Capacity Act. This has lead 
to the recovery of higher charges this year. 
 
Rents received during the period are currently overachieving budget profile especially for the 
Riverview site, where rents are higher than anticipated at budget setting time. Included within the 
£115k rents received to date is a one off payment of £17k in respect to rent recovered relating to 2 
prosecutions for non payment of rent from previous years.   
 
Other grants includes £47k Skills for Care, which will be written into the budget by quarter 3 and 
will be spent this financial year. 
 
Reimbursements are also over achieving against budget. These include £10k for Local 
Involvement Network and £29k for practice placements carried forward from 2006/7. 
 
At this stage it is anticipated that overall revenue spending will be in line with the departmental 
budget by the end of the financial year. 

 

Capital Projects as at 30th September2007 

 
 Actual 

 To Date   
 
 

       £’000 

2007/08 
Capital 
Allocation 

 
       £’000                         

Private Sector Housing   

Renovation/Modernisation Grants 70 586 

Disabled Facilities Grants 114 942 

Home Link   10 

Energy Promotion 20 75 

Castlefield Equity Release Loans 66 565 

West Bank Neighbourhood Renewal 
Assessment 

0 4 

Riverview Refurbishment  722 1,272 

Belvedere Repairs 0 28 

Adaptations Initiative 0 92 

Uncommitted 0 122 

   
 
Total Expenditure 

 
992 

 
3,696 

Page 103



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Health & Partnerships 

29 

HEALTH & COMMUNITY – LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BUDGET  
 
Budget as at 30th September2007 

 
 Annual 

Budget 
Budget To 

Date 
Actual To 
Date  

Variance To 
Date 

(Overspend) 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
      
Priority 1 Healthy 
Halton 

     

Recipe For Health  29 14 7 7 7 
Five A Day Programme 49 24 0 24 0 
Vulnerable Adults Task 
Force 

592 296 163 133 163 

Vol. Sector Counselling 
Proj. 

39 20 8 12 8 

Info. Outreach Services 34 17 9 8 9 
Reach for the Stars 34 17 8 9 8 
Carer Support 
Development 

49 24 12 12 12 

Healthy Living 
Programme 

98 49 24 25 24 

Advocacy 
 

63 32 28 4 28 

Priority 2 Urban 
Renewal 

     

Landlord Accreditation 
Programme 

28 14 18 (4) 18 

Priority 5 Safer Halton      
Good Neighbour Pilot 27 13 7 6 7 
Grassroots Development 
Alcohol Harm Reduction 

18 
43 

9 
21 

5 
-21 

4 
42 

5 
-21 

Domestic Violence 77 38 18 20 18 
      

Total Expenditure 
 

1,180 588 286 302 286 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Health & Partnerships 

30 

HEALTH & COMMUNITY  

 
Capital Budget as at 30th September2007 
 

 Actual 
Spend to 
30th Sept 

2007/08 
Capital 

Allocation 
 £000 £000 

   

Social Care & Health 
  

   
DDA 0 24 
LDDF  0 7 
Women’s Centre & Other Projects 100 178 
PODS (Utilising DFG) 0 40 
Bredon Improvements  13 24 
Improvement of Care Homes 127 150 
Bridgewater Capital Improvements 0 1 
Refurbishments to John Briggs 
House 

0 90 

Door Entry System – John Briggs 0 2 
IT for Mobile Working  0 12 

Total Spending 
 

240 528 

 
 
It is anticipated the capital budget will be fully committed by the end of the year. 
 

Page 105



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Health & Partnerships 

31 

FAIR TRADING & LIFE EVENTS 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

 

Expenditure 

     

Employees   722     368     375       (7)  375 
Premises Support   144         0        0        0      0 
Other Premises   252       42      39        3    53 
Hired & Contracted 
Services 

    52       24      27        (3)         45 

Supplies & Services     95       53      53        0     64 
Transport     19       10       11        (1)        11 
Support Services   575        0        0        0       0 
Asset Charges     54        0        0        0         0 

Total Expenditure      1,913     497          505         (8)      548 

      
Income      
Sales     -86     -36     -31       (5)     -31 
Fees & Charges   -630   -274   -287     13       -287 
Grants       -1        0     -11      11     -11 
Rents       -4       -4       -3       (1)      -3 
Support Recharge 
 

  -202        0        0       0       0  

Total Income        -922    -314  - 332       18    -332 

      

Net Expenditure    991        183   173       10   216 

      

 
Comments on the above figures: 
 
In overall terms the revenue spending to the end of quarter 2 is below the budget profile. 
 
Expenditure on employees needs to be monitored. The 2007/08 Budget included a £75,000 
saving item relating to the proposed outsourcing of the Consumer Protection Service. Whilst 
negations are currently underway, this transfer has yet to take place, and so it would seem 
prudent to assume that this saving will not be fully achieved during the current financial year. 
However, a number of vacant posts have been kept unfilled with a view towards contributing to 
this savings item, and the current net overspend on employee costs for the first two quarters is in 
the region of £6,000.  
 
Income budgets are running broadly to target at this stage in the year, and Cemeteries and 
Crematoria income are currently running slightly above the income target for the first two quarters. 
However, due to the nature of the service it is difficult to estimate whether this trend will continue 
for the year. The over-achievement of grants income relates to a payment received from the 
Home Office for copyright enforcement. This grant is fully committed to be spent during the year. 
  

Page 106



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Health & Partnerships 

32 

Capital Projects as at 30th September 2007 
 
 

   Actual  
  To 30th  
    Sept.  
  £’000 

   07-08 
  Capital 
Allocation 
    £’000 

   08-09 
 Capital 
Allocation 
   £’000 

   08-09 
  Capital 
Allocation 
    £’000 

Cemeteries        2            50           0            0 

Headstone Safety Programme      18            50           0            0 

 
Bereavement Services Capital Programmes 
The actual spend of £2,000 shown for the cemeteries programme relates to some minor works 
plus a final payment due on phase 2 of the drainage and grading work, which was carried out on 
the western strip of Widnes cemetery during 2006/2007.  Phase 3 of the western strip works is 
scheduled to commence at the end of September, resulting in the remainder of the capital 
allocation being spent in Q3. 
 
A small underspend in the headstone safety programme has been managed to accommodate a 
small overspend in the cemeteries programme referred to above. 
 
 

 

LSP, External or Grant Funded Items as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

Bill 
Payment 
Service 

          33           16           17               (1)          17 

 

Page 107



APPENDIX SEVEN – EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS 
Health & Partnerships 

33 

 
 

 
The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner: 
 
  Objective Performance Indicator 
    

Green Indicates that the objective 
is on course to be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe. 
 

Indicates that the target is 
on course to be achieved.   

Amber Indicates that it is unclear 
at this stage, due to a lack 
of information or a key 
milestone date being 
missed, whether the 
objective will be achieved 
within the appropriate 
timeframe. 
 

Indicates that it is either 
unclear at this stage or 
too early to state whether 
the target is on course to 
be achieved. 
 

Red 

 

Indicates that it is highly 
likely or certain that the 
objective will not be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe.  
 

Indicates that the target 
will not be achieved 
unless there is an 
intervention or remedial 
action taken. 
 

 

 

Page 108



Culture & Leisure 1 

QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  MMOONNIITTOORRIINNGG  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

DIRECTORATE: Health & Community 
 
SERVICE: Culture & Leisure Services 
 
PERIOD:   Quarter 2 half-year to period-end 30 September 2007.  
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Culture & Leisure 
Department second quarter period up to 30 September 2007. It 
describes key developments and progress against all objectives and 
performance indicators for the service. 
 
The way in which traffic light symbols have been used to reflect progress 
to date is explained in Appendix 7.  
 
It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of 
Policy and Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators 
that are not directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey. 

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

 

The Brindley won the award for the National Lottery Best Arts Project. 
 
Lane Tennis Club have successfully re-located at the St Peter and Paul 
school site and both the indoor and outdoor facilities are fully 
operational.   
 
D.C.Leisure have submitted proposals to enlarge and improve its fitness 
suite at Kingsway Leisure Centre by re-locating it upstairs. 
 
A public inquiry has been held over the proposals to issue a Compulsory 
Purchase Order on Castlefields District Centre.  This is required to 
enable the new centre to proceed, including the building of a new 
Community Centre.  The decision is awaited. 

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES 

 

A decision needs to be taken regarding the transfer of community assets 
in respect of the Kingsway Health Centre building to enable the planning 
of a ‘one-stop shop’ for the voluntary sector to continue.  ICT access on 
the mobile library in Runcorn is severely restricted because of the poor 
coverage of the Vodafone network in the area. 
 
There is a growing need to replace the public p.c’s in libraries. 
 

Page 109



Culture & Leisure 2 

Temporary accommodation will be needed for Runcorn Library if the sale 
of the Egerton Street site occurs. 

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 

 
Total 

 
14 

 

 
12 

 

 
0 

 

 
2 

 

Generally good progress towards milestones/objectives. Further details 
can be found in Appendix 1. 

 
 
4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 
 
 

 
Total 

 
14 

 

 
12 

 

 
0 

 

 
2 

 

There are no “Other” objectives for this service. 

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW 

 

An action plan has been agreed with the IDeA following their validation 
of the Towards an Excellent Service assessment. 
 
 

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Total 

 
6 

 

 
4 

 

 
2 

 

 
0 

 

Performance around violent crime is a cause for concern. For further 
details refer to Appendix 2. 
 

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 
Total 

 
29 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

 
1 

 

Only one “Other” indicator has been reported, this being Domestic 
Burglaries where it is extremely unlikely that the target will be met. The 
remaining indicators will either be reported by exception in Q3 or at year 

Page 110



Culture & Leisure 3 

end. For further details please refer to Appendix 3. 
 

 
7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
 

Appendix 4 

 

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
 

During the production of the 2007-08 Service Plan, the service was 
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.  
 
Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have 
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment 
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring 
report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
There are no Key Service Objectives for this service that have has been 
assessed and found to have associated ‘High’ risks. Therefore, there is 
no progress to report. 

 

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
 

During 2006/07 the service was required to undertake an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that 
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the 
quarterly monitoring report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
For details please refer to Appendix 5. 

 

 

 

10.0 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators  
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators 
Appendix 4- Progress against LPSA targets 
Appendix 5- Progress against high priority equality actions 
Appendix 6- Financial Statement 
Appendix 7- Explanation of traffic light symbols  

 

 

 

 

Page 111



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Culture & Leisure 

4 

 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

CL 1 To contribute to the health and well-being of 
the people of Halton by developing self-
confidence, providing opportunities for self-
achievement, enjoyment and recreation by 
promoting healthy lifestyles through sporting 
and cultural opportunities. 

Secure funding to 
implement proposed 
programme of activity as 
part of Liverpool’s Capital 
of Culture status. 
 
Ensure that Halton’s 
people and their twin 
towns are able to 
participate in Liverpool’s 
800th Birthday 
celebrations in August 
2007.   
 
Establish youth 
development/exchange 
programme with Newham 
B.C. (hosts of Olympics 
2012) in respect of 
sporting and cultural 
opportunities. 
 
Establish an ‘Olympics 
Support Fund’, with 
appropriate criteria to 
allow young Halton talent 
to bid for funding to 
improve their chances of 
being able to participate 
in 2012. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
£40k secured from Capital of Culture 
Company; HBC to underwrite Youth 
Cultural Festival. 
 
 
 
3 Twin Towns attended.  Halton’s 
Samba Band performed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contacts established.  Dialogue 
regarding possibilities on-going.  Will 
be invited to 2008 Youth Cultural 
Festival. 
 
 
 
 
Fund established.  Criteria for 
applications developed, to be 
approved by Executive Board 
Member. 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
2



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Culture & Leisure 

5 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

Establish funding and 
final work programme for 
St Chads Big Lottery 
Fund Sports Hall 
Scheme.  Work to be 
completed October 2007. 
 
Complete design of the 
new Castlefields 
Community Centre as 
part of the Castlefields 
Regeneration Scheme by 
June 2007.  Establish 
funding package by 
March 2008 to allow work 
to proceed. 
 
Develop local PI’s for in-
house ALD Day Services 
and SLA between 
Community Centres and 
ALD Services to measure 
and improve performance 
by June 2007. 
 
Consult with users and 
local communities to 
prepare a Lottery Fund 
bid to upgrade Halton 
Lea Library in line with 
user expectations (May 
07).  Outcome of bid 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Work completed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Inquiry into Compulsory Purchase 
Order on existing shopping centre 
taking place.  Outcome awaited. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PI’s not yet fully developed. SLA’s in 
place.  Performance monitored by 
ALD through their personal action 
plans. 
 
 
 
 
Awaiting outcome of bid, now 
expected in October. 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Culture & Leisure 

6 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

known by September 07.  
If successful, develop 
detailed scheme by 
January 08. 

CL 2 To develop strategies and action plans to 
reduce anti-social behaviour and the 
perceptions of crime. 

Launch new Strategy 
April 07.  Safer Halton 
Partnership to monitor 
Action Plans on a 
quarterly basis. 
 
Establish new structure 
for Community Safety 
Team Sept 07. 
 
Introduce system of 
dedicated Police 
Community Safety 
Officers (PCSO’s) into 
Parks to manage security 
and anti-social behaviour 
issues by May 07.  To be 
reviewed on a quarterly 
basis. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Strategy launched.  Number of reports 
reduced. 
 
 
 
 
Appointment to senior post delayed 
until October. 
 
 
Team in place.  Their duties still need 
to be developed more.  Review has 
been undertaken with Police. 
 
 

CL 3 To implement the Action Plan of the self-
assessment of ‘Towards an Excellent Service’ 
model as prescribed by the Department of 
Culture, Media and Sport.  The plan will 
prioritise areas for self-improvement. 

Action plan agreed with 
IDEA by April 07. 
 
Plan to be presented to 
PPB/Executive Board in 
first cycle of Municipal 
Year. 
 
Culture and Leisure 

 

 
 
 

Action Plan agreed. 
 
 
Report to Executive Board in 
November. 
 
 
 
Quarterly monitoring will commence 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Culture & Leisure 

7 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

Services Management 
team to monitor Action 
Plan on a quarterly basis.  

once the Action Plan has been signed 
off. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
         Culture & Leisure 

8 

 

 

Target

Data as supplied is based on objectives supported within LAA targets and therefore Violent Crimes consist of Common 

Assault and Woundings (serious and other) only. During July to September 2007 Halton Area recorded 519 crimes 

equating to 4.38 per 1000 population (Halton population supplied as 118,450). Halton area achieved a 8.3% decrease when 

compared to the same period during the previous year (566 to 519). If Halton continues with current performance 07/08 

year end projections are 2122 crimes or 17.9 per 1000 population, although above target levels initatives and operations 

planned during the remainder of this fiscal year will impact positively in hope to reduce volumes. Town Centre locations 

encompassing core licensed premises and fast food outlets continue as hotspot areas with alcohol related crimes as main 

May hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

127a Violent crime per 1000 population
Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

Data supplied is based on objectives supported within LAA targets and therefore Robberies consist of Robbery of Personal 

Property only. During July to September 2007 Halton Area recorded 14 crimes equating to 0.12 per 1000 population (Halton 

population supplied as 118,450). Halton area achieved a 50% decrease when compared to the same period during the 

previous year (28 to 14). If Halton continues with current performance 07/08 year end projections are 52 crimes or 0.44 per 

1000 population, highlighting exceptional projected performance against 0.7 target. Halton area is continuing to record low 

crime levels and therefore no specific hotspot location can be identified through significant analysis. Performace presents a 

positive picture for this violent crime type when compared to other most similar crime and disorder reduction partnership 

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

127b Robberies per 1,000 population
Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

1

2

3

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 116



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
         Culture & Leisure 

9 

 

 

Target

Data supplied is based on objectives supported within LAA targets and therefore Vehicle Crime consists of Theft From 

Vehicle, Theft or Unauthorised Taking of Vehicle and Aggravated Vehicle Taking. During July to September 2007 Halton 

area recorded 340 Vehicle crimes equating to 2.87 per 1000 population (Halton population supplied as 118,450). Halton 

area recorded a 10.7% increase when compared to the same period during the previous year (307 to 340). If Halton 

continues with current performance 07/08 year end projections are 1314 crimes or 11.1 per 1000 population highlighting 

exceptional performance against target. Public car parks close to shopping amenities and Hotel car parks continue to  

problematic areas for Theft From Vehicles and Theft of Vehicles appear to be older type/models stolen, Cheshire Police 

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

128 Vehicle crimes per 1000 population
Band

Lower figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

Number in treatment in June year to date (NDTMS) was 818, rising to 851 in August (September's figures have still to be 

released).  Halton recorded a 28% increase on numbers in treatment when compared to the same period in the previous 

year (660 to 818).  Halton is currently the best performing area nationally based on numbers in treatment against planned 

performance, retention target and waiting time target.

Should hit 

target for 

the year
Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

BVPI

198
Participation in Drug Treatment Programmes (per 

1,000 population aged 15 to 44) Band

Higher figures 

represent better 

performance

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 117



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
         Culture & Leisure 

10 

 

 
 
 
 

Target

Actual visits this quarter 166,137, this reflects an increase of just over 14,000 from the equivalent quarter last year and an 

overall increase of 31,000 for the first six months of this year

Should hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

C&LEIPLS

S6C 2c 

Number of library visits per 1,000 population
Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 

year

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

Current level of active membership is 24,910, this reflects a small increase from last quarter. Lapsed user surveys will be 

undertaken over the next 6 months with promotional acitivites and various offers taking place to encourage the take up of 

membership and use of the lending service.

May hit 

target for 

the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

C&LEIC 4 Active borrowers as a % of population
Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 

year

0

10

20

30

40

50

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 118



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Culture & Leisure 

11 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

Corporate Health 

BVPI 
226 

Advise and guidance services, 
 

(a) Total spend by authority (£k) 
 
 
 
(b) % Of spend where service 

provision was by 
organisations holding the 
CLS Quality Mark 

 
(c) Direct provision (£k) 

 
 
398 
 
 
 
81.17 
 
 
 
 
5509 

 

 
 
353 
 
 
 
81.2 
 
 
 
 
6255 

 
 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 
 
 
 
 

N/a 

 
 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 
 
 
 
 

N/a 

 
 
Reported at year end 
 
 
 
Reported at year end 
 
 
 
 
Reported at year end 
 

Cost Efficiency 

BVPI 
220 

Compliance against the Public 
Library Service Standards (PLSS) 

3 3 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

C13 Cost per visit (libraries) £3.25 £3.26 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

Service Delivery 

BVPI 
170 
 
 

(a) Number of visits to/usages of 
museums per 1,000 population 
 
 
(b) Number of those visits that were 
in person per 1,000 population 
 
 
(c) Number of pupils visiting 
museums in organised groups 
 

2247 
 
 

 
236 

 
 
 
16989 

2250 
 
 

 
240 

 
 
 
17500 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 

Half year figures not yet available. These 
3 indicators will be reported by exception 
in Q3. 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Culture & Leisure 

12 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

BVPI 
126 

Domestic burglaries per 1,000 
households 
 
 

13.72 7.33 
 

5.60 
 

 

(Quarter 1 calculations are based on 
48,550 households). 
 
During QUARTER 2 Halton Area 
recorded 133 Domestic Burglaries 
equating to 2.74 per 1000 households. 
 
When compared to the same quarter 
during the previous year Halton Area 
achieved a 25.3% decrease (178 to 133). 
 
If Halton continues with current 
performance 07/08 year end projections 
are 544 crimes or 11.2 per 1000 
households, although this is above fiscal 
target we must note the very low target 
set which equates to a 40% reduction 
from 03/04 baseline data. 
 
If we compare Halton performance 
against MSCDRP up to August 2007 
Halton area is currently better than our 
peers and showing no apparent change in 
6th position out of 15. 
 
Runcorn area had recorded decreased 
crimes however, Widnes area suffered 
disproportion in the number of burglary 
offences, however, recent proactive police 
action has resulted in offenders being 
identified and arrested. 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
0



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Culture & Leisure 

13 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

BVPI 
174 

Number of racial incidents recorded 
by the Authority per 100,000 
population 

37.04 40 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

BVPI 
175 

% Of racial incidents that resulted in 
further action 

100% 100% N/a N/a Reported at year end 

BVPI 
225 

Actions against domestic violence 
(the % of a set of 11 questions to 
which the Authority can answer 
“yes”) 

100% 100% N/a N/a Reported at year end 

PLSS 5 
/C11a 
 
 

Requests supply time, 
 

(a) % Within 7 days 
 

(b) % Within 15 days 
 

(c) % Within 30 days 

 
 

50% 
 

 
70% 

 
 
85% 

 
 

51% 
 

 
71% 

 
 
86% 

 
 

N/a 
 
 

N/a 
 
 

N/a 

 
 

N/a 
 
 

N/a 
 
 

N/a 

Reported at year end 

PLSS 9/ 
C11b 

Annual items added through 
purchase per 1,000 population 

230 226 N/a 

 

N/a Reported at year end 

PLSS 
10/ C11c 

Time taken to replenish the lending 
stock on access or available on loan 

5.24 6.2 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

C12 Stock level and stock turn 
 

(a) Stock turn – issues per 1,000 
population/books per 1,000 
population 

 
(b) Stock level per 1,000 

population 

 
 
7.02 
 
 
 
1107 

 
 
7 
 
 
 
1135 

 

 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 

 
 

N/a 
 
 
 

N/a 

 
 
Reported at year end 
 
 
 
Reported at year end 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Culture & Leisure 

14 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

C16 % Of 5-16 year olds in school sports 
partnerships engaged in 2 hours a 
week minimum on high quality PE 
and school sport within and beyond 
the curriculum 
 

84% 85% N/a N/a Reported at year end 

C17 % Of adults participating in at least 
30 minutes moderate intensity sport 
and active recreation on 3 or more 
days a week 
 

19.62 20.62 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

C18 % Of population volunteering in sport 
and active recreation for at least 1 
hour per week 

5.67 TBC N/a N/a Reported at year end 

Quality 

C15 Museums accreditation 2 2 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

Fair Access 

PLSS 1/ 
C2a 

Proportion of households living within 
a specified distance of a library, 
 

(a) within 1 mile 
 
 
(b) within 2 miles 

 
 
 
62% 
 
 
98% 

 
 
 
62% 
 
 
98% 

 
 
 

N/a 
 
 

N/a 

 
 
 

N/a 
 
 

N/a 

 
 
 
Reported at year end 
 
 
Reported at year end 

PLSS 2/ 
C2b 

Aggregate scheduled opening hours 
per 1,000 population for all libraries 

91% 92% N/a N/a Reported at year end 

PLSS 3/ 
C3a 

% Of static libraries providing access 
to electronic information resources 
connected to the internet 

100% 100% N/a N/a Reported at year end 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
2



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Culture & Leisure 

15 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

PLSS 4/ 
C3b 

Total number of electronic 
workstations available to users per 
1,000 population 

7.6 7.6 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

C19 % Of population that are within 20 
minutes travel time (urban areas – by 
walk; rural areas – by car) of a range 
of 3 different sports facility types, of 
which one has a achieved a specified 
quality assured standard 

35.62% 35.62 N/a N/a Reported at year end 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
3



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Culture & Leisure 

16 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

1 
 

Reduce the level of violent crime: 
 
The number of recorded incidents of 
violent crime within Halton (serious 
woundings and common assault). 

2133 
(2003/4) 

1913 
(Mar 08) 

2005 519 

 

Data as supplied is based on 
objectives supported within LAA 
targets and therefore Violent Crimes 
consist of Common Assault and 
Woundings (serious and other) only.  
 
During July to September 2007 
Halton Area recorded 519 crimes 
equating to 4.38 per 1000 
population (Halton population 
supplied as 118,450). Halton area 
achieved an 8.3% decrease when 
compared to the same period during 
the previous year (566 to 5319.  
 
If Halton continues with current 
performance 07/08 year end 
projections are 2122 crimes or 17.9 
per 1000 population, although 
above target levels initiatives and 
operations planned during the 
remainder of this fiscal year will 
impact positively in hope to reduce 
volumes.  
 
During August 2007 Creamfields 
Music Festival was held impacting 
on increased volume crimes within 
Daresbury Ward. However, Town 
Centre locations encompassing 
core licensed premises and fast 
food outlets are hotspot areas with 
alcohol related crimes as main 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
4



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Culture & Leisure 

17 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

causation factor. 
 
If we compare Halton performance 
against MSCDRP for total violent 
crimes up to August 2007 Halton 
area is currently 11th position out of 
15 in line with our peers and 
performance shows no apparent 
change. 
 
Halton Safer Halton Partnership 
Team has now appointed post of 
Community Safety Projects Officer 
to explore future violent crime 
reduction initiatives. 

2 Reduction in vehicle crime in Halton: 
 
i) The number of thefts of vehicles in 
Halton 
 
 

 
 

753 
(2003/4) 

 
 

558 
(Mar 08) 

 
 

529 

 
 

132  

During July to September 2007 
Halton Area recorded 132 crimes 
equating to 1.11 per 1000 
population (Halton population 
supplied as 118,450). 
 
Halton area achieved a 0.8% 
decrease when compared to the 
same period during the previous 
year (133 to 132).  
 
If Halton continues with current 
performance 07/08 year end 
projections are 498 highlighting 
exceptional projected performance 
against targets. 
 
Cheshire Police have one ongoing 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
5



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Culture & Leisure 

18 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

Operation running to deter travelling 
criminals entering Widnes and 
committing vehicle crimes. Also one 
Operation in relation to increased 
crime in relation to theft of older 
vehicles. 
 
If we compare Halton performance 
against MSCDRP for theft of vehicle 
crime up to August 2007 Halton 
area is currently 6th position out of 
15 and performance is in line with 
MSG average. 
 
Total Vehicle crime (Theft From and 
Theft Of Vehicles) is currently 
showing no apparent change and 
performing in line with our peers 
when compared to MSCDRP. 
 

  
ii) The number of thefts from vehicles in 
Halton 
 

 
1108 

(2003/4) 

 
749 

(Mar 08) 

 
908 

 
198 

 

During July to September 2007 
Halton Area recorded 208 crimes 
equating to 1.76 per 1000 
population (Halton population 
supplied as 118,450). 
 
Halton area recorded a 19.5% 
increase when compared to the 
same period during the previous 
year (174 to 208).  
 
If Halton continues with current 
performance 07/08 year end 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
6



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Culture & Leisure 

19 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

projections are 816 highlighting 
achievable projected performance 
against targets. 
 
Hotel parking areas within 
Daresbury Ward and shopping area 
public car parks within Widnes area 
were highlighted for highest 
volumes of Theft from Vehicles. 
 
If we compare Halton performance 
against MSCDRP for theft from 
vehicle crime up to August 2007 
Halton area is currently 6th position 
out of 15 and performance is well 
below MSG average lower bound. 
 
Total Vehicle crime (Theft From and 
Theft Of Vehicles) is currently 
showing no apparent change and 
performing in line with our peers 
when compared to MSCDRP.  
 

3 Improving the health and well-being of 
residents: 
 
The percentage of adults in Halton 
participating in at least 30 minutes 
moderate intensity sport and active 
recreation (including recreational walking) 
on 3 or more days a week, as measured 
by Sport England’s Active People survey. 

 
 
 

19.62 
(Nov 
2006) 

 
 
 

21.32 
(Nov 
2009) 

 
 
 

19.62 

   
 
 
Reporting now quarterly into LAA 
Healthier Communities and Older 
Adults reporting into Health SSP.  
LPSA includes 2% stretch on C17. 

4 Tackling the problems of domestic       

P
a
g
e
 1

2
7



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Culture & Leisure 

20 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

violence: 
 
1. The number of incidents of domestic 
violence reported to the police (directly or 
through a third party) in Halton. 

 
 

1613 
(2004/5) 

 
 

1774 
(Mar 08) 

 
 

2132 

 
 

644 

 

 

 
Data provided for each month is 
well over the target of 148 per 
month. 

  
2. The proportion of incidents of domestic 
violence which result in a sanction 
detection. 

 
269 

(2005/6) 

 
282 

(Mar 08) 

 
242 

 
54 

 

Target is 72 per quarter, however, 
there is a delay on some sanctions 
so there it may be higher than 
recorded for this question. 

  
3. The proportion of the total number of 
incidents of domestic violence reported 
annually to the police (directly or through a 
third party) in the same period, who are 
repeat victims. 

 
23% 

(2003/4) 

 
18% 

(Mar 08) 

 
20% 

 

 
8.5% 

 

Number of repeat victims has 
decreased as an overall quarterly 
percentage, but is not meeting 
monthly targets of 13 or below 

5 Reducing the harm caused by drug 
misuse: 
 
1. The number of individuals in Halton 
who are in contact with structured drug 
treatment services. 

 
 
 

604 
(2004/5) 

 
 
 

790 
(2008/9) 

 
 
 

879 

 
 
 

851 

 
 

 

Numbers are for August 07. 
Continuing to perform above target 

  
2. The percentage of individuals in Halton 
starting treatment who are retained in 
treatment for over 12 weeks. 

 
80% 

(2004/5) 

 
88% 

(2008/9) 

 
83% 

93% 

 

Percentage is for Aug 07. 
Continuing to perform above target 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
8



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
Culture & Leisure 

21 

HIGH Priority Actions 
 

Key milestones 

Progress 
(Traffic 
lights) 

 

Commentary 

2.1 
Identify under represented groups (through 
analysis of data in 1.4 above). Develop new 
methods for supporting hard to reach 
groups to participate in consultation and 
engagement by April 2008 

 
Consult with Hard to 
Reach groups in 
collaboration with 
Cheshire Racial 
Equality Council who 
have established 
contacts and Halton 
networks on the take 
up and barriers to 
cultural services 
Feb 28th 2008 
 
PPB community 
cohesion monitoring 
10th March 2008 

 

 

 
Meeting held with Racial Equality Council 

2.2 
Establish an equal opportunities policy for 
C&L by December 2007 

 
Establish project 
team 30th Sept 2007 
 
Cohesion indicators 
from Audit 
Commission to be 
included in equality 
impact assessments 
1st April 2008 

 

 
 

 
Project team established. 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
9



APPENDIX FIVE – PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
Culture & Leisure 

22 

HIGH Priority Actions 
 

Key milestones 

Progress 
(Traffic 
lights) 

 

Commentary 

2.3 
Incorporate equality targets/ objectives & 
cohesion indicators into C&L service and 
Divisional plans by February 2008 

 
Revise plan format 
and include Equality 
targets as standard 
28th Feb 2008 
 
Adoption of plans by 
the council and 
monitoring by PPB’s. 
10th March 2008 

 

 

 
Part of Service Planning process. 

 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

3
0



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Culture & Leisure 

23 

Financial Statement 
 
Cultural & Leisure Services 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 
 

Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 

Committed 
Items 
£’000 

 

Expenditure 

     

      
Employees 4,082 2,012 1,923 89 1923 
Grounds Maintenance 2,648 0 0 0 0 
Premises Support 829 0 0 0 0 
Other Premises 648 373 374 (1) 374 
Book Fund 256 105 101 4 101 
Hired & Contracted 464 222 227  (5) 300 
Promotions 151 76 65 10 101 
Other Supplies & Serv.        445 214 218 (4) 218 
Transport 71 35 33 3 33 
Leisure Mgt. Contract 1,282 534 538 (4) 538 
Grants 650 479 482 (3) 483 
Other Agency 139 70 59 11 90 
Asset Charges 1,570 0 0 0 0 
Support Services 3,432 0 0 0 0 
      

Total Expenditure 16,667 4,119 4,020 99 4,161 

      
Income      

Sales -118 -59 -80 21 -80 
Fees & Charges -518 -257 -292 35 -292 
Rents -17 -9 -11 2 -11 
Support Recharges -1,521 0 0 0 0 
Grant Funding -270 0 -4 4 -4 
Reimbursements -935 

 
-169 -178 8 -178 

Total Income -3,379 -494 -564 70 -564 

      

Net Expenditure 13,288 3,625 3,456 169 3,597 

 
 

Comments on the above figures: 
In overall terms revenue spending to the end of quarter 2 is under budget.  

   
The underspend on Employee costs relates to a number of posts which are vacant, but which are 
in the process of being filled. It is not anticipated that  
there will be a significant underspend on this budget heading at the year-end. 
 
Whilst the “Other Premises Costs” budget heading is currently showing expenditure to budget, 
expenditure on energy costs will need careful monitoring. Expenditure on gas and electricity costs 

Page 131



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Culture & Leisure 

24 

are anticipated to be significantly higher in the third and fourth quarters, and remedial action may 
be needed to ensure a balanced budget is achieved. 

 
The overachievement of sales and fees and charges income is primarily related to the Brindley 
Arts Centre. Income is significantly above target for the first two quarters, although it cannot be 
assumed that a similar trend will continue for the remainder of the year. 

 
At this stage it is anticipated that overall revenue spending will be in line with the Departmental 
budget by the end of the financial year.   
  

Capital Projects as at 30th September 2007 
 
 Actual 

Spend To 
30 Sept. 

 
 

       £’000 

2007/08 
Capital 

Allocation 
 
 

       £’000                         

2008/09 
Capital 

Allocation  
 
 

       £’000 

    

Show Pitches 0 40 0 

Hale Park 0 35 0 

Athletics track 147 301 0 

Improvements To Pavilions 0 30 0 

Brindley Forestage 4 30 0 

Victoria Park CCTV 10 28 0 

Skate Park 0 100 0 

    

  
108 

 
564 

 
0 

 
 

LSP, External or Grant Funded Items as at 30th September 2007 
 

 

 
Annual  
Revised 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance 
To Date 
(overspend) 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Including 

Committed 
Items 
£’000 

 
Priority 1: Healthy Halton 

     

Sports Partnership 59 30 16 14 16 

Health & Physical Activity 39 20 17 3 17 

Enhanced Sports 75 37 12 25 12 

Sub Total  173 87 45 42 45 

      

Priority 3: Children & Young 
People 

     

Vikings In The Community 50 25 13 12 13 

Page 132



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Culture & Leisure 

25 

Sub Total  50 25 13 12 13 

      

Priority 4:Employment Learning & 

Skills 
     

Citizen’s Advice Bureau 68 34 0 34 0 

Sub Total 
 
Priority 5:Safer Halton 

68 34 0 34 0 

Youth Splash 178 89 53 36 53 

Blue Lamp 631 315 158 157 158 

Prolific & Persistent Offenders 47 23 12 11 12 

Positive Futures 25 12 21   (9) 21 

Sub Total  881 439 
 

244 195 244 

            
 
Total Expenditure 

 
1,172 

 
585 

 
302 

 
283 

 

 
302 

 
Comments on the above figures: 
 
Regular monitoring reports are sent to the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) in respect of all LSP 
projects and any areas of concern are dealt with throughout the year by the LSP support team and 
individual project managers. Some variances against the budget to date are expected, as the LSP 
have deliberately over-programmed in order to ensure that the full allocation of Neighbourhood 
Renewal Fund grant is spent during the year.

Page 133



APPENDIX SEVEN – EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS 
Culture & Leisure 

26 

 
 

 
The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner: 
 
  Objective Performance Indicator 
    

Green Indicates that the objective 
is on course to be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe. 
 

Indicates that the target is 
on course to be achieved.   

Amber Indicates that it is unclear 
at this stage, due to a lack 
of information or a key 
milestone date being 
missed, whether the 
objective will be achieved 
within the appropriate 
timeframe. 
 

Indicates that it is either 
unclear at this stage or 
too early to state whether 
the target is on course to 
be achieved. 
 

Red 

 

Indicates that it is highly 
likely or certain that the 
objective will not be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe.  
 

Indicates that the target 
will not be achieved 
unless there is an 
intervention or remedial 
action taken. 
 

 

 

Page 134



Economic Regeneration 1 

QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  MMOONNIITTOORRIINNGG  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

DIRECTORATE: Environment 
 
SERVICE: Economic Regeneration 
 
PERIOD:   Quarter 2 half-year to period-end 30 September 2007. 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Economic Regeneration 
Department second quarter period up to 30 September 2007 It describes key 
developments and progress against all objectives and performance indicators 
for the service. 
 
The way in which traffic light symbols have been used to reflect progress to 
date is explained in Appendix 7. 
 
It should be noted that this report is presented to a number of Policy and 
Performance Boards. Those objectives and indicators that are not 
directly relevant to this Board have been shaded grey. 

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Funding for adult learning provision from the Children and Young People Area 
Networks (CYPANs) has been signed off. The value has increased from £99k 
to £139K to incorporate an additional £40k for family learning provision.  
 
A pre qualification questionnaire has been submitted to the Learning & Skills 
Council as part of its 2008/9 European Social Fund procurement round. If 
successful, this will enable the division to submit tenders for future skills and 
employment activity.  
 
The ‘O2 Protocol’, a multi-agency approach to supporting the recruitment and 
retention needs at O2 Preston Brook, has been completed. The Economic 
Regeneration Service delivered the first bespoke package of training and 
employment support to 13 local residents who aspire to work at O2. Five 
completed the full package and the course is now being evaluated.   
 
17 voluntary and community sector organisations have been successful in 
receiving funding from the Neighbourhood Learning in Deprived Communities 
Grant 2007/8 (an LSC fund managed by the department). Projects commenced 
September 2007 and included a mixture of both capital and revenue schemes 
that will work in the heart of deprived communities. 
 
The first Certificate in Childcare & Education course offered directly through the 
Adult Learning and Skills Division commenced September 2007, with 30 
enrolments from a wide range of individuals, including one male. This project is 
currently funded through NRF and it is hoped that alternative funding can be 
secured to continue the project beyond NRF. 
 

Page 135



Economic Regeneration 2 

A Service Level Agreement has been agreed with Job Centre Plus, whereby 
eligible New Deal for Lone Parents and New Deal for Partners customers could 
qualify for a weekly training grant, childcare and travel costs if their chosen 
course is work focussed and has been identified on their action plan.  Four 
learners from the Certificate in Childcare and Education course are already 
benefiting from the financial support. 
 
A new ‘IT Admin Skills’ course has been introduced from September 2007.  
The course is focussed on the skills needed in the modern workplace and eight 
learners have enrolled.  Job Centre Plus have agreed that learners on this 
course could qualify for the financial support agreed within the Service Level 
Agreement. 
 
Fisher Associates have been employed to undertake a Skills Assessment of 
the logistics sector in Halton. The assessment was due to report at the end of 
October 2007, however, more time may now be needed following on the recent 
Westbury/Stobart/O'Connor announcement.   
 
The Annual unaudited Use of Funds Statement to LSC (for all LSC funds 
coming into the Division) was submitted in September 2007 and it reported on 
the expenditure for 2006/7. All budgets were spent in full. 
 
The Department has commenced a new programme of assisting carers into 
employment supported by £16,000 of HBC Carers Grant. Six carers have been 
assisted into work during Q2. 
 
Jobcentre Plus has recently audited the New Deal contracts that the service 
delivers and a top rating of ‘Full Assurance’ has been awarded.    
 
Another new programme is the Halton Inspiring Women project. Working in 
conjunction with Jobcentre Plus the project will provide 4 personal development 
courses that will allow up to 48 women from disadvantaged groups and wards 
to develop their personal skills and provide a routeway to employment, 
enterprise or learning.  
 
City Employment Strategy – Halton Deprived Areas Funding (DAF) 
The Employment Learning and Skills SSP has signed-off the Halton DAF Plan 
which provides £639,000 of DWP funding over two years to provide 
employment, enterprise & skills projects for residents from the 6 DAF Wards 
i.e. Castlefields, Grange, Halton Lea, Windmill Hill, Kingsway & Riverside.  
 
Enterprising Halton has launched a new business start-up   competition to 
encourage residents to come forward with new business ideas. The ‘dragon’s 
den’ type competition has attracted 7 new potential start-ups, which are being 
supported with 1:1 business advice. The winner of the competition will be 
selected by a panel of local businesses and receive £1,500 cash prize in 
addition to menu of support offered to all new start-ups. 
 
The JCP contract Pathways to Work In Work Support Service has provided 
support to 89 Incapacity Benefit (IB) recipients who have progressed into work 
across the JCP Greater Mersey District that includes 51 Halton residents. JCP 
have advised that the contract is the best performing in the country. 
 
LSC Next Steps Contract has been awarded by Connexions for 2007/8. HPiJ 
delivers the provision that is subject to an Ofsted Inspection in November 2007. 

Page 136



Economic Regeneration 3 

 
HPiJ has delivered a pilot pre-release employment programme for prisoners 
from HMP AltCourse who are due for release and will resettle in Halton. 
 
The Mersey Partnership has recruited a dedicated ‘Sales Team’ to take forward 
the work of the Liverpool City Region Single Investment Agency (SIA). The 
Sales Team will identify and actively target mobile investment projects whose 
location requirements can be satisfied in the sub-region. The Business 
Development Team (BDT) are currently undertaking a process of 
‘familiarisation’ with the Sales Team to ensure that they are fully briefed about 
the ‘Halton Product.’    
 
The inaugural Widnes Waterfront Business Steering Group has taken place. 
The aim is to develop this initiative along the lines of the Astmoor and Halebank 
Business Parks initiatives.  
 
General assistance to small and medium enterprises (SMEs) through the E-
Halton programme continues to exceed the quarterly targets but there is still a 
very slow uptake on offers of financial assistance within the target areas. A 
review has been undertaken and options considered for ensuring the financial 
targets for the project are met.  Additional targeted marketing within the eligible 
areas has been initiated and this has resulted in further enquiries.  
 

The Borough’s Town Centre Forums (Widnes, Runcorn and Victoria Square) 
have agreed upon a series of priorities for their individual area budgets. This is 
the first (pilot) year that the traders have participated in the town centre 
management budget setting process.  
 
A Continental Market is planned for Widnes Town Centre between 18 and 20 
October 2007. Initial work is now underway for the creation of a weekly Street 
Market in Runcorn Old Town. 
 
The Vintage Fair Organ and Steam Rally at the end of September was very 
well received. Estimates of 45,000 people in attendance 

 

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES 

 

Following initial feedback from the Learning and Skills Council on the Personal 
and Community Development Learning (PCDL) mapping exercise, the Head of 
Adult Learning and Skills Development (ALSD) will take a lead role in 
developing a PCDL Partnership. LSC will make available £17k for the 
development of a ‘learninghalton’ website (to mirror that which is already live in 
Wirral) that will provide up to date information for all the adult learning that is 
available in Halton.  
 
Adult & Community Learning (ACL) September enrolments have seen an 
overall drop of 5% in learner numbers when compared to the same period last 
year (490 learners in 2006, 464 learners in 2007). Contributing factors for this 
drop include: 

• Increase of fees for First Steps classes from £10 per course to £15 per 
course (fee remission still applies for learners on benefits). 

• Introduction of £55 resources cost for all floristry classes (no fee 
remission applicable).   

Page 137



Economic Regeneration 4 

• Timetabling classes to meet waiting lists whilst balancing tutors’ 
teaching hours with core-contracted hour.  

• Uncertainty around Children’s Centres provision and contact persons 
within the Children’s Centre to allow timely organisation of courses.  
This should now be resolved with the confirmation of the Service Level 
Agreement and the two related Employment, Learning & Skills Co-
ordinator staff posts. 

 
Following the Halton Science Dinner on July 26 2007 a detailed Action Plan to 
take the initiative forward has been developed. There are insufficient in-house 
resources to deliver this major new area of work so a recent graduate is to be 
engaged for a 26-week period (supported by TMP) under Liverpool 
Universities Graduate into Employment Unit (GIEU) programme to support the 
initiative.  

The creation of a Liverpool City Region Single Investment Agency (SIA) has 
created a substantial budget pressure. Each local authority has agreed to 
contribute £50,000 in the first year rising to an anticipated £140,000 by year 
three. The Borough Council has identified a one off budget to support the 
initiative in Year 1, but there are not available budgets for the future. Progress 
of the initiative must be monitored very closely to determine whether it is value 
for money.  This needs to be viewed in the context of the recent 
announcement that foreign direct investment to the UK dropped 28 per cent in 
2006 compared with 2005, to $140bn (£69bn), according to figures published 
by the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development.  

 
The cost of some essential Health and Safety items for events has spiraled 
during the past year resulting in some costs rising by 100%. This is due to the 
implementation of the SIA (Security Industries Association) regulations for 
security staff that has seen rates rise substantially. The Company that 
currently works for HBC on a contract basis works out to £9.00 per hour. 
However, it only has the staff for site security or roving patrols for HBC 
premises and cannot cover events. The increase in rates now means that for 
events the council has to pay anything between £13 - £20 per hour. The 
increase in security costs for the recent vintage rally alone was £900. The 
impact of this and what other alternatives there may be are now being 
investigated.  
 
The provision of First Aid cover is also proving difficult. The number of 
volunteer staff has diminished in both the Red Cross and St Johns Ambulance 
Services. They are unable to supply the numbers we require to cover sites. 
There is little alternative other than contracting  professional rather than 
voluntary services who can supply such cover. As an example, last year we 
paid £270 for cover at the Vintage Rally for the whole weekend. This year the 
costs from a professional company are £290 for the first 5 hours and £90 per 
hour thereafter for each team of 2 inc an ambulance response vehicle/ defib/ 
oxygen. 
 
Highlight Pyrotechnics, the local firework supplier have told us that the price of 
fireworks from a main supplier - China - will increase by 50% next year. This 
will affect the profit margins in the industry and also lead to a substantial rise in 
cost for our display. Highlight is willing to limit the increase to 15% next year 
and if we enter into a contract for 3 years, maintaining that price until the end 
of the contract. However the uncertainty of the budget situation currently may 

Page 138



Economic Regeneration 5 

mean we are unable to enter into such a contract and as such be forced to pay 
year on year increases. Without budget increases or a radical altering of the 
show it will be difficult to ensure safety at events without impinging on the 
quality and thus the image/ peoples view of HBC run events. These issues are 
to be considered by the Urban Renewal and the Safer Halton PPBs.   
 
The success of the Vintage Fair Organ and Steam Rally resulted in car parking 
issues in and around Victoria Park. These will need to be addressed to cope 
with the increase in numbers attending next year. 
 
Opportunity will soon arise for the submission of a pre qualification 
questionnaire for Jobcentre Plus as part of its 2008/9 European Social Fund 
procurement round. However, issues are already being identified with this. 
Halton is to be put into a new Halton, Warrington and Cheshire JCP district. 
The council has objected to this as it separates it from the rest of Merseyside 
(that will form a new Mersey district). This means though Halton is part of the 
City Employment Strategy (CES) with the other 5 local authorities we are now 
in different contracting areas. JCP says that Halton will not be disadvantaged 
as a CES partner but the specifications that have been put out for the two 
contracting areas are different. Also, it could well mean that there are different 
providers operating in Halton to the rest of Merseyside. It would seem that 
Halton now has a high risk of being isolated from the rest of the CES 
partnership. One option for Halton to counteract this isolation is to establish 
itself as a leader in the CES process by bidding to become a prime contractor 
for the Merseyside district contracts. If successful, it would then be possible to 
form a consortium for the provision with the other 5 local authorities.         

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 

 
Total 

 
19 

 

 
18 

 

 
1 

 

 
0 

 
There is good progress towards the objectives/milestones for this 
service, further details can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

 
 
4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 
 
 

 
Total 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 
There are no “Other” objectives/milestones for this service. 
 

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW 

 

There are no service reviews outcomes to report this quarter. 

Page 139



Economic Regeneration 6 

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Total 

 
9 

 

 
8 

 

 
1 

 

 
0 

 

Good progress towards 8 of the Key performance indicators. Some 
concern is shown at the half-year stage in respect of the contribution 
towards the number of jobs safeguarded (ECO RLI 8). For further details 
please refer to Appendix 2. 
 

 

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 
Total 

 
4 

 

 
4 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 
All 4 “Other” performance indicators are expected to meet their targets. 
Further details can be found in Appendix 3. 
 

 
7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
 

The good progress towards LPSA targets is detailed in Appendix 4. 
 

 

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
 

During the production of the 2007-08 Service Plan, the service was 
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.  
 
Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have 
associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment 
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring 
report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
For details please refer to Appendix 5. 

 

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
 

During 2006/07 the service was required to undertake an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that 
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the 
quarterly monitoring report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
There are no High priority actions for this service, therefore, there is no 
progress to report. 

Page 140



Economic Regeneration 7 

 

 

10.0 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 2- Progress against Key Performance Indicators 
Appendix 3- Progress against Other Performance Indicators 
Appendix 4- Progress against LPSA targets 
Appendix 5- Progress against Risk Treatment Measures 
Appendix 6- Financial Statement 
Appendix 7- Explanation of traffic light symbols  

 

 

 

 

Page 141



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Economic Regeneration 

8 

 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

ER01 Promote diversity and competitiveness, in 
order to develop a modernised and more 
competitive business base to provide greater 
employment security for the Halton 
community. 

Implement Phase 2 
marketing action plan by 
30-3-08 
 
 
 
Forward Strategy for 
eHalton by 30-9-07 
 
 
 
 
Expand business Parks 
to another estate by 30-
6-07 (dependent on 
funding) 
 
 
Present options for future 
of eHalton to Strategic 
Director Environment by 
31-10-07 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Reductions in the marketing budget 
has resulted in reduced marketing 
activity in the current quarter 
 
 
Completed. Given that there is a lack 
of funding to continue the programme 
beyond December 2008, the forward 
strategy is to cease the service in 
December 2008. 
 
 
Inaugural meeting of the Widnes 
Waterfront Business Park Steering 
Group 3rd October 2007 
 
 
The absence of funding for continuing 
the programme means that the only 
option to be presented to the Strategic 
Director will be to close it down. 

ER02 Develop sectors and clusters with a view to 
developing stronger business inter-linkages 
and stronger overall business performance in 
Halton 

Implement phase2 sector 
plans for tourism, science 
and chemicals – by 31-3-
08 
 
 
Facilitate the 
development of 
Daresbury Science and 
Innovation Campus 

 
 
 
 

 

A detailed Action Plan for Science in 
Halton has been developed. A 
graduate is being recruited through 
the GIEU to kick-start the work. 
 
 
The BDT are fully engaged with the 
DSIC Master Planning exercise and 
negotiations with Marshalls, the new 
owners of Daresbury Park 

P
a
g

e
 1

4
2



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Economic Regeneration 

9 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

ER03 Foster enterprise and entrepreneurship in 
order to develop an enterprise culture that 
encourages people to consider starting a 
business and give new ventures every chance 
of success.    

Explore on-line enterprise 
game by 30-9-07  
 
 
 
Establish Halton 
Enterprise Island pilot by 
30-9-07  
 
 
 
 
Develop LEGI bid by 31-
3-08 (subject to round 
three taking place) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
- 

On line version under development. 
Primary and maritime versions 
already being test played.   
 
 
The enterprise challenge was 
launched in September 2007 and 7 
entrants have been short-listed. The 
final of the competition will be held in 
Enterprise Week (12-16 November)  
 
 
The government has announced that 
the LEGI programme will not be 
extended to a third round. 
  
 

ER04 Reduce unemployment and increase 
employment by equipping people with the 
basic skills and assisting them to secure 
employment 

Review Basic Skills 
Strategy by 30-9-07 
 
 
Outreach pilot 
programme to be 
evaluated by 31-12-2007 
 
 
Deliver JCP co-finance 
contracts by 31-3-2008  
 
Deliver ILMs programme 
by 31.3.2008 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Final Draft SfL Executive Summary 
has been finalised (end September 
2007) – due to go to print end October 
2007 
The previous JCP staffed outreach 
initiative has been evaluated. A new 
outreach programme will shortly be 
launched by reconfiguration of HPiJ.  
 
All contracts are running satisfactorily.  
 
 
The Halton ILM is exceeding expected 
job outcomes and the PCT mental 
health ILM is progressing well.   

P
a
g
e
 1

4
3



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Economic Regeneration 

10 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

ER05 Raise workforce skill levels by reviewing and 
addressing the skills deficit in Halton 

Review TNA provision 
between 30-6-06 & 30-6-
07 
 
 
Develop a Skills Sub-
Group of the ELS by 30-
6-07 
 
SSP to consider 
customer satisfaction 
post LSC revamp by 31-
3-08 

 
 
 

 
 

 

ELS SSP has allocate Deprived Areas 
Funding to enable expansion of TNA 
provision to meet demand 
 
 
 
The Skills Group met twice in Q2.  
 
 
 
Skills and satisfaction survey of 
businesses to commence November.  

ER06 Encouraging investment in land and property 
to develop assets that meet business needs 
and help to produce an attractive and 
prosperous Borough. 

Commence Implementing 
commercial property plan 
by 30-3-08 
 
Complete delivery of BIA 
scheme by 31-3-08 

 
 

 

The first draft of the Astmoor Master 
Planning Group report has been 
completed 
 
One new application approved this 
quarter with a further four awaiting 
approval 

ER07 Improving the environment and image of the 
borough including town centres, to appeal to 
residents, encourage visitors, businesses and 
investors. 

Annual footfall statement 
by 30-9-07 
 
Finalise night time plan 
for Victoria square by 31-
12-07 

 

 

Statement included under ‘Service 
Delivery’ indicators in this report 
 
Risk assessment prepared and a draft 
Victoria Square Night Time Economy 
Plan produced 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

4
4



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
           Economic Regeneration 
11 

 

 

Target

HPIJ has supported 178 and the Employment Team has assisted 40 people into work during this period. This has involved 
working with a number of internal and external partners such as Connexions, JobCentre Plus, Shaw Trust, Link up. Several 

community engagement activities have taken place including regular surgeries in JCP, attendance at community events 
and workshops/coffee mornings. 

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 1 Number of local people into jobs
Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

Positive second quarter making up for the slightly lower number of enquiries in quarter 1. 

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 5
Number of inward investment enquiries per 

annum Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 145



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
           Economic Regeneration 
12 

 

 

Target

Slight dip in conversion numbers, possibly effected by slowdown in enquiry numbers late 2006-07 and early in this year. 14 
conversions took industrial space, four offices and one retail. Source of enquiries 4 start ups, 8 expansions, 1 UK, 1 

overseas, 3 NW and 2 Merseyside.

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 6 Inward investment enquiry conversion rate
Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 
year

0

5

10

15

20

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

HPIJ have assisted 32 clients into work in q2 who are in reciept of a Disability related benefit. The Employment Team have 
helped 13 people with disabilities into permitted/paid work.

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 2
Number of local people with disabilities into 

permitted/paid work Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 146



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
           Economic Regeneration 
13 

 

 

Target

This quarter takes into account all those learners that were still active at the end of the summer term (July 2007

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2005/6

2006/7

ECO RLI 3
Number of learners accessing adult learning 

provision (by end of July) - academic year Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

Enrolments in Q2 2007/8 include all enrolments that were still active at the end of the summer term (mid July 2007).

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2005/6

2006/7

ECO RLI 4
Number of learner enrolments (by end of July) - 

academic year Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 147



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
           Economic Regeneration 
14 

 

 

Target

HPiJ recruited 11 clients to new jobs at Wilkinsons Runcorn and have submitted 34 clients to the new jobs available at 
Hombase in Runcorn - job outcomes will not be known until Oct/Nov 2007.

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 7
Contribution to the number of jobs created, as a 

direct result of the service/s being provided Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Target

HPIJ supported 8 clients who were facing redundancy into work in the last quarter.

May hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 8
Contribution to the number of jobs safe guarded, 

as a direct result of the service/s being provided Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Amber

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Worse than 

this time last 
year

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 148



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
           Economic Regeneration 
15 

 
 
 
 

Target

The Enterprising Halton Service handled a significant number (167) enquiries during Q2, all of whom are reciving 1:1 
business advice and support. There were 16 new start-ups during the period.

Should hit 

target for 
the year

No quartile data 

available

Commentary

2006/7

2007/8

ECO RLI 9
New business start-ups and self-employment 

starts Band

Target

Key

PAF Assessment

Better

### ###### ###

Green

Not a PAF indicator

###

Current

Trend

Top 25%

Middle 50%

Bottom 25%

Better than 

this time last 
year

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Outturn Quartile

Page 149



APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Economic Regeneration 

16 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

                 Service Delivery Indicators. 

ER PI 10 No of day visitors per annum to the 
borough (Calendar year) 

4.261m +2% Annual 
count 

 

2005 was 4.154m. As such 2006 is a 
2.5% increase.  

ER PI 11 Footfall in the town centres 9.27m 9.45m 6.7m 

 

Additional counters installed mean the 
numbers are not directly comparable but 
an end of year reconciliation will provide 
comparable data. One counter has 
recently been stolen  

                 Quality of Service Indicators. 
ER PI 12 Percentage of business customers 

using the inward investment services 
(including aftercare) expressing 
satisfaction with the services & 
support provided  
(Audit Commission ECR18e) 

100% 82% 100% 

 

Every client ‘who has completed a 
Service Feedback Form’ has expressed 
satisfaction with the service 

                 Cost & Efficiency Indicators. 
ER PI 13 Cost per job created and/or 

safeguarded to which the authorities 
inward investment promotional 
activity has made a significant 
contribution. 
(Audit Commission ECR18d) 

£126.00 £142.00 £102.05 

 

Ahead of expectation 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
0



APPENDIX FOUR– PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
Economic Regeneration 

17 

LPSA 
Ref. 
 

Indicator Baseline Target 
Perform 
06/07 

Perform 
07/08 
Q2 

Traffic 
light 

Commentary 
 

10 
 
 

Number of adults gaining a national Skills 
for Life qualification at level 1, 2 or 3 in 
literacy, numeracy or ESOL 

19 
04/05 

116 
measured 

in 
academic 

year 
ending 
31/08/08 

30 18 

 

One member of staff has completed 
2 modules of the Further 
Professional Studies in Specific 
Learning Difficulties/Dyslexia 
(CFPS). 

12 
Increase the number of people who have 
been claiming an incapacity benefit into 
sustained employment of at least 16 hours 
per week for 13 consecutive weeks or 
more 

18 for 
year 

ending 
31/03/06 

179  
3 year 

cumulative 
to 

31/03/09 

38 20 

 

Total of sustained jobs this year is 
37, which is on target for the LAA. A 
further 10 customers are in work but 
have not yet reached the 13 weeks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
1



APPENDIX FIVE– PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Economic Regeneration 

18 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 
Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

ER01 Risk Identified: 
Radical changes to the delivery of support 
to business come into effect from April 07. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Engage with successor body 
 

Risk Identified: 
Uncertainty of funding for aftercare post 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Additional year secured 
 
Risk Identified: 
Loss of NRF and ERDF 2008.   
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Improve quality to offset reductions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
review 
 
 
 
 
 
September 
2006 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
review 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Successor body to take space in the Heath. Blue Orchid 
sub-contractor working with HBC on enterprise agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
Post secured until March 08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer survey shows 100% satisfaction rate 

ER03 Risk Identified: 
Insufficient funding to make any significant 
progress 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Establish private sector board 
Explore collaborative working with Business 
Link 

 
 
 
 
 
 
September 
2006 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Board in place. Partnership with BL in place. 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
2



APPENDIX FIVE– PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Economic Regeneration 

19 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 
Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

Risk Identified: 
Loss of NRF and ERDF 2008 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Identify alternate funding 
 

 
 
 
 
September 
2006 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Small amount identified and secured. Government to 
launch new working neighbourhoods programme – 
details awaited  

ER04 Risk Identified: 
LSC will develop an Adult Plan for Halton 
and the issue of contestability could result 
in the Adult Learning & Skills Development 
Team losing a share of the market, and 
therefore a cut in funding. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Submit Development Plan to LSC for 
2007/8 in order to secure funding. 
 
 
 
Risk Identified: 
The way that LSC will commission provision 
is to change in 2007/8. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
To ensure all opportunities to secure 
funding from LSC (and others) to deliver 
provision are taken up.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2007 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 
2007 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a result of submitting a Development Plan to LSC, 
funding has been secured for 2007/8 academic year. In 
addition, an extra £40k Children’s Centre funding has 
been secured (on top of the £99K already approved).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
All opportunities to secure additional income are being 
taken up to compensate for the reduced LSC 
mainstream funding. A PQQ for LSC’s ESF procurement 
round 2007/8 has been submitted, with successful 
organisations being notified of the chance to submit an 
ITT in November. If successful, provision would be 
offered from March 2008. 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
3



APPENDIX FIVE– PROGRESS AGAINST RISK TREATMENT MEASURES 
Economic Regeneration 

20 

Key 
Objective 
(Service Plan 
Ref. Only) 

Risk Control Measures 
Target / 
Deadline 

Progress Commentary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Risk Identified: 
Loss of NRF, New Deal, ESF co-financing 
and ERDF budget from March 2008. 
 
Risk Control Measure(s): 
 
Concentrate on priority areas. Bid for 
JCP/ESF monies. Secure future HPiJ  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 
06 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Course fees have been increased from September 07, 
First Steps £15 and Next Steps £30 (fee remission 
applies) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Draft 3 year business plan for HPiJ under production. 
JCP/ESF bids process just started and HBC will apply. 
Concentration on 7 wards now underway.  
 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
4



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Economic Regeneration 

21 

 

 
REGENERATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 Annual 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance To 
Date 

(Overspend) 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

      
Expenditure      

Employees 1,319 630 622 8 622 
Premises Support 2 0 0 0 0 
Office 
Accommodation 

110 7 8 (1) 8 

Marketing 
Programme 

53 11 10 1 17 

Promotions 29 9 9 0 9 
Development 
Projects 

21 0 0 0 6 

Supplies & Services 155 47 43 4 54 
ICT Investment for 
Growth 

20 0 0 0 0 

Halton People into 
Jobs 

125 0 0 0 0 

Transport 33 16 14 2 14 
Central Support 
Services 

148 0 0 0 0 

Departmental 
Support Services 

29 0 0 0 0 

Agency 4 2 0 2 0 
Asset Charges 7 0 0 0 0 
      
Total Expenditure 2,055 722 706 16 730 

      
      
Income      

Sales 0 0 -1 1 -1 

Fees & Charges -13 -6 -6 0 -6 
Reimbursements -65 -6 -15 9 -15 
Government grants -382 -233 -235 2 -235 
Employment Service -257 -58 -58 0 -58 
Recharges to 
Capital 

-12 0 0 0 0 

      
Total Income -729 -303 -315 12 -315 

      
Net Expenditure 1,326 419 391 28 415 

      
 
 
 

Page 155



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Economic Regeneration 

22 

Comments on the above figures: 
In overall terms revenue spending to the end of quarter 2 is slightly under budget. However, it is 
anticipated that overall revenue spending will be in line with the departmental budget by year-end.  
 
 
Local Strategic Partnership Schemes as at 30th September 2007  
 

 Annual 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Budget To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance To 
Date 

(Overspend) 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

Halton People into 
Jobs 

180 90 54 36 54 

HPiJ 
Neighbourhood 
Employment 
Outreach 

109 55 27 28 27 

Halton ILM 163 110 109 1 109 
Enterprise 
Development 

102 51 25 26 25 

Workforce 
Development 

71 35 9 26 9 

Supported 
Employment 

129 64 54 10 54 

Skills for Life 80 40 28 12 28 
Town Centres 
Initiatives 

75 19 16 3 16 

      

Total Expenditure 909 464 322 142 322 

      

  
Comments on the above figures: 
 
 
 
 
External or Grant Funded Schemes as at 30th September 2007  
 
 Annual 

Budget 
 

£’000 

Budget To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance To 
Date 

(Overspend) 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Including 
Committed 

Items 
£’000 

ERDF      
Halton People into 
Jobs 

69 35 63 (28) 63 

ICT Investment for 
Growth 

112 56 51 5 51 

      

Total Expenditure 181 91 114 (23) 114 

      

 
 

Page 156



APPENDIX SIX – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Economic Regeneration 

23 

Comments on the above figures: 
 
 
 
 
Capital Projects as at 30th September 2007 
 

 07-08 Capital 
Allocation 
£’000 

Actual 
 To Date 
£’000 

Allocation 
Remaining 

£’000 
    
Multi-Funded 
Projects  

   

Business 
Improvement Area 
Scheme 

  458 27  431 

    

Total Capital 458 27 431 
    

 
Comments on the above figures: 
 
 

Page 157



APPENDIX SEVEN – EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS 
Economic Regeneration 

24 

 
 

 
The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner: 
 
  Objective Performance Indicator 
    

Green Indicates that the objective 
is on course to be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe. 
 

Indicates that the target is 
on course to be achieved.   

Amber Indicates that it is unclear 
at this stage, due to a lack 
of information or a key 
milestone date being 
missed, whether the 
objective will be achieved 
within the appropriate 
timeframe. 
 

Indicates that it is either 
unclear at this stage or 
too early to state whether 
the target is on course to 
be achieved. 
 

Red 

 

Indicates that it is highly 
likely or certain that the 
objective will not be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe.  
 

Indicates that the target 
will not be achieved 
unless there is an 
intervention or remedial 
action taken. 
 

 

 

Page 158



Major Projects 1 

QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY  MMOONNIITTOORRIINNGG  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

DIRECTORATE: Environment 
 
SERVICE: Major Projects Department 
 
PERIOD:   Quarter 2 half-year to period-end 30 September 2007. 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

This quarterly monitoring report covers the Major Projects Department 
second quarter period up to 30 September 2007 It describes key 
developments and progress against all objectives and performance 
indicators for the service. 
 
The way in which traffic light symbols have been used to reflect progress 
to date is explained in Appendix 6. 

2.0 KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

 

• Work on the Brindley mound removal contract is nearing 
completion.  

• The site investigations and feasibility studies for the Canal 
Quarter are nearly complete. 

 

3.0 EMERGING ISSUES 

 

• Canal Quarter: the ‘Development Agreement’ is currently being 
agreed with Urban Splash. 

• Castlefields: Phase three Housing Development proposals have 
been submitted to The Housing Corporation, as have proposals to 
EP for ‘continuation funding’. 

• Widnes Waterfront EDZ: Imminent need to review outputs 
contracted to the NWDA to deliver due to Halton loss of assisted 
area status and new interpretation of State Aid Rules. Also a need 
to  make the case to extend the programme until March 2010. 

 

4.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 

 
Total 

 
17 

 

 
14 

 

 
2 

 

 
1 

 

Most “Key” objectives and milestones are on track to be met. For further 
details please refer to Appendix 1. 
 

Page 159



Major Projects 2 

 
4.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES / MILESTONES 
 
 

 
Total 

 
2 

 

 
2 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

The “Other” objective and milestones are on target to be met. For further 
details please refer to Appendix 2. 

5.0 SERVICE REVIEW 

 

Nothing to note. 
 

6.0 PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
Total 

 
3 

 

 
3 

 

 
0 

 

 
0 

 

All “Key” performance indicators are on track to meet set targets. For 
further information please refer to Appendix 3. 
 

6.1 PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 
Total 

 
6 

 

 
4 

 

 
2 

 

 
0 

 

Four of the six  “Other” performance indicators are on track to meet their 
targets. Two indicators related to the EDZ programme are affected by 
delays to the implementation of the NWDA Performance Plan and have 
been assigned amber lights. For further details please refer to Appendix 
4. 
 

 
7.0 PROGRESS AGAINST LPSA TARGETS 
 

There are no LPSA targets for this service. 
 

8.0 RISK CONTROL MEASURES 
 

During the production of the 2007-08 Service Plan, the service was 
required to undertake a risk assessment of all Key Service Objectives.  
 
Where a Key Service Objective has been assessed and found to have 

Page 160



Major Projects 3 

associated ‘High’ risk, progress against the application of risk treatment 
measures is to be monitored, and reported in the quarterly monitoring 
report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
There are no Key Service Objectives for this service that have has been 
assessed and found to have associated ‘High’ risks. Therefore, there is 
no progress to report. 

 

9.0 PROGRESS AGAINST HIGH PRIORITY EQUALITY ACTIONS 
 

During 2006/07 the service was required to undertake an Equality 
Impact Assessment. Progress against actions identified through that 
assessment, with associated High priority are to be reported in the 
quarterly monitoring report in quarters 2 and 4. 
 
There are no High priority actions for this service, therefore, there is no 
progress to report. 

 

 

10.0 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1- Progress against Key Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 2- Progress against Other Objectives/ Milestones 
Appendix 3- Progress against Key Performance Indicators  
Appendix 4- Progress against Other Performance Indicators 
Appendix 5- Financial Statement 
Appendix 6- Explanation of traffic light symbols  

 

 

 

 

Page 161



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Major Projects 

4 

 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

MP 01 To implement a regeneration plan for the 
Widnes Waterfront EDZ in accordance with 
the EDZ Team Plan and Regeneration 
Masterplan (See Team Plan) resulting in 44 
ha. of regenerated land on the Widnes 
waterfront 

Implement North West 
Development Agency 
Performance Plan for 
2007/8 
 
 
 
Initiate CPO procedure to 
secure land required for 
implementation of the 
Masterplan 
 
 
Oversee completion of 
Priority Sites, Langtree, 
Forward Group and 
Heron Business Park 
developments 
 
 
 
 
Oversee Venture Fields 
Leisure development 
construction 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Implementation slower than 
anticipated due to the delays caused 
by a reinterpretation of Stare Aid 
Rules by the Agency. This led to 
delays in approving the Forward and 
Heron Phase 2 projects. 
 
Executive Board approval 08/02/07.  
Cobberts employed by WRL to 
provide legal advice. GVA appointed 
to manage acquisition negotiations. 
 
 
Prioirty Sites on target for completion 
by March 2008.  Langtree start on site 
delayed to January 2008.  Forward 
due to start on site January 2008 and 
Heron Phase 2 re-submitted for 
planning permission. B&Q 
development is on schedule for a late 
November opening. 
 
Outline planning permission granted 
08/10/07 when EA objection resolved.  
Reserve maters application submitted. 

MP 02 To implement a regeneration plan for 
Castlefields according to the Castlefields 
Team Plan and Regeneration Masterplan 
(See Team Plan) resulting in the achievement 
of The Masterplan’s Vision of an improved 
estate 

Acquire the existing local 
centre via CPO 
 
Secure outline planning 
permission for HBC sites 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

CPO served; public inquiry scheduled 
for 2nd October 2007. 
 
Outline planning permission secured 
for the Halton Borough Council sites. 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
2



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Major Projects 

5 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

Dispose of 3 hectares of 
HBC land at Lakeside 
Castlefields 
 
 
 
Commence delivery of 
RSL phase two housing 
schemes 
 
 
 
 
Continue to Implement 
public realm 
improvements in 
accordance with the 
proposals of the 
Masterplan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The disposal of the Lakeside housing 
site will take place in 2009 following 
the relocation of the temporary transit 
site for Travellers on the former 
Busway.. 
 
Work continues on the redevelopment 
of LHT blocks at Hedge Hey and 
Meadow Row. A planning application 
for the demolition and redevelopment 
of the deck assess flats at Caesars 
Close has been approved. 
 
Public realm lighting improvements 
continue to be rolled out with the 
renewal of poor quality lighting in a 
number of the residential areas within 
Castlefields 

MP 03 To implement a regeneration plan for 3 MG 
(Ditton Strategic Rail Freight Park) (See Team 
Plan) resulting in the creation of a regionally-
significant rail freight park 

Inauguration of CPO 
procedure to secure land 
required for 
implementation of the 
Masterplan 
 
Co-ordinate the 
construction of rail 
sidings 
 
Initiate arrangements for 
improved road access to 
Halton Borough Council 
Field 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CPO process being reviewed. Third 
party funding arrangements being 
explored. 
 
 
 
Planning permission obtained for four 
rail sidings, subject to a refrerral to the 
SOS. 
 
W.S.Atkins preparing design and 
planning application for A5300 link. 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
3



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Major Projects 

6 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

Commence procedures 
for the disposal of Halton 
Borough Council Field in 
accordance with the 
Masterplan proposals 

 

Will follow completion of road 
construction. 

MP 04 Monitor investment levels in the 3 town 
centres in order to comply with Community 
Plan objectives (See Team Plan) and ensure 
a continued improvement in the quality of 
Halton’s Town Centres 

Implement Shopfront 
Improvement Programme 
 
 
 
 
Oversee the initiation of 
the Canal Quarter 
development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Co-ordinate the 
implementation of the 
Windmill Centre 
redevelopment according 
to the appropriate 
planning permission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68 expressions of interest received; 6 
shopfront improvement grant offers 
made. 5 properties have completed 
improvement works with a further two 
currently in progress. 
 
Removal  and remediation work has 
continued on the Brindley Mound, and 
is on schedule for an autumn 
completion. Negotiations are 
continuing for the acquisition of the 
Camden Buildings which remain in 
private ownership. Survey works 
funded by EP are progressing with a 
view to an autumn completion. The 
negotiation of the Development 
Agreement with Urban Splash 
continues with a view to finalising it 
after the receipt of the survey reports.  
 
Work has started on the 
redevelopment of the Windmill Centre. 

MP 05 Reclamation of contaminated and derelict 
land including 48 ha. at St Michael’s Golf 
Course to produce a safe and attractive 

Phase 1 reclamation of 
18 ha. of the Golf Course 
begun – Formal  

Option Appraisal completed and 
submitted to the EA.  Approval of the 
Options Analysis by the EA is awaited 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
4



APPENDIX ONE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Major Projects 

7 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

replacement course determination and 
funding application to 
DEFRA. 

and an initial application to DEFRA is 
currently being prepared for Phase 1 
funding. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
5



APPENDIX TWO – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER OBJECTIVES/ MILESTONES 
Major Projects 

8 

Service 
Plan Ref. 

Objective 
2007/08 
Key Milestone 

Progress 
to date 

Commentary 

MP 06 To devise and implement a regeneration plan 
for Halebank resulting in improved residential 
amenity 

Implementation 
proceeding according to 
Masterplan including the 
redevelopment of the 
former Asda site for 
housing 

N/a Responsibility for this measure has 
ceased to be the responsibility of the 
Council with the housing site having 
been passed to Barratts. 

MP 07 To implement the Urban Renewal Strategy 
and Action Plan 

Three meetings of Urban 
Renewal SSP held. 
 
NRF and CPF 
programmes delivered as 
programmed according to 
funding allocations to 
projects including 
Landlord Accreditation 
Scheme, Town Centre 
Initiatives, Area Forums, 
Business Parks 
Improvement 
Programme, 
Contaminated Land 
Remediation and Widnes 
Waterfront, all to be 
completed by the end of 
the financial year. 

 

 

Two Urban Renewal SSP meetings 
held to date. 
 
NRF and CPF programme delivery is 
on target. 
 
Urban Renewal Strategy and Action 
Plan 2007-10 is prepared and 
currently awaiting final approval, 
having been recommended for 
approval by the UR PPB in July.  This 
document has also been put before 
the ELS PPB and Healthy Halton PPB 
to assist with cross-cutting themes. 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
6



       APPENDIX THREE – PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
      Major Projects 

9 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

                 Service Delivery Indicators. 

MPLPI 9 Castlefields Regeneration 
 
Outputs as set out in Masterplan (% 
achieved) 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 

 

 
Refer to commentary for Objective MP02 
in Appendix 1. 

MPLPI 
10 

Urban Renewal 
 
Outputs as set out in Urban Renewal 
Strategy and Action Plan (% 
achieved) 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 

 

 
Urban Renewal Strategy and Action Plan 
2007-10 is prepared and currently 
awaiting final approval. On line to achieve 
target. 

MPLPI 
14 

3MG 
 
Outputs as set out in Masterplan (% 
achieved) 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 

 

 
Refer to commentary for Objective MP03 
in Appendix 1. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
7



APPENDIX FOUR – PROGRESS AGAINST OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Major Projects 

10 

Ref Indicator 
Actual 
06 / 07 

Target 
07 / 08 

Quarter 2 
 

Progress 
 

Commentary 

                 Service Delivery Indicators. 

LPI 1 New retail floor space (sq ft) 8,500 0 0 N/a N/a 

LPI 2 New office accommodation (sq ft) 0 50,000 0 

 

Priority Sites’ development at Widnes 
Waterfront is on schedule for completion 
later in the year 

LPI 3 New private housing 60 24 N/a N/a Responsibility for this measure has 
ceased to be the responsibility of the 
Council with the Halebank housing site 
having been passed to Barratts. 

LPI 4 Local business premises improved 21 10 5 

 

See MP04 above 

LPI 5 Streetscape improvement 0 1 1 

 

Improvements have been completed to 
the rear of the Bradley Public House 
where the car park has been enhanced 
environmentally and the number of car 
parking spaces increased. 

LPI 6 Land reclamation programme (acres) 5 10 3 

 

The highly contaminated Brindley Mound 
is being removed.  Advice is being given 
on the reclamation of significant areas of 
land within the EDZ and 3MG 
developments sites. 

LPI 8 EDZ Programme 
 
Outputs as set out in ERDF offer 
letter (% achieved) 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 

 
 

N/a 

 

 

 
 
Refer to commentary for Objective MP01 
in Appendix 1. 

LPI 15 EDZ Programme 
 
Outputs as set out in the North West 
Development Agency Performance 
Plan 

 
 

N/a 

 
 

100% 

 
 

N/a 

 

 

 
 
Refer to commentary for Objective MP01 
in Appendix 1. 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
8



APPENDIX FIVE – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Major Projects 

11 

Revenue Budget as at 30th September 2007 
 

 Annual 
Budget 

 
 

£’000 

Budget To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance To 
Date 

(Overspend) 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Including 

Committed 
Items 
£’000 

      

Expenditure      

Employees 716 351 306 45 306 
Premises Support 25 0 0 0 0 
Supplies & Services 66 27 19 8 19 
Transport 39 19 16 3 16 
Central Support 
Services 

103 0 0 0 0 

Departmental 
Support Services 

26 0 0 0 0 

      

Total Expenditure 975 397 341 56 341 

      
      

Income      

Fees & Charges -107 -92 -92 0 -92 
Recharges to 
Capital 

-473 -229 -182 (47) -182 

      

Total Income -580 -321 -274 (47) -274 

      

Net Expenditure 395 76 67 9 67 

      
      

 
 
Comments on the above figures: 

In overall terms spend to the end of quarter 2 is slightly below budget. 
 
The underspend against staffing relates to a vacant post resulting in a slightly lower 
recharge to capital projects. 
 
It is anticipated that overall revenue spending will be in line with the departmental budget 
at year end. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169



APPENDIX FIVE – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Major Projects 

12 

Local Strategic Partnership Schemes as at 30th September 2007 
 

 Annual 
Budget 

 
 

£’000 

Budget To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Actual To 
Date 

 
 

£’000 

Variance To 
Date 

(Overspend) 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Including 

Committed 
Items 

£’000 

Partnership Co-
ordinator  

20 10 19 (9) 19 

      

Total 
Expenditure 

20 10 19 (9) 19 

      

  
Comments on the above figures: 
The expenditure above budget will be offset by external funding obtained throughout the 
year and therefore net expenditure will be in line with budget by year-end. 
 
Capital Projects as at 30th September 2007 
 

 07-08 Capital 
Allocation 

£’000 

Actual 
To Date 

£’000 

Allocation 
Remaining 

£’000 

Multi-Funded 
Projects  

   

Widnes Waterfront 4,135 374 3,761 
Castlefields 2,434 38 2,396 
3MG 3,969 1,487 2,482 
    
LSP (Urban 
Renewal) Projects 

   

Contaminated Land 282 93 189 
Sites Purchase 100 5 95 
Town Centres 
Streetscapes 

1,008 311 697 

Enterprise Centres 100 0 100 
Widnes Waterfront 313 0 313 
    
HBC Projects    
Land Reclamation 
Golf Course 

100 93 7 

    

Total Capital 12,441 2,401 10,040 

 
Comments on the above figures: 
With regard to the three multi-funded projects header, there is continued change to the 
programmes and the costings/funding allocations are being continually updated. 
 
 

Page 170



APPENDIX SIX – EXPLANATION OF TRAFFIC LIGHT SYMBOLS 
Major Projects 

13 

 
 

 
The traffic light symbols are used in the following manner: 
 
  Objective Performance Indicator 
    

Green Indicates that the objective 
is on course to be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe. 
 

Indicates that the target is 
on course to be achieved.   

Amber Indicates that it is unclear 
at this stage, due to a lack 
of information or a key 
milestone date being 
missed, whether the 
objective will be achieved 
within the appropriate 
timeframe. 
 

Indicates that it is either 
unclear at this stage or 
too early to state whether 
the target is on course to 
be achieved. 
 

Red 

 

Indicates that it is highly 
likely or certain that the 
objective will not be 
achieved within the 
appropriate timeframe.  
 

Indicates that the target 
will not be achieved 
unless there is an 
intervention or remedial 
action taken. 
 

 

 

Page 171



 
REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance 

Board  
 
DATE: 21 November 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment 
 
SUBJECT: Fireworks Festival 2008 
 
WARDS: Borough wide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 This report sets out proposals to relocate Halton’s Fireworks Festival from 

it’s current site, adjacent to the Silver Jubilee Bridge, to the Heath Park 
football fields in Runcorn, commencing in November 2008.  The report is 
also being presented to the Safer Halton Policy and Performance Board 
on 20 November, 2007, at the request of the Executive Board Member for 
Planning Transportation, Regeneration and Renewal. 

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That 

 
(1) The Policy and Performance Board comments on the 

conclusions in the report 

(2) The report and the comments of the Policy and Performance 
Board be forwarded for consideration and decision by the 
Executive Board at the next available meeting 

3.0 BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 A number of years ago, the two firework displays in Halton were merged 

on efficiency grounds. They were originally held in the Runcorn Town 
Hall grounds and at Spike Island, Widnes. A new venue was chosen on 
the River Mersey gantry wall, which enabled viewing from both sides of 
the river.  

 
3.2 Over the past five years there has been a steady increase in the 

popularity of the event, and it now attracts some 45,000 people who take 
up vantage points on either side of the river and from various other 
points, including Weston Road, Pickerings Pasture and Wigg Island. The 
Catalyst Science Discovery centre also host a hot pot supper for paying 
guests from the vantage point at the top of the building.  

 
3.3 The increase in numbers attending have given rise to concerns about 

traffic congestion, crowd control and health and safety and it is now 
considered appropriate to review the current arrangements,  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 6aPage 172



4.0 THE ISSUES 
 

Car Parking 
 
4.1 The West Bank area is not designed to accommodate large volumes of 

traffic. Visiting cars are accommodated in the side streets around the 
industrial estates and on Spike Island (weather permitting). However, the 
mass exodus of traffic and pedestrians after the event has been an 
increasing cause for concern, despite the traffic management 
arrangements, with resulting traffic congestion taking more than hour to 
dissipate. 

 
4.2 In Runcorn, whilst the old town car parks can accommodate a 

reasonable number of vehicles, the demand for parking is so great that 
roads soon become congested. The problem is compounded when 
people are leaving the event, due to the flow of two way traffic being 
impeded, on some roads, due to parked vehicles.  

 
4.3 Given the increasing numbers of people attending the event, the 

problems are likely to get worse when work starts on the Canal Quarter 
in Runcorn and the Mersey Gateway in Widnes, both of which are likely 
to result in a decrease in parking provision.  

 
4.4 A park and ride scheme has been looked into, but due to the large 

number of people leaving the event at same time, it was considered 
unworkable.  

 
Crowd Safety 
 
4.5 Large crowds of people congregating in confined spaces generates 

potential hazards and risks  - both for spectators and staff employed at 
the event. Because of the limited space available, spectators try to 
secure positions where they will have the best vantage point. This leads 
to overcrowding in certain areas and results in stewards occasionally 
coming into conflict with people when they try to limit numbers in certain 
areas or request that people move away from areas that are becoming  
too congested.  

 
4.6 There is only one route into West Bank from the areas used for car 

parking. This results in pedestrians having to negotiate their way around 
moving vehicles, as they exit. 

 
4.7 A one-way system is operated from King Street into Mersey Road, 

Runcorn via a ramp.  Prior to the event, the ramp is down only, after the 
event, it is up only. Despite efforts by stewards, the congestion caused 
by people trying to get up the ramp is a major concern. The ramp has 
been closed in the past to alleviate the problem, however, some people 
will still try use the ramp regardless. This has led to further conflict 
between stewards and police with spectators, which only serves to 
undermine the enjoyment of the event for the majority. 

 

Page 173



4.8 The emergency services and first aid staff have indicated that they find it 
extremely difficult to respond to incidents effectively, due to the numbers 
of people attending the event. Fortunately, no serious injuries have 
occurred to date.  Injuries people have sustained have generally been as 
a result of tripping over kerbs or falling down steps that are not always 
visible when there are large crowds of people. 

 
5.0 THE OPTIONS 
 

Keep it as it is: 
 
5.1 The event could continue at its present site, however, this would require 

additional investment by the Council. It is estimated that a further 
£15,000 would be required to cover the costs of additional stewards to 
supervise areas not currently covered and also to expand the first aid 
provision, so that they can react more effectively to incidents, if and when 
they occur. It would also cover the extra costs of policing and additional 
barrier systems to control crowds. 

 
5.2 This option would not, however, resolve the car parking and traffic 

congestion issues, or aid egress from the event by pedestrians. 
 

Spilt the event over 2 sites: 
 
5.3 Return to having two events in the borough. This would add costs 

amounting to some £30,000 if the displays were to stay the same as at 
present. 

 
5.4 The choice of venue would also need to be considered. In Widnes the 

only viable option is Victoria Park, using the surrounding roads and 
schools for parking. In Runcorn, either a return to the Town Hall or The 
Heath Park are the only venues that could accommodate parking on the 
scale required. 

 
Move the event to an alternative single site: 

 
5.5 Spike Island: Traditionally the home of major outdoor events in Halton, 

however, the impending work on Widnes Waterfront which will effectively 
remove the event car parking from Spike Island and the congestion 
already in the West Bank area during the fireworks make a move to 
Spike Island an unsuitable alternative. 

 
5.6 Victoria Park: The venue for the Vintage Rally, it can host the crowd 

within the park boundary, however, the on-street parking arrangements 
would prove unworkable. The schools and surrounding streets would be 
seriously congested and the impact on local residents would be 
unacceptable. 

 
5.7 The Town Park: As a venue the Town Park could accommodate an 

event of this type, however, there is no parking on hard standing 
available. Parking on grass would be the only alternative. In bad weather, 

Page 174



this would prove unsatisfactory and would require remedial action  to 
reinstate the area,  adding to the overall cost of the event. 

 
5.8 Wilmere Lane/ Prescott Road Playing Fields: Both these sites lack 

adequate  parking provision. They are also on the periphery of Widnes, 
making public transport to the venue difficult. 

 
5.9 The Heath Park Football Fields: This site could accommodate the 

event and accommodate parking at the adjacent Heath Business and 
Technical Park. 

 
5.10 The use of the football pitches for viewing could have an impact on the 

football pitches that would require some remedial work to reinstate them. 
Traffic would not be allowed onto the pitches, only spectators. 

 
5.11 The use of the area would also allow the installation of improved  

facilities such as toilets and possibly a stage for entertainment purposes, 
that would add value to the existing offer. 

 
6.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 The growth in the Fireworks Festival popularity has led to a significant 

increase in spectator attendances in recent years.  This has resulted in 
serious traffic congestion and concerns about crowd safety, which cannot 
now be managed safely and effectively within the current budget for the 
event. 

 
6.2 Having considered the alternatives, it is proposed that the Fireworks 

Festival be transferred to The Heath Park Football Fields site from 
November 2008. This option would be both cost effective and solve 
most, if not all, of the concerns about crowd safety and traffic congestion 
at the event. 

 
7.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1  The Halton Economic Development and Tourism Strategy has specific 

policies on tourism which states that Halton will develop the tourism offer 
of the Borough to support the Liverpool City Region, and other brands as 
advised by the North West Development Agency, and in so doing … 

“will place the emphasis on investment in quality attractions which 
make a positive contribution to the overall quality of life and 
opportunities for employment for residents, potential new residents, 
and visitors …” 

 
8.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no other implications arising from this report. 
 
9.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
9.1  Children and Young People in Halton 
          

Page 175



  There are no implications arising from this report.  
 

9.2  Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

  There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
 
9.3  A Healthy Halton 

  
 There are no implications arising from this report. 

 

9.4  A Safer Halton 
 
Relocating the Fireworks Festival to Heath Park will assist in reducing 
the risks arising from overcrowding and traffic congestion for those 
attending the event. 

 
9.5    Halton’s Urban Renewal 

 
The promotion of tourism activity will contribute to the continued 
diversification of the local economy.  

 
10.0    RISK ANALYSIS 
 
10.1 The concerns about health and safety issues have been set out in the 

report.  The risks can be mitigated by either increasing the budget for the 
event to cover the additional costs of stewards, first aid provision, 
policing etc, or by re-locating the event to a single site. 

 
11.0    EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
11.1 There are no equality or diversity issues arising from this report. 
 
12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

12.1 There are no background documents under the meaning of this Act. 
   

Page 176



 
 
REPORT TO: Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board 
 
DATE: 21 November 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Merseyside Action Plan 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To advise members of the Policy and Performance Board (PPB) of the 

production of the Action Plan for the Liverpool City Region 2008-2011 
(formerly the Merseyside Action Plan) 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Board note the report.  
 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 Purpose of the Action Plan 

 
In producing this year’s Action Plan, partners in the City Region agreed 
that the document: 

• Should be the ‘business plan for the Sub-Regional Partnership 
(SRP)’. It should cover the range of activities that impact on the 
economy, not just those seeking EU or NWDA funding.  

• Needed to be clearer in identifying Merseyside’s baseline position; 
aspirations for the next three years and how the projects supported 
will help to achieve that. In this the business plan should also be 
able to be used as a performance and monitoring toll for the SRP. 

• Should provide a clear rationale for prioritisation of projects 

• Should balance aspiration with the need to be realistic about 
spending profiles and ensure the use of available funding 2008-
2011 is maximised. 

 
3.2 As a result, the consultation draft of the Action Plan points out that: 

• The plan is a business plan for the economic development of the 
sub-region, not just a bidding document or an additional strategy 

• The document is underpinned by a database of projects submitted 
by partners over the past six months 

• The document is working towards a more evidenced based, 
outcome led approach. This is not yet complete but the framework 
provides the basis for this in the future 

 
3.3 The final draft of the Action Plan for the Liverpool City Region has been 

signed off by The Mersey Partnership Board on 31st October 2007. 
 

Agenda Item 6bPage 177



3.4 Members are advised that the Action Plan gives details of projects and 
programmes to be implemented across the Liverpool City Region over 
the coming three years. It demonstrates the growing confidence and 
investment of the private sector in the Liverpool City Region. It also 
provides a framework for allocating public sector resources, identifying 
major public investments that have already secured funding as well as 
additional resources required to further accelerate growth and develop 
the City Region’s asset base. 

 
3.5 The Action Plan also provides a clear statement of priorities that will 

guide investment from the private, public and voluntary sectors.  
 

The Action Plan has been coordinated by The Mersey Partnership, in its 
role as the sub-regional partnership following detailed consultation and 
input from partners across the City Region, including: the 6 Local 
Authorities of the Liverpool City Region, LSC Greater Merseyside, 
Liverpool City Region‘s three universities, Merseyside’s Chambers of 
Commerce, Merseyside’s College Association, Job Centre Plus, 
Merseytravel and the LTP Support Unit and the Voluntary and 
Community Sector. 

 
Members will note that a number of Halton project have been included in 
the document namely; Daresbury Science Park, Castlefields, Runcorn 
Canal Quarter, Silver Jubilee Bridge, Widnes Waterfront EDZ, 3MG, 
Mersey Gateway, Halton LTP Initiatives, and a range of enterprise, 
employment and skills packages. 
 

3.6 Strategic Linkage 
 

The illustration below outlines where the Action Plan for the Liverpool 
City Region sits. 

Page 178



 
3.7 Listed below is a snapshot of the Action Plan’s priorities. 
 

The Key Priorities are: 

 
 
 

 
Priority 1 – Enterprise Development 

 
Generating Enterprise: Growing the business base through 
increased business start-ups and improved survival rates and 
supporting growth and increased productivity in key sectors. 
Developing an enterprise culture throughout the City Region. 

 
Priority 2 – Business Infrastructure  

 
Creating a Demand-Led Infrastructure: Continue to provide the right 
conditions for further investment, both to new inward investors to 
strengthen our existing business base and to speculative property 
developers. A well-connected City Region including key schemes 
such as Mersey Gateway and 3MG. 

 
Priority 3 – High Growth Business Development  

 
Investment Growth in High Value Sectors: Increase levels of inward 
investment in target high value sectors, through a combination of 
product improvement and effective promotion and selling of this 
improved product in target growth markets. 

 
Priority 4 – Skilled Workforce & Working Communities 

 

Sustainable 
Economic 

Prosperity 

Macro 
Environmental 
Factors(2) 

Knowledgeable 
and Innovative 

Business 

A great place to 
live, work and 

visit 
Strong Strategic 
Leadership (1) 

Skilled 

Workforce 

Premier 

Destination 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Strong 
Productivity, 

Competitiveness,   
& Business Base 

Environmental 

Performance 

Enterprise 

Development 

High Growth 
Business 

Development 

Business 

Infrastructure 

Page 179



Up-skilling the Workforce, Retaining our Graduates: Tackling 
worklessness and improving skills levels across the whole range of 
qualifications is essential to underpin the move toward a knowledge 
based and innovative economy. 

 
Priority 5 – Environmental Performance  

 
Improving performance, Maximising Opportunities: TO take action 
to address the causes and impacts of climate change and to 
maximise the economic opportunities that mitigation and adaptation 
could present. 
 

Priority 6 – Sustainable Communities 
 
Delivering Sustainable Communities: Covering a range of social, 
environmental and economic issues. Both physical place making – 
the things which h make an area an attractive place to live – and 
quality of life factors such as the range and standard of local 
services which affect people’s lives on a day-to-day basis. 

 
Priority 7 – Premier Destination 

 
Grasping the Opportunities, Exploiting the Assets: 2008 will 
showcase the City Region’s unique and outstanding cultural and 
sporting heritage. Part of the legacy of 2008 will be further 
investment in our cultural infrastructure, including a new museums, 
theatres and sports-related infrastructure 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Section 3.2 of this report states that the plan is viewed as a business 

plan for the economic development of the sub-region and is not regarded 
as just a bidding document. Nevertheless the document will certainly 
inform the production of the NWDA’s 3 year Strategic Investment Plan 
and will be used to agree priorities in the new European Programme. 
Consequently, members of the Urban Renewal Policy and Performance 
Board will need to maintain a strategic overview of the development and 
delivery of the plan, contributing key information on Halton’s projects as 
required. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Any other implications associated with issues connected with the Action 

Plan will be identified and report to the Board in future updates. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 None 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
  

Specific reference to taking forward Employment, Learning and Skills in 
Halton evidenced by reference to City Employment Strategy and Priority 

Page 180



1 Enterprise Development and Priority 4 Skilled Workforce & Working 
Communities 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 

Specific reference to taking forward Halton’s Urban Renewal evidenced 
by reference to Priority 2 Business Infrastructure  

 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 None 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 None  
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document 
 
Action Plan for the 
Liverpool City Region 
2008-2011 

Place of Inspection 
 
External Funding Team 
1st Floor,  
Municipal Building, 

Contact Officer 
 
Wesley Rourke 
 

Page 181



REPORT TO: 
 

Urban Renewal Policy & Performance Board 

DATE: 
 

21 November 2007 

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director, Health & Community  
Strategic Director, Children & Young People 
 

SUBJECT: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
 

WARDS: Boroughwide 
 

 
1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide an overview of the requirement to produce a JSNA in line 
with Department of Health guidance. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Urban Renewal Policy & 
Performance Board: 
 
i) Support the process as outlined in the proposed  

co-ordination section and receive a draft JSNA in 2008. 
 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

3.1 The JNSA is a process that results in the production of document of 
significant strategic importance. The process and subsequent 
documentation managed jointly by the Local Authority and PCT 
describes the future health, care and well-being needs of local 
populations and the strategic direction of service delivery to meet 
those needs, over 3-5 years. 
 

3.2 The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment will be: 
 
• The basis of a new duty to co-operate between PCTs & Local 

Authorities from ‘Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Bill’, to develop a whole health & social care response; 

• Shaped by, and to meet, needs of local population;  
• In tune with commissioning cycles of LAA & SCS. 

 
3.3 A strong and effective Joint Strategic Needs Assessment will: 

 
• Show health status of the local community; 
• Define what inequalities exist; 
• Contain social and healthcare data that is well analysed and 

presented effectively; 
• Define improvements and equality for the community; 
• Send signals to current or potential providers, who could have 

other relevant information or proposals for meeting needs; 
• Supporting better health and well being outcomes; 

Agenda Item 6cPage 182



• Aid decision making, and stages of the commissioning cycle, 
esp. to use resources to maximise outcomes at minimum cost. 

 
4.0 THE PROCESS 

 
4.1 The process for producing and subsequently utilising the JSNA is a 

systematic one and is summarised in Appendix 1. 
 

4.2 Phase 1 – Information Gathering 
 
The collection of a complex set of data and information reports 
focused on the following sub-sets: 
 
• Demography; 
• Social and Environmental Context; 
• Current known health status of the population; 
• Current met needs of the population; 
• Patient/Service user voice; 
• Public Demands. 
 

4.3 A detailed breakdown of information required is summarised in 
Appendix 2. 
 

4.4 Phase 2 – Secondary Analysis & JNSA Production 
 
Building from the information gathering exercise of Phase 1, is the 
objective analysis of the local economy information to result in four 
sub-sets. These are detailed in Appendix 3. 
 

4.5 The result of this analysis will be the completion of the local 
economy Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Document. 
 

4.6 Phase 3-Outputs and Commissioning Improvement 
 
The third phase of the JSNA process is the utilisation of the 
document to provide a platform for the economy to work together on 
developing a series of impact based proposals and improvement 
programmes. These will include: 
 
• Programme of health and social care service reviews; 
• Prioritisation framework for contracting and procurement; 
• Medium Term Market Development; 
• Primary Care Investment Decisions; 
• Capital Investment Plans. 

 
The development of the JSNA will enable both Local Authority and 
PCT to establish improved commissioning relationships and provide 
the economy with progressive unity on commissioning and 
contracting priorities. 
 

Page 183



5.0 PROPOSED CO-ORDINATION 
 

5.1 The guidance from the Department of Health clearly stipulates that 
the Director of Adult Social Services, Director of Children & Young 
People Services, Director of Public Health and Director of 
Commissioning from the PCT have a responsibility for co-ordinating 
the production of the document.  Discussions have already 
commenced with a range of key stakeholders and Appendix 4 has 
been produced which sets the timetable and process for its 
completion. 
 

5.2 The Department of Health stressed the importance of the direct links 
with Elected Members, Local Strategic Partnership’s and key people 
including Local Authority Chief Executive’s, Environmental Health 
staff and staff involved in Research and Intelligence. 
 

5.3 The Local Strategic Partnership have already received a similar 
report to own and understand the requirement to produced a JSNA.  
The Health Specialist Strategic Partnership will thereafter be the 
responsible and accountable group to ensure that the JSNA is 
produced.  As the Health SSP already has key people on its 
membership, it is suggested that a small working group is tasked 
with producing a draft JSNA in the timescales identified.  
 

5.4 Regular update reports to the Executive Board, Local Strategic 
Partnership, PCT Board and Health Policy & Performance Board will 
be produced which appraise individuals and groups of progress.  
The Health Policy & Performance Board  will  scrutinise the process 
and ensure that effective community consultation is undertaken.  
However, a similar report to every Policy & Performance Board will 
be presented to ensure they are aware of this matter and provide 
them with an opportunity to be engaged. 
 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 At this stage it is not clear what the financial implications will be, 
however, it is envisaged that the production of the draft will be 
bourne within existing resources. 
 

6.2 There will be some financial costs to cover public consultation and 
these will need to be determined at a later date. 
 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

7.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
  
This will be a key strategic document to underpin progress against 
the revised priorities in the Children & Young People’s Plan.  The 
needs analysis will form an integral part of the implementation of the 
Joint Planning and Commissioning Framework and enable us to 

Page 184



target services based on need to improve outcomes for children and 
young people in Halton. 
 
The development of integrated locality based services for children 
and young people through the Area Network model must be based 
on an analysis of need for each area, which can be distilled from this 
piece of work. 
 

7.2 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
 
7.5 

Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton  
 
None identified at this stage. 
 
A Healthy Halton 
 
This will be a key strategic document which will address health and 
health inequalities in Halton. 
 
A Safer Halton 
 
None identified at this stage. 
 
Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
None identified at this stage. 
 

8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

8.1 A full risk analysis will be undertaken as part of the process. 
 

9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

9.1 The Strategy will ensure that the full range of equality and diversity 
issues are addressed and this will be scrutinised as part of the 
process. 
 

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
None  

Page 185



APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 186



APPENDIX 2 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 187



APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 

 

Page 188



Project Plan

Jul-07 Aug-07 Sep-07 Oct-07 Nov-07 Dec-07 Jan-08 Feb-08 Mar-08 Apr-08

2
n
d
 -
 6
th

9
th
 -
 1
3
th
 

1
6
th
 -
 2
0
th
 

2
3
rd
 -
 2
7
th
 

3
0
th
 -
 3
rd

6
th
 -
 1
0
th

1
3
th
 -
 1
7
th
 

2
0
th
 -
 2
4
th
 

2
7
th
 -
 3
1
s
t

3
rd
 -
 7
th

1
0
th
 -
 1
4
th
 

1
7
th
 -
 2
1
s
t 

2
4
th
 -
 2
8
th

1
s
t 
- 
5
th

8
th
 -
 1
2
th
 

1
5
th
 -
 1
9
th
 

2
2
n
d
 -
 2
6
th

2
9
th
 -
 2
n
d

5
th
 -
 9
th

1
2
th
 -
 1
6
th
 

1
9
th
 -
 2
3
rd
 

2
6
th
 -
 3
0
th

3
rd
 -
 7
th

1
0
th
 -
 1
4
th
 

1
7
th
 -
 2
1
s
t 

2
4
th
 -
 2
8
th

3
1
s
t 
- 
4
th

7
th
 -
 1
1
th

1
4
th
 1
8
th

2
1
s
t 
2
5
th

2
8
th
 t
o
 1
s
t

4
th
 8
th

1
1
th
 -
 1
5
th
 

1
8
th
 -
 2
2
n
d
 

2
5
th
 -
 2
9
th

3
rd
 -
 7
th

1
0
th
 -
 1
4
th
 

1
7
th
 -
 2
1
s
t 

2
4
th
 -
 2
8
th

3
1
s
t 
- 
4
th

7
th
 -
 1
1
th

1
4
th
 -
 1
8
th

2
1
s
t 
- 
2
5
th

2
8
th
 -
 2
n
d

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57

Phase One-Information Gathering

Demography

Social & Environmental Context

Current known status of health population

Current met needs of of the population

Patient/Service User Voice

Public Demands

Collation and presentation

Phase Two-Analysis & JNSA Production

Analysis of Current Inequalities

Projection of Service Use in 3-5 years time

Projection of Outcomes in 3-5 years time

Value for Money and return on investment

Collation and presentation

JNSA 1st Draft Publication

Consultation

Final Publication

Phase Three-Outputs and Commissioning Improvement

Programme of health and social care service reviews Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

Priortisation framework for contracting and procurement Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

Meduim Term Market Development Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

Primary Care Investment Decisions Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

Capital Investment Plans Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

JNSA

Tasks / Actions DependendciesResponsibility

P
a
g
e
 1

8
9



REPORT TO:  Urban Renewal Policy & Performance Board 
 
DATE: 21 November 2006 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation on the Strategic Progress of the 

Council’s Corporate Plan 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To receive a presentation on the strategic progress of implementing the 

Council’s Corporate Plan (2006-11) 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  That 

 
1) The presentation be received; 

 
2) The Board questions/comments on performance to date 

towards achieving the strategic objectives of the Council and 
its key partners;  

 
3) The Board provide a view on how members would wish to be 

involved in developing the new Local Area Agreement; and 
 

4) In the light of proposed new duties in the Local Government 
Bill the Board consider its relationship to the Halton Strategic 
Partnership. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The overall policy direction for the Borough is captured in the Corporate 

Plan and Community Strategy. These were adopted by Council in May 
2006 and have a timeframe of five years.  The Corporate Plan sets out 
the Council contribution towards achieving social, economic and 
environmental well being for the people of Halton. It sets out the 
Council’s priorities, 40 key areas of focus and 70 indicators through 
which strategic progress can be monitored. Attached is a data annex 
showing progress to date. Key issues will be drawn out in the 
presentation. 

 
3.2 Since the plan was adopted, the Council has also set in place a Local 

Area Agreement (LAA). This is an agreement with Central Government 
that spells out the priorities and targets for local well being, based on 
outcomes which reflect local and national priorities. It is an important 
part of the delivery chain for the Community Strategy and Corporate 

Agenda Item 6dPage 190



P
la
n
. A
ris
in
g
 o
u
t o
f th

e
 n
e
w
 L
o
c
a
l G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t A
c
t a
ll lo

c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 

a
re
 
re
q
u
ire
d
 
to
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
w
ith
 
th
e
ir 
p
a
rtn
e
rs
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r. 
T
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
L
A
A
s
 
w
ill 
b
e
 
p
a
rt 
o
f 
a
 
w
h
o
le
 

p
e
rfo
rm
a
n
c
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.  
It 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
L
A
A
s
, 
a
 
n
e
w
 

C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 
A
re
a
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(C
A
A
) 
to
 
re
p
la
c
e
 
C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 

P
e
rfo
rm
a
n
c
e
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(C
P
A
) 
a
s
 
w
e
ll 
a
s
 
s
w
e
e
p
in
g
 
a
w
a
y
 
m
o
s
t 

e
x
is
tin
g
 
p
e
rfo
rm
a
n
c
e
 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
o
rtin
g
 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
la
c
in
g
 

th
e
m
 w
ith
 a
 n
e
w
, s
in
g
le
 s
e
t o
f p
e
rfo
rm
a
n
c
e
 in
d
ic
a
to
rs
. It is

 v
ita
l th

a
t 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 p
la
y
 a
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt in

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 th
e
 n
e
w
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t w
h
ic
h
 w
ill 

n
e
e
d
 to
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
ith
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t b
y
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
. 

 3
.3
 

A
 p
a
rt o
f th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 th
a
t w
ill b

e
 w
ro
u
g
h
t b
y
 th
e
 n
e
w
 lo
c
a
l G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

B
ill 
is
 
th
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
fo
r 
a
n
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
n
e
w
 
re
la
tio
n
s
h
ip
s
 
w
ith
 

p
a
rtn
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
rtn
e
rs
h
ip
s
 in
 its
 a
re
a
. L
o
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 to
 

ta
k
e
 
a
 
le
a
d
in
g
 
ro
le
 
o
n
 
L
S
P
s
 
w
ith
 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 
o
n
 
b
o
th
 

L
S
P
s
 a
n
d
 th
e
m
a
tic
 p
a
rtn
e
rs
h
ip
s
. In
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f th
is
 H
a
lto
n
 h
a
s
 a
lre
a
d
y
 

ta
k
e
n
 s
te
p
s
 to
 in
c
re
a
s
e
 re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f m

e
m
b
e
rs
 fro

m
 th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
tiv
e
 

a
n
d
 P
P
B
s
 o
n
 th
e
 H
a
lto
n
 S
tra
te
g
ic
 P
a
rtn
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 th
e
 S
p
e
c
ia
ls
it 

S
tra
te
g
ic
 P
a
rtn
e
rs
h
ip
s
. C
o
u
n
c
il’s
 m
u
s
t p
re
p
a
re
 a
 L
A
A
 a
s
 th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

p
la
n
 fo
r th

e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 s
tra
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 p
a
rtn
e
rs
 (n
a
m
e
d
 in
 th
e
 B
ill) w

ill 
h
a
v
e
 a
 d
u
ty
 to
 c
o
o
p
e
ra
te
. T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’s
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 s
c
ru
tin
y
 ro
le
 w
ill 

b
e
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 
p
a
rtn
e
rs
 
w
ith
 
a
 
d
u
ty
 
to
 
c
o
o
p
e
ra
te
 
in
 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 
o
f 
th
e
 
L
A
A
. 
H
e
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
n
a
tu
re
 
o
f 
re
la
tio
n
s
h
ip
s
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
L
S
P
 
in
 
H
a
lto
n
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 
o
f 
e
v
e
r 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

s
ig
n
ific
a
n
c
e
. 

  4
.0
 
P
O
L
IC
Y
 IM

P
L
IC
A
T
IO
N
S
 

 4
.1
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
P
la
n
 
is
 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 
fra
m
e
w
o
rk
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 h
o
w
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il w

ill m
a
k
e
 its
 c
o
n
trib
u
tio
n
 to
 im

p
ro
v
in
g
 life

 in
 

th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. It s

e
ts
 th
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t w
ith
in
 w
h
ic
h
 a
ll th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’s
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
. F
ro
m
 it flo

w
s
 th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t d
e
c
is
io
n
s
, 

w
h
ic
h
 
s
h
a
p
e
 
h
o
w
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
liv
e
rs
 
its
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

H
e
n
c
e
, th

e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 is
 th
e
 p
rim
a
ry
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 p
o
lic
y
 fo
r a
ll th

a
t th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il d
o
e
s
 

 5
.0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 IM

P
L
IC
A
T
IO
N
S
 

 5
.1
 
T
h
e
 
P
la
n
 
h
a
s
 
fo
u
r 
k
e
y
 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
ts
: 
a
 
lo
n
g
-te
rm
 
v
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
a
re
a
 

fo
c
u
s
in
g
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
; 
c
o
n
trib
u
tio
n
s
 
th
a
t 

id
e
n
tify
 
s
h
o
rte
r-te

rm
 
p
rio
ritie

s
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
tiv
itie
s
 
th
a
t 
w
ill 
c
o
n
trib
u
te
 
to
 
th
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t o
f lo
n
g
-te
rm
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
; a
 c
o
m
m
itm
e
n
t to
 im
p
le
m
e
n
t s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
s
; a
n
d
, a
rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 fo
r m

o
n
ito
rin
g
 th
e
 im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f th

e
 P
la
n
 

a
n
d
 
its
 
re
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
e
 
P
la
n
 
fo
rm
s
 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
b
a
s
is
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

p
e
rfo
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t a
rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 fo
r re

p
o
rtin
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 to
 

lo
c
a
l c
o
m
m
u
n
itie
s
.  

 6
.0
 
R
IS
K
 A
N
A
L
Y
S
IS
 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
1



6
.1
 
T
h
e
 P
la
n
 a
im
s
 to
 fo
c
u
s
 a
tte
n
tio
n
 a
n
d
 re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
n
 c
ritic

a
l a
re
a
s
, p
ro
v
id
e
 

m
o
re
 ro
b
u
s
t a
c
tio
n
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
tte
r-in
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
. It s

h
o
u
ld
 

a
ls
o
 fo
s
te
r a
 c
u
ltu
re
 th
a
t e
n
s
u
re
s
 th
e
 c
o
m
m
itm
e
n
t a
n
d
 re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
 
p
o
s
itiv
e
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
it 
is
 
im
p
o
rta
n
t 
to
 

re
g
u
la
rly
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
 th
e
 re
s
u
lts
 o
f m
o
n
ito
rin
g
 to
 in
fo
rm
 ris
k
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

 7
.0
 
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
Y
 A
N
D
 D
IV
E
R
S
IT
Y
 IS

S
U
E
S
 

 7
.1
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
P
la
n
 
is
 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 
fra
m
e
w
o
rk
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 th
e
 fu
tu
re
 o
f th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. A
s
 s
u
c
h
, it is

 im
p
o
rta
n
t th
a
t it g

iv
e
s
 a
 

le
a
d
 o
n
 th
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 o
f th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. C
h
ie
f a
m
o
n
g
s
t th
e
s
e
 is
 a
 c
o
m
m
itm
e
n
t 

to
 e
q
u
a
lity
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
ity
.  

  8
.0
 

L
IS
T
 O

F
 B
A
C
K
G
R
O
U
N
D
 P
A
P
E
R
S
 U
N
D
E
R
 S
E
C
T
IO
N
 1
0
0
D
 O

F
 T
H
E
 

L
O
C
A
L
 G
O
V
E
R
N
M
E
N
T
 A
C
T
 1
9
7
2
 

  D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

  

P
la
c
e
 o
f In

s
p
e
c
tio

n
 

  

C
o
n
ta
c
t O

ffic
e
r 

   

P
a
g
e
 1

9
2



REPORT:   Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board 
 
DATE:   21 November 2007 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment 
 
SUBJECT:   Petition relating to Traffic Calming  
    Stratton Park, Widnes 
 
WARDS:   Farnworth 
 
 
1.0  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To report receipt of a 25 signature petition requesting the installation of 

traffic calming on Stratton Park, Widnes 
 
2.0  RECOMMENDATIONS: That 
 

(1) the report be noted 
 

(2) the request for traffic calming on Stratton Park be declined due 
to it being contrary to the Council’s policy on Traffic Calming; 

 
(3) An alternative scheme of enhanced signing and road markings 

be passed to the local Area Forum for consideration; and 
 

(4) The petitioners be informed accordingly 
 
3.0  SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1  A petition carrying 25 signatures has been received from residents of 

Stratton Park, Widnes requesting the installation of ‘speed bumps’ on 
the highway with the work being funded through the local Area Forum.  
Reproduced as Appendix ‘A’, the petition is based on addressing a 
number of alleged risks to highway users and is critical of established 
Council policy relating to the retrospective provision of physical traffic 
calming. 

 
3.2  Current Council policy relating to the installation of physical traffic 

calming was established primarily in June 2000 when the Executive 
Board adopted a prioritisation and qualification process with two central 
requirements for any location at which traffic calming is requested: the 
route must not be a cul-de-sac and it must have hosted a road traffic 
accident resulting in personal injuries, in the previous five years. 

 
3.3  At the Executive Board meeting of 29th. July 2004, this qualification 

approach was again considered. The Board resolved that the current 
policy of traffic calming schemes being focused on reducing accident 
and casualty numbers in the Borough should be endorsed and 
requests be subject to each scheme addressing an identified casualty 
problem. 

Agenda Item 6ePage 193



 
3.4  Requests for physical traffic calming measures on Stratton Park have 

been received over a two year period. However, these requests have 
always been declined because the route does not meet the established 
qualification criteria due to it being a cul-de-sac with no injury accident 
record in the last five years. 

 
3.5  Police records show only one injury accident on Stratton Park going 

back as far as 1990, and this involved a car/car collision at the junction 
with Cronton Lane due to a driver reversing into Stratton Park off the 
main road. 

 
3.6  All new housing areas are constructed with integral traffic calming to 

allow a 20mph. speed limit to be introduced on adoption. The possible 
methods of calming are many - geometry, surface finishes, gateways, 
mild humps etc. Stratton Park is constructed with speed reducing 
features incorporated through its alignment and the use of speed tables 
and speed readings when taken on the longest straight part were an 
average of 19mph. It is intended that a 20mph speed limit will be 
introduced at this location in the near future. However, given current 
recorded speeds it is extremely unlikely that driver behaviour will be 
significantly affected by this measure. 

 
3.7  However, in order to enhance road safety and encourage drivers to 

further restrict their speeds, a scheme has been designed using extra 
signing and road markings, (see Drawing Number 7321), which could 
be implemented at short notice utilising Area Forum funding.  

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  None 
 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  The cost of implementing the proposed signing and lining scheme is 

£2,500. The local Area Forum is shortly to consider supporting this 
work. 

 
6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL'S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 A Safer Halton & Children & Young People in Halton: The existing 

road safety record for Stratton Park does not justify physical traffic 
calming, based on the Council’s existing traffic calming policy. 
However, the alternative scheme of signing and lining work has been 
designed to raise driver’s awareness of their speed, encourage safer 
driving practices and thereby enhance feelings of safety for Stratton 
Park residents.  

 
6.2  Halton’s Urban Renewal, A Healthy Halton & Employment & 
 Learning Skills in Halton: - No implications 
 
6.3  Equality & Diversity Issues: No Implications. 

Page 194



 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1  The proposed signing and lining scheme has been safety audited to 

maintain road safety in the area. 
 
8.0  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
8.1 Background information held in the Traffic Management  Section, 

Environment, Rutland House, Halton Lea, Runcorn, WA7 2GW.  
Contact: S. Johnson, ext. 3010 

 
 
  
 

Page 195



APPENDIX 1 
A PETITION: 

 

We the undersigned being residents of Stratton Park, Widnes (Farnworth 
Ward) request that the local Council Area Forum consider approving and 
paying for from their funds speed bumps to be located at mutually agreed 
spots in Stratton Park where the road is narrow to mitigate the risk of vehicles 
travelling too fast; mounting pavements and/or gardens to avoid each other as 
they pass the chicane bend in Stratton Park where entering or leaving the 
Stratton Park development. There have been numerous “near misses” in the 
past on this stretch of road that we consider to be detrimental to safety  and 
the Council’s “Executive” policy of only considering using Police Accident 
Statistics to substantiate/deflect the need for speed bumps is flawed as these 
statistics only take account of fatalities and/or injuries. We ask that bollards 
not be considered as speeding cars facing a collision would simply impact the 
bollards and still potentially injure the public.  

Page 196



Page 197


	Agenda
	3 Public Question Time
	4 Executive Board Minutes
	Appendix 1 to Item No. 4, 20/06/2007 Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board, 19/09/2007 Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board

	5a Quarterly Monitoring Reports
	HT Q2 Final - Urban Renewal
	EARS Q2 QMR Final - Urban Renewal
	Health & Partnerships Q2 07-08 Final (UR)
	Culture  Leisure Q2 Final - Urban Renewal
	Q2 ER 07-08 Final Urban Renewal
	Major Projects Q2 Final

	6a Fireworks Festival 2008
	6b Merseyside Action Plan
	6c Strategic Joint Needs Assessment
	JNSA - Appendix 4

	6d The Strategic Progress of the Council's Corporate Plan
	6e Petition relating to Traffic Calming Stratton Park, Widnes
	Stratton Park Appendix
	map


